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Human Resources

The Kajima corporate philosophy advocates “as a group of individuals working together as one, we
pursue creative progress and development founded on both rational, scientific principles and a
humanitarian outlook.” Our humanitarian and family-oriented tradition is a source of competitiveness,
and we will continue to adhere to this philosophy as we move forward.

Nevertheless, our business environment is constantly changing, and in 2020 we find ourselves facing
extraordinary circumstances in the form of an unexpected pandemic. Taking this as an opportunity to
transform business processes and work styles, we are implementing wide-reaching reforms.

From fiscal 2019 through fiscal 2020, we are overhauling our human resources systems, which
we will follow up with the opening of a new training facility in the winter of fiscal 2020. These
measures will improve our competitiveness by enabling us to consider compatibility across a wide
spectrum of careers and fields where individual employees can fully exercise their capabilities and

further develop their skills, while ensuring that we can assign the right people to the right places, in

Katsunori Ichihashi a timely fashion.
Executive Officer, With all employees at the Kajima Group making use of their individual experience and aptitude to
General Manager, Executive Office, enhance their professional lives, we hope to set in motion a virtuous cycle in which the Group

Overseeing Human Resources
Department and Center for
Shared Administrative Services

achieves sustainable growth that enables both our employees and the Group to prosper materially
and spiritually.

Developing Human Resources

* Comprehensive Career Development

As Japan'’s population continues to decline due to the low birthrate medium-to-long-term career aspirations, receiving advice from
and aging population, our environment is changing radically and human resources experts and supervisors, and participating in
with unanticipated speed, and the future is ever more uncertain. relevant training and seminars. The system also provides the

To survive and thrive in this business environment, we believe that Company with a more detailed understanding of the diverse
enhancing individual capabilities and organizational management is experience, motivations, aptitudes and capabilities of individual
essential. We therefore introduced a new talent management employees around the world. This information can then be reflected
system in June 2020. Through this system, employees are able to in the timely assignment of the right people to the right places, as
engage in self-directed development by stating short-term and well as in employee development.

* Expanding Our Business Domains

The Kajima Group has been actively developing its human resources, new training frameworks so that employees can acquire a high level

and aims to train highly skilled specialists across a broad range of of specialization, as well as a good balance of management and

fields as well as management personnel capable of coordinating business skills.

those specialists to fully meet the expectations of customers The COVID-19 pandemic has also prompted us to implement

and society. sweeping revisions to our training methods. We are actively switching
In order to expand into new business domains in an unpredictable from conventional in-person training to online training, thereby enabling

economic environment, it is important that each employee has the personnel at overseas locations or domestic branches and

ability to apply management and business perspectives. We will build construction sites to participate in training in their own time.

e Establishing a Forum for Developing the Next Generation of Business Leaders

While we are shifting to online training, we also recognize the importance of open
face-to-face communication, and the connection and inspiration that employees
provide each other. We are preparing to open a new small-group training facility in
Toshima-ku, Tokyo in the winter of fiscal 2020. We will use this facility as:
(1) a forum for insights and learning through discussion-based workshops and seminars;
(2) a forum for connecting employees irrespective of roles or departments; and
(8) a forum for co-creation through study meetings and presentations.

By building on the support for career development and enhanced training
programs discussed above with this training facility, we expect to foster greater
employee-driven personal development, leading to the growth of the Company. Concept render of conference hall at the new training facility
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Diversity & Inclusion

* Promoting Active Roles for Women and Work-Life Balance

Kajima believes it is essential to create an environment in which
people from diverse backgrounds—with different genders,
nationalities, religions and degrees of disability —take on active roles
in which they can fully express their individuality and skills.
Furthermore, we are enhancing workplaces and systems that
enable employees to continue working with peace of mind and
flourish as they navigate various life events.

In recent years, a particular focus has been to ensure that
employees can achieve a better balance between work, parenting
and family caregiving. This has included systemic enhancements,
such as improving the system of flex-time hours for parents,
introducing a telecommuting program, and creating a new program
for family support leave, as well as activities to raise awareness,

* Active Roles for Employees of All Nationalities

such as distributing a handbook, and holding seminars and individual
consultation events. Consequently, we achieved our targets of
doubling the number of both female engineers and female managers
over the five-year period starting fiscal 2014, and greatly increased
the number of employees taking extended caregiving leave, which
averaged between 20 to 30 people in past years, to a total of 63
people in fiscal 2019.

Number of Female Engineers and Women in Managerial Positions

Female engineers 175 377 525

Women in managerial positions 54 138 162

As our overseas operations have grown year by year, so has the
number of overseas consolidated subsidiaries, where employees
now total 5,810 people. In 2009, Chung-Lu Construction Co., Ltd.,
a subsidiary in Taiwan, introduced a program for local employees to
train in Japan. Through the program, a total of 17 employees have
taken part in technology training at Japanese worksites. A second-
time trainee performing steel frame work at the Kansai Branch in
October 2019 reported that the experience was valuable, and
highlighted the patience with which all his questions were answered
and the thorough understanding he was able to gain of work
performed at the site. We believe that it is important to accumulate

* New Work Styles

experience domestically and overseas by promoting cross-border
personnel exchange through this kind of initiative.

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, we have introduced
staggered commuting times, teleworking, and remote meetings to
avoid the “three Cs” of closed spaces, crowded places, and
close-contact settings. The pandemic is expected to continue for
some time, so to create a work environment in which employees
can work with confidence in their safety, we are considering ways
to enhance our personnel systems.

Improving Employee Health

Guided by the slogan of “Promoting the health of employees creates
healthier and livelier workplaces!” we understand that healthy
employees are an important management resource. We continuously
implement health and productivity management and have been
selected every year since 2017 under the Certified Health &
Productivity Management Outstanding Organizations Recognition
Program. As part of health and productivity management, we have
established a clinic within the Head Office to make it easier for
employees to receive medical examinations. We also ensure that
employees undergo regular medical examinations and receive
treatment advice, and actively provide healthcare guidance from
health nurses and other follow-up. Furthermore, based on the
guidance of occupational health physicians, our Central Safety and

Rather than being temporary measures, we plan to leverage
these as lasting changes that improve and optimize operations.
To create the necessary environment, we are actively implementing
digital transformation, revising operations and processes, improving
our IT environment, and enhancing our systems.

Each employee’s circumstances and environment differ, with
conditions that are constantly changing, so we are creating a work
environment that is flexible and conducive to improved productivity.

Health Committee investigates and deliberates on healthcare matters,
and delivers its conclusions through safety and health committees at
each domestic branch.

We recognize the importance of both self-care (self-assessment
and action taken by employees themselves) and line care (health
management by managers) in the prevention and rapid identification
of employee mental health issues. In fiscal 2019, we therefore
started new mental health training aimed at mid-level management
personnel. Since fiscal 2016, we have conducted annual stress
checks in accordance with the Industrial Safety and Health Act.
Results of the stress checks continue to show that the level of
comprehensive health risk among employees is roughly 20% lower
than Japan’s national average.
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Partnerships

Partner companies are essential to Kajima’s supply chain.

In the construction industry, supply chains involve not only equipment and materials but also human resources, primarily at partner
companies, who work with the contractor on-site to bring construction projects to completion. To ensure that it works only with partner
companies that possess appropriate construction capabilities, Kajima utilizes outside organizations and a proprietary system to evaluate,
select and manage those companies.

We require suppliers to comply with laws including those prohibiting discrimination, unfair treatment, child labor, and forced labor, and we
monitor compliance as part of supplier evaluations. Furthermore, in accordance with the Kajima Group’s Corporate Code of Conduct, our
evaluations take into account compliance with laws and regulations, maintenance of equitable relationships with partner companies, the
eradication of antisocial activities, respect for the cultures and customs of all nations and people, prohibition of discrimination and unfair
treatment, prohibition of child labor and forced labor, and action on environmental issues (energy usage, climate change impact including
CO, and greenhouse gas emissions, water usage, biodiversity impact, pollution, and waste). In keeping with the Statement for Respecting
Fair Labor Cost Estimation put forward by the Japan Federation of Construction Contractors, we strive to create mutually beneficial
relationships by improving employment conditions for skilled workers and by securing skilled workers and supporting their development.

Kajima Business Partners’ Association
(approx. 930 companies)

Working with Partner Companies

" s . . . s Rokueikai (approx. 4,500 companies)
Kajima’s partner companies formed the Kajima Business Partners

Association (approximately 930 companies nationwide), which
engages in various projects in the spirit of mutual aid, as well as
Rokueikai (approximately 4,500 companies nationwide), whose
primary purpose is accident prevention activities. By coming

other projects (approx. 16,500 companies)

Companies that have signed basic
construction subcontracting agreements
(approx. 25,000 companies)

( Companies making use of mutual aid and

Business partners

(approx. 43,000 companies)

together with partner companies through these organizations,
Kajima forms strong partnerships that will ensure quality and safety.
In order to address issues such as securing the next generation

of workers and improving productivity, we aim to make the

construction industry more attractive to work in based on opinion

exchange and dialogue with partner companies.
In August 2020, Kajima announced its Declaration of Partnership Building. This is a framework developed by the
Council on Promoting Partnership Building for Cultivating the Future, whose members include the Chairman of

#*} n—l“j' = 7o Keidanren, the Chairman of the Japan Chamber of Commerce and Industry, the President of the Japanese Trade
ot iy Union Confederation (RENGO), and related ministers (from the Cabinet Office; Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry; Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare;
\\ % EE 5 W“ Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries; and Ministry of Land, Infrastructure, Transport and Tourism). Under this framework, company representatives declare
their commitment to creating new partnerships through cooperation and mutually beneficial relationships with business partners in the supply chain and entities
seeking to create value.

Improving Employment Conditions for Construction Workers

Since fiscal 2015, we have operated the Kajima Meister System,

a registration and direct financial incentive system for outstanding
foremen, and the New E Award System, an incentive system for
outstanding skilled workers, as a way of improving employment
conditions for engineers and skilled workers.

Kajima Meister System

Exceptional engineers and foremen, who are key construction personnel,
primarily at major partner companies, are eligible for registration as
“Kajima Meisters” and are paid a direct financial incentive determined by
the number of days worked at Kajima sites.

New E Award System

Outstanding foremen, next-generation skilled workers, and other personnel
who have made an exceptional contribution to Kajima’s construction work
are eligible for selection to receive a direct incentive.

Implementing a Five-Day Work Week

Kajima is pushing forward with the implementation of a five-day work
week at construction sites (closing sites for 104 days each year”) in
stages. As of the end of fiscal 2019, five-day work weeks were
implemented at 38% of all sites, versus the target of 50%. In the

Supermeister Meister
Approx. 100 Supermeisters Approx. 500 Meisters
certified from among Meisters (Fiscal 2020: 393 people)
(Fiscal 2020: 106 people) Per-day incentive of ¥2,000
Per-day incentive of ¥4,000

Approx. 400 each year
(Fiscal 2019: 593 people)
Per-year incentive of ¥100,000

second stage, we aim to achieve implementation at 75% of sites by
the end of fiscal 2020. Our ultimate goal is to have all construction
sites operating on a five-day work week by the end of fiscal 2021.

* 365 days x 2/7 (five-day work week) ~ 104 days
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Framework for Ensuring Safety

Kajima is responsible for the safety and health
management of everyone involved in construction site
operations. Our role as the prime contractor is to develop
plans and manage risks so that foremen and workers from
partner companies involved in operations at construction
sites can perform their duties confident that their

Safety Performance (FY)

Lost work time of

4 or more days 0.80 0.66 0.78 0.68 0.69

Accident frequency rate

Lost work time of

1 day or more 1.37 1.14 1.41 1.49 1.24

equipment and working environment are safe. Accident severity rate 028 018 036  0.11 0.18
In fiscal 2019 at Kajima construction sites in Japan,

there were 67 accidents with lost work time of four or No. of accidents 8 o4 & o6 o7

more days, including two fatal accidents. The frequency No. of fatalities 3 2 4 1 2

rate of accidents resulting in lost work time of four or
more days was 0.69, and the rate for accidents resulting

Cumulative working
hours (Millions of hours)

10425 97.15 89.65 96.71 97.62

in lost work time of one or more days was 1.24, resulting
in a severity rate of 0.18. Under the slogan “Think safety!
Make today accident free,” we will continue to do our
utmost to ensure a safety-first approach to work.

Management System

Kajima implements safety and health management in conformance
with the Construction Occupational Health and Safety Management
System (COHSMS).

We follow a PDCA cycle of reviewing our safety and health
policies as necessary based on the performance and circumstances
of the previous fiscal year, and then formulating Company-wide
safety and health targets and plans for the current fiscal year.
Starting from the Company-wide policies formulated through this
cycle, we narrow down the range of issues to determine the priority

Safety Dialogue at Construction Sites

In terms of planning and equipment, safety measures employed at
recent construction sites are more comprehensive than those in the
past. However, a consequence of the decreased frequency with
which construction workers are directly faced by an accident or injury,
among other factors, is lower sensitivity to potential hazards.

In order to heighten that sensitivity, Kajima conducts monthly
“safety dialogue” at all sites. Prime contractor employees, foremen
of partner companies and other workers gather to engage in

Onsite COVID-19 Countermeasures

The construction industry plays an important role in supporting
infrastructure. Therefore, operations must continue even in the
event of an infectious disease pandemic. To thoroughly prevent
infection at construction sites, Kajima is implementing
countermeasures based on avoiding closed spaces, crowded
places, and close-contact settings.

Morning meetings are staggered and social distancing is
maintained between participants. Cardboard, acrylic screens,
plastic sheeting and other partitions are used in construction project
offices, break rooms, and smoking areas to prevent close contact.
We are also using our contact and work coordination system to
replace onsite meetings held at construction project offices with

Frequency rate: The number of fatalities and injuries at worksites per one million

cumulative working hours

Severity rate: The severity of illnesses and injuries represented by the number of workdays

lost per one thousand cumulative working hours

Note: Calculations include partner company workers.

items to be implemented at individual construction project offices
as well as those for the Head Office, branches and partner
companies supporting them. We then use these items as a
foundation for establishing construction safety and health policies,
targets, and plans for each construction site, to be shared with
partner companies in carrying out construction work. In addition,
by focusing on actual workplaces, equipment, and site conditions
through regular patrols, we will keep improving safety and health levels.

dialogue focused on safety, sharing opinions about actual cases of
accidents that have occurred at construction sites in the past, as
well as other topics.

In addition to fostering greater safety awareness among all
workers and preventing recurrence of accidents, safety dialogue
provides opportunities for sharing information and encourages
communication.

remote information registration and management. Furthermore,
we are combining body temperature measurement with facial
recognition access control systems, and accelerating measures
that contribute to managing the health of skilled workers.

Partitions in a break area

Morning meeting with social distancing
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Environment

> Environmental Vision and Medium-Term Business Plan

Formulated in 2013, the Kajima Environmental Vision: Triple Zero
2050 is the basis of our environmental initiatives. Our ultimate goals
in the areas of CO, reduction, resource recycling and harmonious
co-existence are, respectively, zero carbon, zero waste, and zero
impact. In particular, to reflect the signing of the Paris Agreement
and the rise in ESG investment, we established new targets for
reducing CO, emissions. We aim to reduce our CO, emission
intensity (t-CO./¥ hundred million of sales) by 30% compared to
fiscal 2013 by 2030, and by 80% no later than 2050.

The priority environmental focus in the Kajima Group Medium-
Term Business Plan (Fiscal 2018-2020) announced in 2018 is
“pursue environmental and energy opportunities for the business
activities of the Kajima Group and its customers.” We are stepping
up specific business initiatives to reduce CO, emissions at construction

Support for

LETTIERS .
y Customers’ Business

Business Activities

Activities

Kajima Environmental Vision
Accelerate specific initiatives to reduce
construction site CO, emissions in order

to achieve “Targets 2030” under
Triple Zero 2050

 Proactively help customers address their
environmental and energy issues utilizing
superior technologies

 Bring in external know-how for technology

advancement and development

CO, emissions target for 2030
Reduce by 30% or more
compared to FY2013

Triple Zero 2050 (Revised May 2018)

sites, as well as utilizing our superior technologies to proactively help
customers address their environmental and energy issues.

In fiscal 2019, we defined our material issues in order to achieve
the SDGs and analyzed Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD) scenarios (see page 74 for details). Based on
this, we revised our approach to reducing CO. emissions under “risks
and opportunities,” the full text of which is available on our website. In
February 2020, we issued ¥10 billion in Green Bonds for refinancing
the construction of Yokohama Gate Tower (Yokohama City, Kanagawa
Prefecture), which is currently under construction, and of the KT
Building (Minato-ku, Tokyo), which is owned by the Company.

Triple'Zero 2050}

ol

e
" arain & d

o

of recycled materials

Lower CO, Emissions

Zero Carbon

Group-wide

Building a More Sustainable World

Balancing greenhouse gas emissions
from human activities with the Earth’s
capacity for CO, absorption

Aiming for a zero carbon footprint by reducing
the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions
(Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions) by at least 80%
compared to fiscal 2013

Reduce Group-wide greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and 2
emissions) per unit of sales to 30% of fiscal 2013 level or lower
(equivalent to a 30% reduction of total emissions with fixed construction
amount); contribute to the reduction of Scope 3 emissions as well,
through joint efforts in the supply chain

Construction Operations
Reduce construction site greenhouse gas emissions per unit of sales to
30% of fiscal 2013 level or lower

Architectural Design

Reduce CO, emissions in the operation stage of newly completed
buildings by at least 30% compared to Japan’s energy-saving standard
Mainstream ZEB Ready buildings and pursue net ZEB for flagship projects

Recycle Resources

Pursuing zero emissions by
employing state-of-the-art
infrastructure maintained and
operated using sustainable resources

Zero Waste

Aiming to eliminate waste from construction
operations by ensuring zero landfill disposal of
waste during construction, utilizing sustainable
materials, and making buildings last longer

Completely eliminate final landfill waste from construction operations
Achieve a usage rate of recycled materials of at least 60% for principal
construction materials (steel, cement, ready-mixed concrete, crushed
stone and asphalt)

Harmoniously Co-Existing

with Nature

Valuing the continuous benefits of
ecosystem services by minimizing
the impact of human activities on the
environment and living creatures

Zero Impact

Aiming to minimize the overall environmental
impact of construction operations by limiting
their effect on nature and living creatures while
promoting the restoration of biodiversity and
new ways to make use of its benefits

Promote biodiversity restoration projects
Build a portfolio of effective projects and make them hubs for
biodiversity-related networking

Common Foundation
Initiative Areas

* Management of hazardous substances: Ensure preventative measures (especially for soil contamination and asbestos)
and proper management of chemical substances

* Conduct research and technology development

 Actively distribute information in and outside the Company

Three-year (FY2018-2020) environmental targets have been set for each sector and activities are under way (See page 61 for details.)
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Expanding Services to Help Customers Address
Their Environmental and Energy Issues

Kajima provides technologies and services to support the
business activities of its customers and help them address their
environmental and energy issues in the areas of lower CO.
emissions, recycling resources, and harmoniously co-existing
with nature. In particular, we are reinforcing measures that meet
today’s most urgent needs in fields in which we have many
years of experience, such as zero energy buildings (ZEB),
energy usage, wastewater treatment systems, treatment of

Building Smart Regional Societies

In recent years, local consumption of locally produced energy is a
topic of great attention. One example is the potential for new
industries founded on the production, storage, transport and supply
of hydrogen from untapped local energy resources. The effective use
of energy sources unique to each region is also important from a
BCP perspective. In Shikaoi-cho, Kato-gun, Hokkaido, Kajima has
been working since 2015 on the Shikaoi Hydrogen Farm, a joint
project of four companies including the Company* to create a
hydrogen supply chain using hydrogen generated from livestock
excreta. This project is part of the Regional Cooperation and
Low-carbon Hydrogen Technology Demonstration Project
commissioned by the Ministry of the Environment. From fiscal 2020,
we will also be performing verification projects concerning the supply
of hydrogen for fueling cell-powered forklifts used in agricultural
warehouses, as well as hydrogen-storing alloys and fuel cell
utilization systems for emergency power use. In addition to enabling
the local production and consumption of energy, hydrogen supply
chains can also contribute to addressing regional issues including
disaster prevention and mitigation, social infrastructure and the
revitalization of regional industries. Kajima will continue to leverage its

contaminated or hazardous materials, and recycling.

We coordinate with Group companies to expand upstream
and downstream construction business opportunities. For
example, Kajima Tatemono Sogo Kanri Co., Ltd. provides
post-completion energy management for buildings, while
Kajima Environment Engineering Corporation is responsible
for the maintenance and management of final landfill waste
disposal sites.

Conceptual Image of Smart Regional Societies
Centered on Hydrogen Supply Chains

Global warming preventmn
Revitalization of il Gy Environmental
regional industries Zero carbon cities improvements

s maﬂagemem l. L Public transportation
e — systems
-, - ._' S— .
Y, i Y* =
Resilience ity ; -
“ Disaster ﬂ'\ Methan’e ﬂir‘mentahon Hydrogen F . \.
|' prevention acilities farms \
\  and BCP —.—

. m ﬁ Improved agricultural
= roduction
Cooperation with - RIOCICH0 capacny -
surrounding communities Smarl tagriculture

renewable energy and BCP technologies and coordinate with local
governments to advance measures such as these, with the aim of
realizing smart regional societies.

* Four companies: Air Water Inc., Nippon Steel Pipeline & Engineering Co., Ltd., Air Products Japan K.K., and Kajima Corporation

Reducing CO. Emissions during the Building Management Stage and Carbon Offsets

Kajima complies with energy-saving regulations, such as the Act on
the Rational Use of Energy and the Tokyo Cap-and-Trade Program
for its office buildings. We have worked to implement energy-saving
plans and reduce energy consumption in ways including updating
equipment at our offices, such as Tokyo East 21 (Koto-ku, Tokyo),
Akasaka K-Tower (Minato-ku, Tokyo), and other Kajima facilities.
Under the Act on the Rational Use of Energy, companies are obliged
to make an effort to reduce emission intensity by an annual average
of 1% or more over a five-year period. Kajima has achieved an
average annual reduction of 2.5% over the past five years, and has
maintained its classification as an S Class superior energy-efficient

and conservation company as announced by the Ministry of
Economy, Trade and Industry.

Tokyo’s Cap-and-Trade Program allows companies to bank
emission reduction amounts in excess of mandatory emission
reduction targets as credits. We used our stock of credits from the
first plan period (2010-2014) for carbon offsets. Specifically, we
offset CO, emissions from diesel oil and power used in the Fujimura
Gakuen New Mixed-Use Gymnasium Construction Project in
Kunitachi City, Tokyo (tentative name; completion scheduled for end
of August 2021), in cooperation with Zero Emission Tokyo initiatives.
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Reducing the Environmental Impact of Our Business Activities

Kajima’s Environmental Management Systems

Kajima operates environmental management systems (EMS) that
are compliant with ISO 14001. The Environment Committee is
headed by the President and implements initiatives in each of five
sectors: civil engineering, building construction, environmental
engineering, engineering, and research and development. Four
subcommittees address environmental management, construction

Summary of Environmental Activities for Fiscal 2019

For the most part, activities have progressed well during fiscal
2019, the second year of the current three-year plan. In pursuing
lower CO, emissions, we achieved a 20% reduction in CO,
emissions attributable to construction, surpassing our reduction
target of 6% compared with fiscal 2013. In recycling resources, our
final disposal rate for waste, including sludge, was 3.9%, falling
short of our target of less than 3%. Final disposal rates are affected
by the type of construction and the surrounding environment, such
as the presence of outstanding waste disposal facilities.

environments, sustainable procurement, and biodiversity as
cross-sector issues.

For domestic Group companies, environmental initiatives and
energy usage studies are implemented primarily at 14 construction-
related companies that have particularly high environmental impact.

With regard to environmental accidents, while there were no
serious breaches of laws resulting in administrative sanctions, there
were six minor violations due to shortcomings in preliminary surveys
for confirming the presence of asbestos and inappropriate
outsourcing of waste disposal. Furthermore, in preparation for
revisions to the Air Pollution Control Act and the Ordinance on
Prevention of Health Impairment due to Asbestos, we have shared
information regarding expanded notification requirements with the
asbestos managers of all branches.

Full-Scale Operation of Environmental Data Evaluation System (edes) to Reduce Energy Use at Construction Sites

About 90% of Kajima’s CO, emissions from its own business
activities are generated at construction sites. Of the energy
consumed on-site, 70% is from diesel oil used in heavy machinery
and elsewhere, and 30% is from electricity. We have been working
to reduce the amount of energy used through instruction in fuel-
efficient operation and other activities and we have ascertained the
CO, emissions of the Company as a whole. We did this using
sampling data from studies over a pre-determined period of energy
consumption vis-a-vis the value of finished work at construction sites
across the country. However, given that accelerating the reduction
of CO, emissions during construction is a critical issue, we need to
know the emissions per construction site and then implement timely
and effective reduction methods tailored to conditions at each site.

For this reason, in fiscal 2018 we developed the Environmental
Data Evaluation System (edes), which enables users to ascertain
and visualize CO, emissions for all processes at all construction
sites on a monthly basis. In fiscal 2019, full-scale operation of edes
began throughout Japan.

Internal Systems Environmental Data Evaluation System

Environmental information systems used for
creating mandatory government reports:
Waste manifests, etc.

Emissions data

Construction management support system:

By linking it to construction management support services
already deployed at Kajima construction sites, information such as
the types, number and operating hours of construction machinery
is automatically imported into edes and used to calculate CO»
emissions. Furthermore, vehicles used to transport soil, sand and
waste are linked to existing environmental information systems used
for creating mandatory government reports, and power and water
usage is linked to the recently introduced public utility bill payment/
settlement system. These diverse systems created to improve
construction site productivity are enabling us to ascertain the
amount of energy used and CO. emissions at each site.

We aim to introduce edes at all domestic construction sites by the
end of fiscal 2020, and will accelerate efforts to reduce CO.
emissions during construction by comparing the figures for each
construction site and branch to formulate effective reduction
measures and deploy these measures at locations throughout Japan.

Data from existing construction management
support systems is imported into edes to
visualize energy usage at construction sites

Operation data for heavy machinery,
vehicles, etc.

» @des
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Public utility bill payment/settiement system:
Usage data for power, water, etc.

Visualization of CO, emissions at construction sites

Ascertaining actual conditions enables target management
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Environmental Targets (FY2018-2020) and FY2019 Actual Figures

Reduce CO, emissions per unit of sales

Construction  attributable to construction by 8% compared Reduce CO, emissions by 6% Reduced CO, emissions by 20%
to fiscal 2013
| - -
2 Secure conformance with SEQDC mandatory Implement action plang thaF clonform with Set and managed original issues in line with
o . - - mandatory standards in Building Energy .
0 standards in Building Energy Efficiency Act L building use
3 Efficiency Act
uEJ Actively utilize labeling programs such as the Numerous projects for which efforts are underway
S Building Energy-efficiency Labeling System to obtain BELS, CASBEE-New Structure,
o . (BELS) CASBEE-Wellness Office, LEED NC and other
= Design -
g Develop industry-leading CO. emissions certiications
% ta?VZtsp v 9 &0 Obtained the highest score in Japan in this fiscal
= 9 year's CASBEE-Wellness Office evaluation: S
rank CASBEE-Smart Wellness Office certification.
Achieve corporate targets for energy efficiency  15.9% reduction
(20% reduction)
® @ Construction  Less than 3% landfill waste including sludge Less than 3% landfill waste including sludge Final disposal rate of 3.9% (including sludge)
o 9
% g Propose more than four items, indicate them
E g Design Implement green procurement on working drawings, and verify whether or not Average of 5.2 items proposed
o the proposed items were ultimately adopted
o . I
S 2 Implement outstanding biodiversity projects '”.”p'.eme’.“ morfe than six outstanding Selected eight outstanding projects
2. é’ biodiversity projects per year
2 c
3 "; Reduce the environmental impact of o ) ) .
= . . Limit the environmental impact of construction ) )
S construction (particularly through management . No environmental impact from hazardous
€ £ ) (particularly through management of hazardous .
£ of hazardous materials and polluted water ; materials or polluted water
< .2 materials and polluted water, etc.)
B management, etc.)
@ Implement R&D and promote technologies and services that support Triple Zero 2050 objectives
g Implement research and technology
[ developmgnt that contnbutes‘ fo preservation Environmental contribution R&D projects: 6 . ) .
= of the environment and sustainable use Designated environmental topics: 17
® R&D ) ) Environmental contribution technology project )
= More than six examples of deploying research Results deployed: 8 instances
= . ) deployment: 2
= or technology results to onsite operations over
_5 the three-year period
g Promote environmental management in Strengthened efforts in four priority fields
S  Envionment concert with Group companies Improve environment-related proposal Efforts toward next-generation technologies/
©  Engineering  Make technical innovations and create projects ~ capabilities, pursue project making projects, follow-up for environmental fairs (four
g based on Triple Zero 2050 branches) and handling of 64 requests
£ . . . . Confirm Triple Zero 2050 approaches and Confirmation at Division Design Review, project
£ ) ) Provide customers with high-environmental ’ . . . . .
©  Engineering ) _ measures for dealing with chemical substances review committees (reviews conducted for all 7
() performance production facilities ) . )
in projects target projects)
Material Flow
Input Output
* Energy * CO, emissions (t) 227,000
- Electricity (kWh) 120,990,000 » Construction surplus soil (m?) 2,014,000
- Diesel oil (k&) 63,383 * Hazardous materials collected
Construction . -
— - Kerosene (k£) 1,261 Construction - Materials containing asbestos (t) 6,197
+ Heavy oil (k&) 142 sites + CFCs and halon (t) 0.2
* Water (m?) 609,000 « Fluorescent tubes (t) 43.3
* Main construction materials (t) 2,276,000 » Construction waste (t) 1,455,000
* Final disposal volume (t) 57,000
* Energy
- Electricity (kWh) 25,400,000 . * CO, emissions (t) 13,000
) ) Offices
- Diesel oil (k&) 5 * VVolume of waste (t) 2,096.5
. + Kerosene (k2) 10
Offices ]
+ Heavy oil (k&) 10
+ Gas (Mm°) 163,000
+ Heating/Steam/Cooling (GJ) 14,776
* Water (m®) 150,000
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Corporate Governance

Kajima’s fundamental commitment on corporate governance is to ensure fair and transparent corporate activities
using enhanced management supervision by the Board of Directors and Audit & Supervisory Board. This is combined
with risk management and accountability achieved via internal controls and systematic steps to secure compliance.
Kajima will continue to strengthen its corporate governance based on the Corporate Governance Code outlined by
the Tokyo Stock Exchange.

p Overview of Corporate Governance Structure

Kajima has elected to use a Company with an Audit & Supervisory as an advisory organ to the Board of Directors in addition to acting
Board structure, with a Board of Directors to make key business in the capacity of a discretionary nomination committee and a
decisions and monitor business execution and an Audit & Supervisory remuneration committee, thereby ensuring greater objectivity and
Board to audit the execution of duties by directors. transparency. Furthermore, an executive officer system has been
The Board of Directors meets once a month and additionally as introduced to separate and bolster supervisory and operational
needed. In addition to eight internal directors with expert knowledge execution functions, as well as to increase the efficiency and speed
of the Company’s businesses, the Board has four outside directors, of management. In addition, a Management Committee and a Joint
who add an independent perspective on key decisions and enhance Committee of Directors and Executive Officers have been established
management supervision. The Board of Directors has a total to improve the efficiency of operational execution.
membership of 12 persons and is headed by the chairman. The Audit & Supervisory Board comprises two inside and three
To support the sustainable growth and progress of the Group for outside members, including finance and accounting experts, and
years to come based on the corporate philosophy, appointees to meets once a month in principle. Audit & Supervisory Board
the Board of Directors must have the ability to apply the knowledge members attend important meetings, including Board of Directors
they have cultivated in their respective fields, such as business, meetings, and audit the actions of directors, with the support of the
finance, and technology. Candidate selection takes into consideration Office of Audit & Supervisory Board Members. They also work closely
the diversity and appropriate size of the Board of Directors, while with independent auditors and the Audit Department, receiving
pursuing a balance of knowledge, experience and abilities. Five Audit information from the Compliance and Risk Management Committee
& Supervisory Board members, including three outside Audit & and Internal Control Evaluation Committee on Financial Reporting
Supervisory Board members, also attend Board of Directors meetings. concerning the implementation of internal controls, and working to
The Governance Committee, comprising outside directors and enhance the effectiveness and efficiency of auditing.

outside Audit & Supervisory Board members, has been established

» Initiatives to Strengthen Corporate Governance

In June 2020, the term of office of directors was reduced from up newly formulated Basic Policy on Officer Remuneration, key

to two years to up to one year and the responsibilities of directors performance indicators (KPIs) and other criteria used in calculating
were clarified. The number of internal directors was also reduced, directors’ performance-linked remuneration (bonus) were revised
and it was decided that outside directors must account for one- from the perspectives of increasing corporate value over the medium
third or more of the Board of Directors. In accordance with the to long term and aligning values with those of stockholders.

Governance Structure: Company with an Audit & Supervisory Board

Directors 12 persons (including 4 outside directors) Term: 1 year
Audit & Supervisory Board members 5 persons (including 3 outside members)
Executive officer system Yes

Independent directors 7 persons

Progress in Strengthening Corporate Governance

To FY2006 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018 _reois EZZEE

Enhanced remuneration
system by introducing a
system for allotting shares
with restriction on transfer

Remuneration for officers Bonus KPIs

Improving objectivity and transparency
of nomination and remuneration Established Governance Committee
decision-making processes

Improving effectiven f Boart . .
proving effectiveness of Board Implemented effectiveness evaluation

of Directors
Number of outside directors (%) 3 (21.4%) 4 (30.7%) 4 (33.3%)
Term of office of directors Up to 2 years Up to 1 year
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Diagram of Corporate Governance Structure
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Governance Committee

Main agenda items

e Officer remuneration system (including composition,
standards, guidelines for determining remuneration)

* Composition of Board of Directors, executives on
management team, requirements, and nomination
guidelines

* Operational enhancements and other measures to
improve effectiveness of the Board of Directors

Members

Outside directors: Koji Furukawa (chair), Masahiro Sakane,
Kiyomi Saito, Yukio Machida

Outside Audit & Supervisory Board members:
Masahiro Nakagawa, Kazumine Terawaki, Yukiko Fujikawa

The Governance Committee is a discretionary committee that
incorporates the functions of both a nomination committee and a
remuneration committee, deliberating on important matters related to
corporate governance, including officer personnel and remuneration-

Stockholders’ Meeting

Appointment,
dismissal

Board of Directors

i Representative Directors

Management Committee

Special-Purpose Committees

v
Executive Officers
Joint Committee of Directors
and Executive Officers

Divisions

Consultation
» .
Advice
<
Reporting

Agenda submission,
reporting

Compliance and Risk

Management Committee

Internal Control Evaluation
Committee on Financial Reporting

Direction,
supervision

Seeking advice,
reporting

Guidance,
support

Group companies

Governance Committee meeting attended by the President in August 2020

related matters, and providing recommendations to the Board of
Directors. It was established with the aim of ensuring the objectivity
and transparency of Kajima’s corporate governance.

The committee comprises outside directors and outside Audit &
Supervisory Board members and meets regularly twice a year, and
additionally as needed. Depending on the content of the agenda,
persons including the President and other executives on the management
team may also be invited to attend in order to provide briefings.

p Outside Director Support System

The Executive Office is responsible for providing support to outside
directors, and the Office of Audit & Supervisory Board Members is
responsible for providing support to outside Audit & Supervisory
Board members. In addition to providing orientations prior to Board
of Directors meetings, these offices also supply outside officers with
the information they need to serve in their positions.

Outside directors meet regularly with Kajima management. In
addition, they receive tours of branch offices and construction sites.
This enhances management supervision by ensuring that the outside
directors have an accurate understanding of Kajima’s business.

Tour of a construction site in Taiwan by an outside director
(third from right: Koji Furukawa)
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p Evaluating the Effectiveness of the Board of Directors

Kajima evaluates the effectiveness of its Board of Directors once a year in order to enhance the Board’s function. Each year, external experts
are also asked to review the evaluation method. Below is an overview of the findings of the review conducted in June 2020.

* Quantitative and qualitative analyses based on a fiscal year-on-year comparison of aspects
including the number of agenda items discussed at Board of Directors meetings, the deliberation
time, and the content of discussions

* Progress made in addressing issues raised at Board of Directors meetings

 Future points for improvement (e.g. selection of agenda topics, meeting administration)

Evaluation Content

(Based on discussions with all members of the Board of Directors, including outside
directors and outside Audit & Supervisory Board members)

* The Board of Directors receives reports regarding matters including the progress of the
Medium-Term Business Plan and the status of compliance and risk management in a timely

Evaluation Results

manner, and has a thorough understanding of management conditions.

(Board of Directors meeting i X X . . .
held on June 9, 2020) * The management team actively takes into consideration the opinions of the Board of Directors
based on discussions of appropriately selected agenda topics concerning long-term issues and
reflects them in operational improvements.

* With regard to meeting administration, the necessary materials are made available and sufficient

discussion time is allocated.

It was determined that a suitable structure was in place for the Board of Directors to
exercise its supervisory functions, and that Board of Directors meetings were being
effectively conducted.

Points for Improvement

Issues Raised Response

We will work to further invigorate discussions and
enhance their content through agenda items that address
long-term management issues such as responding to
future customer and social needs following COVID-19,
and maintaining our competitive position.

While positive steps have been taken to increase the
amount of time available for discussions of long-term
management issues, there is a need to ensure that
in-depth discussions continue.

We will create additional opportunities for communication
There is a need for greater opportunities to engage in between outside directors, executive officers, and
dialogue other than at Board of Directors meetings. employees, and enhance the sharing of information with
outside officers.
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e Main Initiatives Implemented during the Evaluation Period (June 2019-May 2020)

(1) Enhancing discussions regarding medium- and long-term management issues
In response to the recommendation that we enhance discussions regarding management approaches and medium- and long-term issues,
greater opportunities were provided for discussion.

Principal Matters Discussed

A total of 17 matters were discussed, including:

e Domestic and overseas construction market trends and
business portfolios of other domestic and overseas
construction companies

® Policy regarding growth fields in construction markets

e Impact of COVID-19 pandemic

e Technology development and partnerships with other
companies in the 10T field, including robot construction

Agenda Composition

Discussion

27%

Deliberation
and reporting

73%

® Follow-up regarding the Kajima Group Medium-Term
Business Plan

e Progress of investment plans (real estate development,
R&D, etc.)

e Acquisition of company engaged in asset management in
the U.K. and Ireland

e Establishment of ship-owning company for SEP vessel

Number of Matters Discussed

17

Jun. 2017— Jun. 2018— Jun. 2019—
May 2018 May 2019  May 2020

(2) Enhancing Group governance

1

. Compliance risks, including those of Group companies in Japan

and overseas, were reviewed regularly. High-priority issues were
discussed multiple times through inclusion as Board of Directors
agenda items and management status was confirmed.

. Opportunities for dialogue between outside officers and

executives of local companies were created in order to improve
governance in overseas operations. Through this dialogue, local
conditions and issues were reported and opinions were
exchanged.

. Information was shared and opinions exchanged at Board of

Directors meetings regarding feedback from dialogue with
stockholders, investors and other stakeholders.

(3) Further leveraging the functions of the Governance

Committee as an advisory organ

The Governance Committee provided advice following multiple
discussions concerning the structure of the Board of Directors and
officer remuneration. Based on this advice, the Board of Directors

engaged in deliberations and made the following decisions.

1.

In order to maintain the size of the Board of Directors within
appropriate bounds, clarify the management responsibilities of
individual directors, and create a management system capable of

rapidly responding to changes in the business environment, the
number of directors stipulated in the Articles of Incorporation
would be reduced to 13 or fewer and the term of office would be
shortened to up to one year (presented and approved at the
123rd Ordinary Stockholders’ Meeting held on June 25, 2020).

2. From the perspectives of providing incentives aimed at improving
medium- and long-term business performance and reflecting the
characteristics of the construction industry, the director and
executive officer performance-linked remuneration (bonus)
system was revised.

(4) Administration of Board of Directors meetings and
other matters

1. In addition to individual exchanges of opinions between the
President and outside directors, communication opportunities
were provided for the free exchange of opinions other than at
Board of Directors meetings, such as social gatherings attended
by outside directors and executive officers.

2. Progress on matters decided at Board of Directors meetings was
confirmed.

3. In order to invigorate discussions at Board of Directors meetings
by making materials more visually intuitive and improving
presentation methods, paperless practices were introduced.
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p Outside Directors and Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Members

Kajima has appointed four outside directors and three outside Audit

& Supervisory Board members, with an emphasis on securing a
high degree of independence. Appointees must satisfy certain

Basis for Appointing Outside Directors

Independent
officer

Major concurrent positions

requirements for independent directors as defined by stock
exchanges, and all are registered with the Tokyo Stock Exchange
and Nagoya Stock Exchange as independent officers.

Reason for appointment

Koji Furukawa has a wealth of experience and high-level expertise as a corporate executive in a
variety of industries, having served in various executive posts including Director, Senior Executive
Vice President of Mitsubishi Corporation, Vice Chairman of the Board of Mitsubishi Motors

Koji Furukawa ‘ Yes Advisor, Mitsubishi Corporation Corporation, Chairman and CEO, Representative Director of Japan Post Bank Co., Ltd., and
Chairman and CEO, Representative Director of Japan Post Co., Ltd. His appointment was
based on his excellent track record in providing effective advice to the management of the
Company while appropriately supervising its business execution.

Masahiro Sakane has a wealth of experience and high-level expertise as a manager of a
Councilor, Komatsu Ltd., Outside  manufacturer with global business operations, having served as President and Representative
Masahiro Sakane ‘ Yes Director, Takeda Pharmaceutical  Director, as well as Chairman of the Board and Representative Director of Komatsu Ltd. His
Company Limited appointment was based on his excellent track record in providing effective advice to the
management of the Company while appropriately supervising its business execution.
Kiyomi Saito has a wealth of experience and high-level expertise as an entrepreneur and
President, JBond Totan corporate executive, having served as Executive Director of Morgan Stanley, and established
Kiyomi Saito x Yes Securities Co., Ltd., Outside JBond Co., Ltd. (currently JBond Totan Securities Co., Ltd.), of which she has long been serving
Audit & Supervisory Board as President. Her appointment was based on her excellent track record in providing effective
Member, Showa Denko K.K. advice to the management of the Company while appropriately supervising its business
execution.
During his term as an outside Audit & Supervisory Board member at the Company, Yukio
Machida provided clear opinions from an independent and objective perspective, based on
Attorney, Outside Audit & professional insight as a public prosecutor and attorney as well as extensive experience and
Yukio Machida ‘ Yes Supervisory Board Member, high-level expertise as a legal practitioner, and performed his duties effectively. His appointment

Asahi Mutual Life Insurance Co.

was based on the expectation that he would be able to leverage his extensive knowledge and
experience in the management of the Company, considering that he is well-versed in our
business through his previous duties as an Audit & Supervisory Board member.

Basis for Appointing Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Members

Independent
officer

Major concurrent positions

Reason for appointment

Masahiro Nakagawa possesses considerable knowledge relating to finance and accounting.
He served as Director at Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation and President & CEO of SMBC

Kol S aane ‘ ves - Trust Bank Ltd. His appointment was based on the neutral and objective opinions he is able to
provide by drawing upon his extensive experience with financial institutions.
Attorney, Outside Director, Kazumlng Terawalfl possesse; professional mlsught as a public prosegutor and attom.ey as well
. . as extensive experience and high-level expertise in legal matters, having served as Director-
Toshiba Machine Co., Ltd., I . o ) ’ )
) ) ) General of the Public Security Investigation Agency, Superintending Prosecutor of the Sendai
Outside Audit & Supervisory I h ) ) ) .
. . ) High Public Prosecutors Office, and Superintending Prosecutor of the Osaka High Public
Kazumine Terawaki Yes Board Member, Kewpie ) . N ) . .
. ’ Prosecutors Office. Since registering as an attorney, in addition to legal practice, he has been
Corporation, External Audit & ) . ) - . . . )
) serving as outside director and outside audit and supervisory board member at multiple listed
Supervisory Board Member, . ) . L - .
. companies. His appointment was based on the neutral and objective opinions he is able to
Shoko Chukin Bank, Ltd. ) . ) . .
provide by drawing upon his extensive experience.
President, Yukiko Fujikawa CPA  Yukiko Fujikawa has professional insight regarding finance and accounting as a Certified Public
Office, Outside Director, Toyo Accountant and Certified Public Tax Accountant. Having served as Financial Securities Inspector
" i Securities Co., Ltd., Outside t the In: tion Department of the Financial rvi Agen rrently Financial Servi
Yukiko Fujikawa ‘ Yes at the Inspection Department of the Financial Supervisory Agency (currently Financial Services

Director, Sotetsu Holdings Inc.,
Supervisory Director, Hoshino
Resorts REIT, Inc.

Agency), she established Yukiko Fujikawa CPA Office, of which she has long been serving as
President. Her appointment as an outside Audit & Supervisory Board member was based on her
extensive experience and high-level insight.
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Major Internal Meetings in FY2019

Board of Directors Audit & Supervisory Board Governance Committee

1 4 meetings 1 5 meetings 4 meetings

Main areas of specialized experience

Attendance in FY2019

Years in position m(;z;%‘:;‘:m Azg‘::r‘]’t‘fé . m'-aengazg F:‘Z':“ Tech'l‘?bgy/ Government bﬁ;(i)r:):sls Period: April 1, 2019-March 31, 2020
; o o o O Drorsmosings  Committos ot
5 O O o Sife?:{;ri qut?ngl Ctr?:r‘i igezvzgzgggs
5 O O o Ig)ifezf[c:ri Ewoe?e':[?ngg Ctgriigezvrenrgzgrfgs
1 ) o 11 of 11 Board of 4 of 4 Governance

Directors meetings

Committee meetings

* Previously an outside Audit & Supervisory Board member from June 2015 to June 2019

Main areas of specialized experience

Corporate Finance/ Legal/Risk Global
management Accounting management business

Years in position
Technology/IT Government

14 of 14 Board of
Directors meetings

15 of 15 Audit
& Supervisory
Board meetings

Attendance in FY2019
Period: April 1, 2019-March 31, 2020

4 of 4 Governance
Committee meetings

10 of 11 Board of
Directors meetings
10 of 11 Audit
& Supervisory
Board meetings

2 of 2 Governance
Committee meetings

Appointed in June 2020 O
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p Officer Remuneration

Kajima has formulated a policy for determining officer remuneration, the content and methods of this policy are as indicated below.
Basic Policy on Officer Remuneration

* Remuneration standards are to be sufficient to secure and retain outstanding management personnel.
* Remuneration is structured to provide remuneration commensurate with the roles and responsibilities of each position.

* Remuneration linked to achievement of management targets and remuneration linked to Kajima stock price are to be
introduced to increase medium- and long-term corporate value and align officer values with those of stockholders.

* Remuneration decision-making processes must be objective and transparent.

e Director Remuneration System

To ensure objectivity and transparency in determining director Kajima provides fixed remuneration to directors in the form of
remuneration, the Governance Committee, comprising outside monthly remuneration, performance-linked remuneration in the form
directors and outside Audit & Supervisory Board members and of bonuses, and stock remuneration, determined by position
chaired by an outside director, discusses matters including the (including position as an executive officer for directors concurrently
Basic Policy on Officer Remuneration, remuneration systems, and serving in that role).
remuneration standards. The Board of Directors deliberates and The composition of respective forms of remuneration as
decides on such matters based on the advice and recommendations percentages of total remuneration is as indicated below (assuming
of the committee. bonuses equal to standard amounts).
Fixed remuneration Performance-linked remuneration .
o Stock remuneration
(monthly remuneration) (bonus)
President 60% 25% 15%
Other directors 70% 15% 15%

Details of Officer Remuneration

Total remuneration Directors* Outside directors Audit & Supervisory
Board members

Directors: Up to ¥60 million/month
Monthly remuneration Audit & Supervisory Board members: [ J [ J [ J
up to ¥15 million/month

Performance-linked remuneration

Tra) Up to ¥300 million/year [ ] — -

Remuneration in shares with -
restriction on transfer Up to ¥300 million/year L

* Excluding outside directors

FY2019 Remuneration for Directors and Audit & Supervisory Board Members (¥ million)
Position Total Monthly LT Recipients
remuneration remuneration remuneration
Directors

(excluding outside directors)

Audit & Supervisory Board members

(excluding outside members) 56 56 - - 2

Outside directors and outside Audit

& Supervisory Board members 10 1o - - 8
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Fixed Remuneration
Fixed remuneration (monthly remuneration) is handled as indicated below.
(i) The total amount of monthly remuneration shall not exceed ¥60 million
per month. (Decided at the 108th Ordinary Stockholders’ Meeting held
on June 29, 2005; number of directors at the time: 14)

Performance-Linked Remuneration
Performance-linked remuneration (bonus) is handled as indicated below.

(i) The total amount of bonuses shall not exceed ¥300 million per year.
(Decided at the 120th Ordinary Stockholders’ Meeting held on June 29,
2017; number of directors (excluding outside directors) at the time: 11)

(i) Bonuses for the fiscal year (April 1-March 31) shall be based on
officers’ positions at the end of March, and paid upon resolution by the
Board of Directors in a lump sum at the end of the following June.

(iii) In principle, bonuses shall be calculated by multiplying the standard
bonus amount established for each position by an evaluation
coefficient. The evaluation coefficient shall be the average of
performance-linked coefficients based on (a) net income attributable to
owners of the parent for the current fiscal year and (b) average net
income attributable to owners of the parent for the previous three fiscal

(ii) Revisions to monthly remuneration amounts due to the appointment of
new directors or the resignation of current directors shall be applied
from the month following the appointment of the director at the
Stockholders’ Meeting.

(iii) The monthly remuneration of officers who have received promotions
shall, in principle, be revised effective the day of said promotion.

years, and adjusted up or down by up to 20% in consideration of
target achievement levels and ESG components. The maximum for
each performance-linked coefficient is set at 200%, and if net income
attributable to owners of the parent is below a certain level, the
performance-linked coefficient shall be 0%.

(iv) In the event of an incident such as a major compliance infraction, the
Company may withhold or reduce bonuses.

(v) In the event of an officer being newly appointed or resigning during the
course of the fiscal year, in principle, the full calculation amount is to be
paid if the officer is in office for nine months or longer, half of the
calculation amount is to be paid if the officer is in office for six to nine
months, and no bonus is to be paid if the officer is in office for less
than six months.

The evaluation coefficient is the index for bonuses paid as performance-
linked remuneration. The following evaluation coefficient was selected
because, by combining consolidated performance for the current fiscal
year and the average for the previous three fiscal years, (1) it provides
an incentive for management based on a medium-term perspective, (2)
it is in sync with the nature of the construction industry, where projects
generally take two to three years, and (3) it does not interfere with the
appropriate and timely recording of losses.

Formula 200%

For fiscal 2019, the Board of Directors deliberated and decided, after
discussions at the Governance Committee and based on the committee’s
advice and recommendations, to pay bonuses based on an evaluation
coefficient of 190%.

As the calculation formula is linked to net income attributable to owners
of the parent and adjusted based on target achievement levels, the
Company does not set a target for the evaluation coefficient.

Bonus amount
= Standard bonus amount
x evaluation coefficient”

50%
weighting

* (Performance-linked coefficient
based on net income attributable to
owners of the parent for the current
fiscal year x 50%) + (Performance-
linked coefficient based on average
net income attributable to owners of
the parent for the last three fiscal

100%

Performance-linked coefficient

200%

50%
weighting

100%

_|_

=+ 20%

(Target achievement
levels: Including
consideration of ESG
components)

Performance-linked coefficient

Standard

Lower
limit amount

years x 50%) + 20% 0%

(Current fiscal year)

Net income attributable to owners of the parent

Lower
limit limit

Upper 0% Standard Upper

amount limit

Net income attributable to owners of the parent
(Three-year average)

Stock Remuneration
Stock remuneration is handled as indicated below.

(i) The total amount of stock remuneration shall not exceed ¥300 million
per year. (Decided at the 122nd Ordinary Stockholders’ Meeting held
on June 25, 2019; number of directors (excluding outside directors) at
the time: 9)

e Audit & Supervisory Board Member Remuneration System

(ii) The allotment of remuneration in shares with restriction on transfer shall
be based on standard amounts established for each position, decided
on by the Board of Directors each year, and allotted to eligible directors.

(iii) The transfer restriction period shall extend from the day the shares are
allotted through the day the recipient resigns from his/her position as
director and/or executive officer.

Audit & Supervisory Board members are paid fixed remuneration in
the form of monthly remuneration. The monthly remuneration
amount paid to individual Audit & Supervisory Board members is
decided through deliberation among Audit & Supervisory Board
members according to working conditions and other considerations.

The total amount of monthly remuneration shall not exceed ¥15
million per month. (Decided at the 97th Ordinary Stockholders’

Meeting held on June 29, 1994; number of Audit & Supervisory
Board members at the time: 5)
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Risk Management

Based on effective and efficient risk management systems, the Kajima Group makes best efforts to identify risks in
day-to-day operations and prevent them from materializing. The Group also strives to keep improving corporate value
by winning the trust of stockholders, customers, and others with timely information disclosure.

p» Group-Wide Risk Management System

The Kajima Group conducts Group-wide activities to eliminate or
reduce risks in corporate activities. The Management Committee
and special-purpose committees ascertain business risks and
deliberate on countermeasures, including for new businesses and
real estate development investments. With respect to operational
risks such as legal or regulatory compliance violations, the
Compliance and Risk Management Committee (chaired by the
President) ascertains and evaluates the operational status of the
Group’s risk management system, deliberates on risk management
policies and responses to major risks, and reports as necessary to
the Board of Directors.

The Risk Management Liaison Committee, which comprises the
persons in charge at the Head Office department responsible for risk
management, meets regularly to report and share information pertinent

impact of their materialization, selects operational risk aspects of
corporate activities requiring priority management as “priority risk
management issues” for application across the Group, and
implements risk management from the perspective of prevention.
For risks that have materialized, effective risk management is
ensured through the PDCA cycle and includes mandatory early
reporting and organization-level measures to contain risks and
prevent materialization from recurring. Domestic and overseas
Group companies adopt standardized systems in line with those of
Kajima, and independently introduce risk management initiatives in
collaboration with Kajima.

Risk Management Framework

to the Group on risks that have materialized, revisions to laws and
regulations, social trends, circumstances at other companies, and
risk management and communication methodologies, and reports
important information to the Compliance and Risk Management
Committee as appropriate. The Administration Division, which serves
as the secretariat for the Compliance and Risk Management Committee,
centrally manages information on risks that have materialized and

continually follows up on measures addressing these risks.

An effective approach to improving the effectiveness of risk
management is to conduct activities according to importance
based on a comprehensive review of all risks. At the beginning of

President

Management Committee

Business

ek ‘ | Operation risks
Special Compliance and Risk Management Committee
Purpose Chalrpergorw: Pre.s@ent. o B .
Committees Secretariat: Administration Division, Administration

Department, Legal Department

|
Head Office department responsible for risk
management (Risk Management Liaison Committee)

| Guidance and support

Divisions (branch offices) and affiliated companies

each fiscal year, Kajima analyzes risks based on the frequency and

Special-Purpose Committees to Ascertain Business Risks and Deliberate on Measures

Committee name

Overseas Business
Steering Committee

Chairperson

General Manager,
Overseas Operations Division

Purpose

Deliberates and reports on important matters concerning overseas business (overseas
subsidiaries and overseas operations directly controlled by Head Office)

Overseas Development Project
Steering Committee

General Manager,
Overseas Operations Division

Deliberates and reports on plan content and profitability, etc., regarding investment in major
real estate development projects of overseas subsidiaries and of the Overseas Operations
Division, as well as major plan changes, and any transfer of a relevant development project

Overseas Civil Engineering Project
Review Committee

Overseas Building Construction
Project Review Committee

General Manager, Civil Engineering
Management Division

General Manager, Building
Construction Management Division

Investigate and report on technical, construction, and contractual risks at the time of order
receiving for major overseas construction projects; also investigate and report on measures to
address any serious problems that may occur during construction

Development Steering Committee

General Manager,
Administration Division

Deliberates and reports on investments in Japanese real estate development projects, and on
the commercialization or sale of important real estate properties and other ongoing projects

Important Construction Project
Review Committees

General Manager, Civil Engineering
Management Division

General Manager, Building
Construction Management Division

Confirm the technical, construction and contractual risks prior to estimate submission for
important construction projects in Japan, and articulate policy on estimate submission

PFI Civil Engineering Committee
PFI Building Committee

General Manager, Civil Engineering
Management Division

General Manager, Building
Construction Management Division

Deliberate and report on Group-wide response policies and frameworks related to PFl and
other projects, individual projects involving business risks such as investment, and response
policies concerning the formation of consortia of companies

Business Investment Review
Committee

General Manager,
Administration Division

Identifies and deliberates on risks and issues regarding alliances, M&A, company establishment
and new investment projects, other than the above; also provides support for the promotion of
such projects
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» Information Security

The Kajima Group handles a wide range of information, including
that relating to buildings, customers, management, technology,
intellectual property and personal information, in the course of
providing various services, including design and construction. The
Group adheres to an information security policy and conducts
thorough risk management in order to protect such information,
including from external attacks or leakage due to negligence.

Employees throughout the Group take an annual online course in
information security, and training topics include risks associated
with the use of cloud services and new threats such as targeted
cyber-attacks, which have increased in recent years.

In the construction industry, project offices are often housed in
temporary structures, and there is frequent communication with
customers and partner companies during the construction process.
Thorough information management is therefore required. Accordingly,
Kajima conducts regular inspections and audits to verify that
physical, personal and technical measures are in place, while
continuing to enhance such measures. For parther companies,
Kajima also distributes standard check sheets, awareness posters,
and educational materials provided by the Japan Federation of
Construction Contractors. The Company is working to improve the
level of information security at its partners.

Kajima is addressing today’s proliferating cybersecurity threats in
accordance with the Cybersecurity Management Guidelines from
Japan’s Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry. The Company
has set up the Kajima Security Incident Response Team (K-SIRT),

» Multi-Hazard Business Continuity Plan

When a major earthquake, wind or flood damage, or other natural
disaster occurs, the construction industry must quickly mobilize to
ensure business continuity and the rapid recovery of vital social
infrastructure, including the reopening of roads and the repair of
bridges. As a member of the Japan Federation of Construction
Contractors that receives requests from the Government of Japan,
Kajima operates and updates a business continuity plan (BCP) and
conducts regular drills to prepare for contingencies. The Company
has earned the Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery
Certification for Construction Companies' and Resilience Certification.?

Kajima is also enhancing its cooperation with local governments
and public infrastructure operators via disaster preparedness
agreements to support recovery after a disaster, as well as
preparing Group-wide frameworks capable of rapidly responding to
foreseeable disasters such as wind and flood damage.

p Addressing Risks Outside of Japan

Kajima has established an International Emergency Response
Committee to oversee the Group’s response and ensure the safety
of employees and their families when emergencies arise outside of
Japan. In the event of a terrorist attack, major earthquake or other
disaster outside of Japan, Kajima focuses first on gathering
information to verify the safety of employees and their families and
next on providing aid to the affected area.

a member of the Nippon CSIRT Association. The team stays on top
of the latest trends in computer security and cyber-attacks,
cooperating on a regular basis with other organizations and CSIRT
teams. Kajima is also strengthening its systems for monitoring for
unauthorized access, computer viruses and other incidents, and
quickly addressing all potential threats to minimize potential damage.

Information Security Management Framework

Nippon CSIRT Association and CSIRT teams at other companies

!

President

Chief Information Security Officer

Kajima Security Incident Response Team (K-SIRT)

Group companies General managers Department heads

Branch security incident response teams

Project office managers Department heads

Partner companies

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group positioned
preventing the spread of infection as a top priority issue, and was
quick to establish a Crisis Response Headquarters. The Group is
gathering information, assessing risk scenarios, instructing
employees in Japan and overseas on actions to take, providing
guidance to partner companies and implementing other necessary
measures, in order to ensure business continuity and minimize
damage to the greatest extent possible.

1. A program offered by the Kanto Regional Development Bureau under the
Ministry of Land, Infrastructure, Transport and Tourism to evaluate and certify
the basic business continuity capabilities of construction companies.

2. With the aim of enhancing disaster preparedness in Japan, this program
provides certification to entities that are actively engaged in business continuity
efforts. They are certified as organizations that contribute to national resilience
by being prepared for large-scale natural disasters.

Kajima has compiled a manual on preparedness measures and
emergency response in areas where it operates and is currently
educating employees on assignment outside of Japan on these
topics, as well as providing information and alerts on security,
epidemics and other concerns to employees traveling internationally.
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p Business and Other Risks

Risks of changes
in the business
environment

* [f there are significant changes in construction, real estate
development or other business environments, such as a
significant decrease in construction demand or a rapid
contraction of the real estate market due to factors such as
an economic downturn, there could be a decline in
construction contract awards and a decrease in real estate
sales and lease income.

If competition with other general construction companies
intensifies and the Group is unable to maintain its
competitiveness in aspects such as quality, cost or service
content, there could be a deterioration in the Group’s
business performance.

* While accurately responding to changing conditions and market trends, the
Group will continue to actively advance the measures set forth in the Kajima
Group Medium-Term Business Plan (Fiscal 2018-2020) and address material
issues as it works to achieve management targets and increase corporate
value.

Risks of fluctuation
in construction costs

Construction projects are subject to fluctuations in
construction costs because they require the procurement of
materials, equipment and labor over a long period of time. If
a rapid rise in main material prices and labor costs results in
unexpected increases in construction costs that the Group
is unable to reflect in the contracted amount, there could be
a deterioration in the profitability of construction work.

* The Group implements measures such as early procurement, securing diverse
suppliers and including price adjustment clauses in contracts with clients, in
order to minimize the impact of construction cost fluctuations.

Risks of fluctuation
in prices and
profitability of
assets held

In the event of a decline in the profitability of real estate for
sale (consolidated balance sheet balance of ¥62.8 billion as
of March 31, 2020), or a significant decline in the market
value of assets such as real estate for lease (¥198.5 billion)
and investments in securities (¥309.6 billion), the Group could
be required to register a valuation loss or impairment loss.

* The Group manages real estate development business assets by ascertaining
impairment risk for each project and maintaining total impairment risk below a
defined level in proportion to consolidated equity capital.

The Group has set a target of ¥800 billion for consolidated equity capital in
order to maintain a financial foundation that can sufficiently accommodate
future growth in domestic and overseas real estate development business
assets during the period of the Medium-Term Business Plan.

When investing in individual projects, Head Office special-purpose committees
(Development Steering Committee and Overseas Development Project
Steering Committee) and others ascertain risks and deliberate on
countermeasures. The Board of Directors and the Management Committee
then deliberate on these investments in accordance with defined standards.

Each fiscal year, the Board of Directors deliberates on listed stocks held for
strategic purposes, based on an assessment of the rationality of continuing to
hold them and asset efficiency from a medium-to-long-term perspective, and
sells off, in principle, stocks that no longer satisfy the relevant criteria.

Risks related to
changes in political
and economic
conditions in

other countries

* The Group’s policy is to develop its construction and real
estate development businesses overseas in regions
including North America, Europe, Asia and Oceania, enter
new overseas markets, and expand its domains in existing
markets in accordance with the Medium-Term Business
Plan. If there are significant changes in political and
economic conditions, legal systems or foreign exchange
rates in the countries in which the Group operates, there
could be an impact on the Group’s business performance.

* When conducting M&A and entering into new markets overseas, a Head
Office special-purpose committee (Overseas Business Steering Committee)
ascertains risks and deliberates on countermeasures. The Board of Directors
and the Management Committee then deliberate on these matters in
accordance with defined standards.

Kajima has established an International Emergency Response Committee to
ensure the safety of employees and their families and provide local support in
the event of incidents such as a terrorist attack or civil disturbance.

Risks associated
with the shortage of
workers in the
construction industry

In Japan, the number of skilled construction workers in the
construction industry is on the decline, and unless sufficient
measures are taken, it will be difficult to maintain the
construction system. This could lead to effects including a
decline in revenues or a decrease in the profit margin on
construction projects due to higher labor procurement costs.

* |n order to maintain the construction system in the future based on the
Medium-Term Business Plan, the Group is promoting Kajima Work-Style
Reform that aims to improve the work environment not only for employees,
but also for partner companies and skilled workers.

* The Group is improving working conditions by promoting operational
efficiency through greater productivity and by closing construction sites for a
total of eight days out of every four weeks while ensuring adherence to
construction schedules. The Group is also implementing various measures to
improve employment conditions for skilled workers, stabilize their income and
make the profession more attractive to work in.

* The Group is implementing measures to support partner companies in
improving employment conditions for skilled workers. The Group is also
systematically developing automation, labor-saving and robotic technologies
to compensate for the shortage of construction workers.
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Legal and
regulatory risks

* The Group’s business activities are subject to a variety of
laws and regulations, including the Construction Business
Act, the Building Standards Act, occupational health and
safety laws, environmental laws and the Anti-Monopoly Act.
Therefore, in the event of revision of laws and regulations,
the enactment of new laws and regulations, or changes in
applicable standards, there could be an impact on the
Group’s business performance due to the effect on the
contract award environment and costs, depending on the
content of these changes.

In the event of the violation of a law or regulation by the
Group, there could be losses due to criminal or administrative
penalties, business restrictions, or damage to the Group’s
reputation, which could have an impact on the Group’s
business performance.

¢ |In response to the enactment or revision of relevant laws and regulations, their
content and necessary compliance measures are disseminated by the
departments in charge. As a compliance manual, the Group issues the
Handbook for Practical Application of the Kajima Group Code of Conduct,
which is updated as necessary to reflect revisions to laws and regulations and
changes in social conditions. It is disseminated to all officers and employees.

In order to further improve and instill an awareness of compliance, the Group
conducts ongoing training on the Kajima Group Code of Conduct for its
officers and employees via online courses. In addition, departments
responsible for each field formulate rules and guidelines, and conduct training
and audits to further ensure appropriate business activities. For example, in
regard to the Anti-Monopoly Act, the Head Office Legal Department formulates
and revises the Manual for Compliance with the Anti-Monopoly Act, holds
training sessions by lawyers using case studies and audits compliance with the
bid-rigging prevention framework at the Head Office and branches.

Quality, safety
and health, and
environmental risks

In the event of a serious quality accident, personal injury, or
environmental accident in the course of providing various
services, including design and construction, there could be
an impact on the Group’s business performance due to
damage to reputation, compensation for damages, delays in
construction, and re-working costs.

Quality assurance, safety and health, and environmental management are
fundamental to production and corporate survival. Therefore, the Group has
established a basic policy, Quality Assurance Policy, Safety and Health Policy,
and Environmental Policy, and carries out production activities based on
appropriate and effective management systems that comply with relevant
laws, regulations and other societal requirements.

In regard to quality, Kajima has received ISO 9001 certification in both its civil
engineering and building construction operations. Individual overseas
subsidiaries and affiliates have also obtained relevant certifications.

To ensure safety, Kajima has been implementing safety and health management
in conformance with the Construction Occupational Health and Safety
Management System (COHSMS). In terms of environment, Kajima operates
environmental management systems that are compliant with ISO 14001.

Information
security risks

® The Group handles a wide range of information, including
that relating to buildings, customers, management,
technology and intellectual property, as well as personal
information, in the course of providing various services,
including design and construction. If such information is
leaked or lost due to an external attack or the negligence of
an employee, there could be an impact on the Group’s
business performance due to reputational harm,
compensation for damages, restoration costs, etc.

The Group has established an information security policy, and conducts
training using online courses, as well as inspections and audits.

Business partner
credit risks

In the event of credit uncertainty regarding business partners
such as clients and partner companies, there could be an
impact on the Group’s business performance due to the
inability to collect payment for construction work, delays

in construction, etc. The impact could be particularly
significant if the payment for a large construction contract
becomes uncollectible.

Whenever the Group enters into a new project, it reviews the creditworthiness,
financial planning, and payment terms of the customer to avoid the risk of a
payment becoming uncollectible. In the event of new forms of contract or
unfavorable payment terms where payments for construction work would
remain to be collected after the completion of construction, the Head Office
ascertains the risks and takes countermeasures. The Management Committee
also deliberates on these matters in accordance with defined standards.

Whenever the Group enters into a new transaction with a partner company, in
principle, it examines the financial position and other characteristics of the
partner company before entering into a basic construction subcontracting
agreement. In addition, the Group conducts regular visits to major partner
companies to confirm management conditions including their financial position.

Hazard risks
(natural disasters,
pandemics, etc.)

In the event of a large-scale natural disaster such as a major
earthquake or wind or flood damage, there could be an
impact on the Group’s business performance due to
damage to construction in progress, delays in construction,
or damage to Company-owned buildings.

In the event of a pandemic, there could be an impact on the
Group’s business performance, including a decline in
construction contract awards due to an economic downturn
or a decrease in revenues due to the suspension of
construction work.

* The Group is working to further improve its disaster preparedness and
business continuity capabilities through means such as the formulation of a
BCP in case of a disaster and conducting practical BCP drills assuming an
earthquake directly under the Tokyo metropolitan area, torrential rains and
other scenarios.

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group positioned preventing the
spread of infection as a top priority issue, and established a Crisis Response
Headquarters to ensure business continuity and minimize damage to the
greatest extent possible. The Group is gathering information, assessing

risk scenarios, instructing employees in Japan and overseas on actions to
take, providing guidance to partner companies, and implementing other
necessary measures.
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p Disclosure of Climate Change-Related Information
(Disclosure in line with the TCFD Recommendations)

Kajima recognizes that addressing environmental issues including
climate change is a key management issue, and includes “providing
technologies and services for disaster preparedness that support
safety and security” and “contributing actively to society’s transition
to a low carbon footprint” among its material issues. In December
2019, Kajima expressed its support for the recommendations of the
Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD).

While society and markets are increasingly committed to
achieving a low carbon footprint and decarbonization, the world is
already experiencing extreme weather events and floods that are

1. Governance Measures

Kajima has established the Environment Committee as an organ

to deliberate and decide on environmental issues. The committee
is chaired by the President and comprises members from the
management team and executives from domestic and overseas
subsidiaries and affiliates. It deliberates and decides on important
environmental policies and measures, including measures to address
climate change. Important policies are then deliberated and decided
on by the Board of Directors and the Management Committee.

The policies and measures decided on are incorporated into each
division’s business plan and implemented. The next year, the
Environment Committee follows up on progress and results,
thereby leading to further improvements and new initiatives.

The low-carbon policies discussed by the committee have been
integrated as priority initiatives in the current Medium-Term Business
Plan (Fiscal 2018-2020). The Board of Directors regularly follows
up on the implementation of initiatives.

2. Strategy

The construction industry uses materials that emit a large amount
of greenhouse gases during manufacture, such as cement and
steel, and the long operating life of buildings and structures has a
significant impact on the greenhouse gas emissions of customers.
Accordingly, public policies related to carbon pricing and carbon
emissions, zero energy buildings (ZEB) and renewable energy-
related construction markets, and low-carbon construction
technologies have been identified as highly relevant transition risks.
The construction industry has a serious social mission in terms of
contributing to disaster prevention and mitigation. As such, physical
risks that have been identified given the frequent nature of outdoor
construction work include the impact of changing weather patterns,
the intensification of extreme weather events, the effect of rising
temperatures on labor productivity, and corresponding labor
legislation. In light of growing demand for renewable energy and
business opportunities such as differentiation through low-carbon
construction, Kajima believes that it has sufficient resilience.

becoming more severe. We will continue to contribute to the

resolution of social issues related to climate change through our

businesses. This includes contributing to the social mission of the

construction industry in terms of disaster prevention and mitigation,

BCP and disaster recovery.

TCFD|

Board of Directors

Management Committee

Environment Committee

Chairperson: President

Secretariat: Global Environment Office,
Environmental Engineering Division

Organization for cross-divisional response
to issues: Environmental Management
Subcommittee, Construction
Environments Subcommittee, Sustainable
Procurement Subcommittee, Harmonious
Co-existence with Nature Subcommittee

I

Organization for environmental
management promotion by division
Responsible persons: Heads of main

Subsidiary and Affiliate Safety and
Environment Liaison Committee

[

departments at each division
[
Each division
(including branches and project sites)

Group companies

Partner companies

Kajima has estimated the impact on the domestic construction
business in 2030 under the following two scenarios.
2°C scenario’
Scenario in which strict measures are taken against climate change,
and the temperature increase in 2100 is limited to about 2°C above
pre-industrial levels.
4°C scenario?
Scenario in which strict measures are not taken against climate
change, and the temperature increase in 2100 reaches about 4°C
above pre-industrial levels.

1. Parameters used to calculate impact are based on the Sustainable Development
Scenario in the World Energy Outlook 2018, International Energy Agency (IEA),
Japan’s Long-term Strategy under the Paris Agreement, Japan’s Ministry of the
Environment, and other references.

2. Parameters used to calculate impact are based on The Aqueduct Global Flood
Analyzer, World Resources Institute (WRI), Working on a warmer planet,
International Labour Organization (ILO), and other references.
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B Risks and Opportunities

. " Impact on FY2030 profits and losses
Category Risks and opportunities

Risks A carbon tax is levied on CO. emissions during cement and steel
Increase in costs due to manufacture and CO, emissions during construction, increasing _
carbon tax construction costs.
Opportunities  Low-carbon construction becomes price competitive.
Polic Construction market Risks Private sector construction investment declines due to higher taxes.
y contraction due to A decline in private consumption is assumed, similar to the decline that —
higher taxes occurred with the domestic consumption tax hike.
Restrictions on business | Risks Governments cut down on construction investments to meet national
based on CO, emission emission targets. Costs of emission rights trading and purchasing —
allowances certificates (credits) to meet the Company’s emission targets increase.
Chang‘? n 1 he engrgy mix Risks Demand for construction of fossil fuel power generation facilities declines. —
(reduction in fossil fuels)
Increase in demand for Opportunities  Investments in construction of wind power generation and other T4 4
Markets renewable energy renewable energy-related facilities increase.
Opportunities  While the 4°C scenario assumes a certain level of ZEB adoption, under
Expansion of ZEB market the 2°C scenario ZEB will become much more widespread, leading to + + +
higher added value.
Effects of rising Risks Heat stress reduces labor productivity and increases construction
Chronic temperatures on costs as more skilled workers are needed to sustain the same volume — - —
working conditions of work.
] . Risks Extreme weather events cause damage to Group facilities.
Disaster prevention . - , )
IS Opportunities  Intensification of torrential rains and extreme weather events creates
and mitigation, and . . e . X + + + +
; - demand for disaster prevention and mitigation measures including
national resilience
Acute flood control and recovery measures.
. Risks Natural disaster risk areas expand, and factories and other facilities are
Relocation from
disaster risk areas relocated overseas. — +
Opportunities Demand for relocation from low elevation areas is created.

B Countermeasures

* Increase in costs due to carbon tax
¢ Construction market contraction due to
higher taxes

e Restrictions on business based on CO,
emission allowances

Responding to
carbon tax and
emission allowance
regulations

(1) Promotion of activities to reduce CO, emissions during construction
(2) Development and introduction of low-carbon construction materials
(3) Securing of renewable electricity supplies

® Change in the energy mix (reduction in fossil fuels)

* Increase in demand for renewable energy

® Expansion of the ZEB market

o Effects of rising temperatures on working conditions

Developing
technologies for

new markets and
climate change

(1) Selection of focus fields based on the energy mix

(2) Development of design and construction technologies for renewable
energy facilities

(8) Pursuit of business feasibility and comfort for ZEBs

(4) Development of labor-saving construction technologies

Responding to
intensification
of extreme
weather events

e Disaster prevention and mitigation, and
national resilience

* Relocation from disaster risk areas

(1) Promotion of technology development related to disaster prevention and
mitigation, and BCP

(2) Development and application of hazard maps that leverage proprietary knowledge

(8) Construction work that contributes to national resilience and the resilience of
buildings and structures

3. Risk Management

To address climate change-related risks, the Global Environment
Office of the Environmental Engineering Division, which serves as the
secretariat for the Environment Committee, leads cross-organizational
assessments of the environmental impact of climate change-related
risks by the Environmental Management Subcommittee and other
relevant internal departments. Finally, the Environment Committee
deliberates and decides on risks and opportunities each year.

4. Indicators and Targets

In 2013, Kajima formulated and announced the Kajima Environmental
Vision: Triple Zero 2050 as the basis for environmental initiatives. At
the same time, Kajima is implementing activities under Targets 2030,
which sets specific quantitative milestones for 2030.

In line with Japan’s CO. reduction targets under the Paris
Agreement, Kajima aims to reduce CO, from construction (Scope 1
and 2 emissions) by 30% compared to fiscal 2013 by 2030, and to
reduce CO, from construction (Scope 1 and 2 emissions) as well as

All operational risks, including climate change-related risks, are
assessed by the Compliance and Risk Management Committee,
which is chaired by the President, and reported to the Board of
Directors twice a year. In addition, Kajima is working to further
improve its disaster preparedness and business continuity
capabilities through means such as practical BCP drills for torrential
rain and other scenarios, based on its BCP in case of a disaster.

CO, from building operation and other activities (Scope 3 emissions)
by 80% compared to fiscal 2013 by 2050.

Kajima manages its environmental activities by assessing climate
change-related risks and opportunities and reviewing indicators and
targets every three years based on this environmental vision. The
period for environmental targets is synchronized with the Group’s
medium-term business plan. Kajima thus aims to increase corporate
value and solve environmental issues in an integrated manner.
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Compliance

Kajima recognizes that compliance is the foundation of all corporate activities. To articulate this stance, it has
established the Kajima Group Code of Conduct, under which the entire Kajima Group works to promote compliance.

p Compliance Framework

Kajima established the Compliance and Risk Management
Committee with the aim of ensuring thorough compliance.

As for specific measures, under the direction of the General
Manager of the Administration Division, the Legal Department has
formulated and regularly reviews a compliance manual and
conducts training via online courses, while departments responsible
for each business field formulate rules and guidelines and conduct
training as necessary. Each Group company has also established
and implements a compliance framework in line with that of Kajima,
including the formulation of a compliance manual, establishment of
a whistleblower system and training programs.

The Compliance and Risk Management Committee receives
progress reports from the entire Group on the implementation of
these measures as appropriate, receives reports on any major

incidents should they arise, and issues instructions for any
necessary measures or improvements.

The Audit Department, an internal audit organization independent
of operational organizations, also conducts internal audits as part of
its operational audits.

Major Initiatives in FY2019

e Code of Conduct online course
Participants: 22,621 employees, including 8,975 employees from
37 Group companies
Participation rate: 100%

¢ Revision of compliance manuals (5th edition)
Each Group company formulated a revised edition in line with the
Company’s revisions (with the Company’s guidance and support)

1 Fair and Honest Corporate Conduct
. Observing the law and social norms

2 Harmony with Society

N —

. Emphasizing the needs of society and clients

©@

Fair, transparent and free competition,

and appropriate trade of information

&

Protection of intellectual property, rights
and assets

o

Transparent relations with government
Eradication of antisocial activity

N o

. Maintaining adequate accounting

Kajima Group Code of Conduct

1. Building solid community relations
2. Respecting cultures and customs of all nations and people
3. Timely and appropriate disclosures and communications

3 Respect for All People Connected to the Kajima Group
1. Prohibiting discrimination and unfair treatment
2. Providing a safe and secure workplace environment

3. Respecting employees’ unique characteristics and
promoting individual development
4. No child labor or forced labor

4 Responsibility to the Environment
1. Approach to environmental issues

5 Implementation of Corporate Code of Conduct
1. Education and awareness
2. Establishment of an effective internal
monitoring structure
6 Occurrence of Code Violations
1. Accountability and preventive measures
2. Disciplinary action

» Ensuring a Framework for Strict Compliance with the Anti-Monopoly Act

An Antitrust Law Committee has been established under the
Compliance and Risk Management Committee. A range of ongoing
initiatives have also been implemented to establish a bid-rigging
prevention framework within the Kajima Group.

During fiscal 2019, in order to further promote appropriate bidding
activities and management based on the Kajima Regulations for
Preventing Collusion formulated in September 2018, we worked to
raise employees’ awareness of the purpose and content of these
regulations in ways such as Anti-Monopoly Act training sessions
held at the Head Office and branches, and instructions issued by
Head Office and branch management. Compliance with regulations
was confirmed through multiple in-house audits by attorneys, the
Legal Department and the Audit Department.

Group companies engaged in bidding activities related to public
procurement also review their own regulations in line with the
Kajima Regulations for Preventing Collusion. The Company is
actively involved in checking the compliance status of Group
companies by attending their bid-rigging prevention audits and
reviewing reports to more thoroughly ensure compliance.

Kajima has entered a plea of not guilty in ongoing trial
proceedings relating to a March 23, 2018 charge of violating the

Anti-Monopoly Act in connection with construction work ordered by
Central Japan Railway Company for the Chuo Shinkansen Line at
Shinagawa Station and Nagoya Station.

In addition, on July 30, 2019, Kajima Road Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of Kajima Corporation, received a cease and desist order and a
surcharge payment order from the Japan Fair Trade Commission in
connection with the manufacture and sales of asphalt mixture
materials in Japan in violation of the Anti-Monopoly Act. On January
29, 2020, Kajima Road Co., Ltd. filed an appeal with the Tokyo
District Court requesting the revocation of the orders, arguing that
there are errors in the Japan Fair Trade Commission’s findings of
facts and judgments. Nevertheless, the Company is taking the
allegations seriously and is proceeding with steps such as reviewing
its processes and rules regarding the determination of sales prices
of mixture materials, strengthening its auditing framework, and
reinforcing its management of interaction with other companies in
the same industry.

Anti-Monopoly Act Training Sessions Held in FY2019

Participants: 1,339 employees, including 138 employees from
20 Group companies
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¢ Confirming operational status through bid-rigging prevention audits

Selected Initiatives Based on the Kajima Regulations for Preventing Collusion

* Ensuring the recording of all processes leading up to bids for public works projects and selected construction works ordered by private companies
(such as subsidized construction work and construction work for clients acting in the public interest)

* Prohibiting interaction with other companies in the same industry and implementing thorough management when interaction is unavoidable

* When making a decision on bid policy and amounts, ensuring confirmation of whether or not there has been contact or information exchange with
or receipt of documentation from other companies in the same industry

* Ensuring reporting of any approach from other companies that could be suspected of being improper

p Initiatives at Overseas Group Companies

In response to the expansion and diversification of overseas
operations, from fiscal 2018 to fiscal 2019 the Legal Department
conducted interviews with overseas Group companies at their
offices to confirm their compliance frameworks and latest
management status.

p Initiatives to Prohibit Bribery

The Kajima Group implements a variety of measures to prevent
corrupt practices, including bribery.

Clarification of Policies

A relevant section of the Handbook for Practical Application of the
Kajima Group Code of Conduct, which serves as the compliance
manual, clearly states Kajima’s policies on prohibited benefit sharing
and relationships with politicians and public officials.

» Whistleblower System

A whistleblower system (a corporate ethics hotline) has been
established through which Group employees, employees of partner
companies, and others are able to report facts or suspicions
concerning wrongdoing in the Group. Anyone can report, anonymously
if desired, misconduct or legal violations, including corruption such as
bribery involving officers or employees.

In order to ensure the ease-of-use and effectiveness of the
system, multiple contact offices have also been established outside
the Company.

Through online courses and the distribution of information leaflets
throughout the Group, Kajima is ensuring that all employees are
thoroughly aware of relevant rules and use the system when
needed. A separate contact office has also been established for
general inquiries and consultations from external stakeholders.

The system was revised (including expanding the scope of eligible
whistleblowers and the number of contact offices) in fiscal 2019.

Whistleblowing Reports
FY2019: 19 reports

Based on the results of these interviews, we instructed Group
companies to review their compliance programs as necessary. At
the same time, we are developing and strengthening risk prevention
systems that are appropriate for respective countries.

Education and Training

Continuing education is provided through online courses on the
Code of Conduct, and overseas departments conduct separate
training sessions led by attorneys.

Strict Checks of Financial Accounting
Accounting and other departments rigorously check the recipients
and purpose of payments to confirm legality and propriety.

In fiscal 2019, there were no violations of the prohibition on
corrupt practices including bribery.

Corporate Ethics Whistleblower System Framework

Major incident reporting

Compliance and Risk Management Committee

T Regular reporting
Instruction on investigation
and corrective measures
General Manager, < Relevant departments
Administration Division Reporting on investigation Cooperation and support
and corrective measures for investigation and
T Reporting

Chief Officer

corrective measures

System secretariat (Office of Business Ethics)

*

System Offices
Internal | External
(i) Office of Business Ethics © (iii) Law office
 Dedicated phone e Dedicated fax e Phone e Fax ¢ Email
* Dedicated emalil ¢ (iv) Specialist private company
(ii) Branch offices : o Email
* Dedicated email i

T Whistleblowing

Whistleblowers (named/anonymous)

[Kajima Corporation and Kajima Group companies]
e Officers e Employees e Temporary staff e Former employees

[Partner companies, suppliers, outsourcing contractors] (Contact office (i) only)
e Officers e Employees

Note: Each Group company also operates its own whistleblower system
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Directors and Auditors .o ez, 2o

Board of Directors

Yoshikazu Oshimi
President, Representative Director

1974  Joined the Company

2005  Executive Officer, General Manager,
Yokohama Branch

2008 Managing Executive Officer

2009 General Manager, Building Construction
Management Division

2010  Senior Executive Officer

2013 General Manager, Kansai Branch

2015 Executive Vice President,
President (to the present),
Representative Director (to the present)

-
a’

Naoki Atsumi

Representative Director,
Executive Vice President

1986 Joined the Company

1995 Director

1997 Managing Director

2000 Senior Managing Director

2002 Representative Director, Executive Vice
President, Responsible for Executive Office,
Human Resources and Audit

2005 Representative Director (to the present),
Executive Vice President (to the present),
General Manager, Corporate Planning
Division, Responsible for CSR and
Overseeing Executive Office, Audit
Department, New Business Department,
Affiliated Business Department and IT
Solutions Department

Hiroyoshi Koizumi

Representative Director,

Executive Vice President,

General Manager, Building Construction
Management Division

1973 Joined the Company

2004 Managing Director, Kajima Overseas Asia
Pte Ltd

2008 Executive Officer

2010 Managing Executive Officer

2013 Senior Executive Officer, General Manager,
Building Construction Management Division
(to the present)

2015 Representative Director (to the present),
Executive Vice President (to the present)

Masayasu Kayano

Representative Director,

Executive Vice President, General Manager,
Civil Engineering Management Division,
Responsible for International Civil
Engineering Operations

1974 Joined the Company

2001 Chief Secretary

2007 Executive Officer, General Manager, Tokyo
Civil Engineering Branch

2009 Managing Executive Officer

2011 General Manager, Civil Engineering Management
Division (to the present), Overseeing Machinery
and Electrical Engineering Department

2012 Senior Executive Officer
2014 Director, Executive Vice President (to the present)

2015 Responsible for International Civil
Engineering Operations (to the present)

2019 Representative Director (to the present)

!

Hiroshi Ishikawa

Director, Executive Vice President,
General Manager, Sales and
Marketing Division

1989 Joined the Company

1997 Representative Director, Vice President,
Kajima Leasing Corporation

2000 Director

2002 Managing Director

2004 Senior Managing Director

2005 Director (to the present), Senior Executive
Officer, General Manager, Sales and
Marketing Division

2007 Responsible for Sales and Marketing

2016 Executive Vice President (to the present)

2019 General Manager, Sales and Marketing
Division (to the present)

Ken Uchida

Director, Managing Executive Officer,
General Manager, Treasury Division

1979 Joined the Company

2012 President, Kajima Europe Ltd.

2015 Executive Officer

2017 Managing Executive Officer (to the present),
General Manager, Treasury Division (to the
present), Director (to the present)

Nobuyuki Hiraizumi
Director

Koji Furukawa
Director*

Masahiro Sakane
Director*

1984 Joined the Company

2005 Principal Economist, Research Department,
Policy Research Institute, Ministry of Finance

2007 Senior Manager, Asset Management
Service Department, Real Estate
Development Division

2009 Retired from the Company, Advisor, Avant
Associates, Inc. (to the present)

2012 Director (to the present)

1962 Joined Mitsubishi Corporation

1999 Director, Senior Executive Vice President,
Mitsubishi Corporation

2004 Vice Chairman of the Board, Mitsubishi
Motors Corporation

2007 Chairman and CEO, Representative
Director, Japan Post Bank Co., Ltd.

2009 Chairman and CEO, Representative
Director, Japan Post Network Co., Ltd.

2012 Chairman and CEO, Representative
Director, Japan Post Co., Ltd

2013 Advisor, Japan Post Co., Ltd., Advisor,
Mitsubishi Corporation (to the present)

2015 Director (to the present)
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1963 Joined Komatsu Ltd
1989 Director, Komatsu Ltd.

1999 Executive Vice President, Representative
Director, Komatsu Ltd.

2001 President, Representative Director,
Komatsu Ltd.

2003 President and CEO, Representative
Director, Komatsu Ltd.

2007 Chairman of the Board, Representative
Director, Komatsu Ltd.

2010 Chairman of the Board, Director, Komatsu Ltd.

2013 Councilor, Komatsu Ltd

2015 Director (to the present)

2019 Advisor, Komatsu Ltd. (to the present)



Shoichi Kajima
Director, Senior Advisor

1953  Director

1959 Executive Vice President,
Representative Director

1978 Vice Chairman, Representative Director

1984 President, Representative Director

1990 Co-Chairman and CEO,
Representative Director

1994 Director (to the present), Senior Advisor
(to the present)

Audit & Supervisory Board

\

.

Kiyomi Saito Yukio Machida Koji Fukada Masahiro Nakagawa
Director* Director* Audit & Supervisory Board Member Audit & Supervisory Board Member**
1978 Joined Nikkei Inc. 1969 Public Prosecutor, Tokyo District Public 1980 Joined the Company 1981 Joined the Sumitomo Bank, Limited
1975 Joined Sony Corporation Prosecutor’s Office 2007 General Manager, Accounting Department, 2010 Director and General Manager, Real Estate
1984 Joined Morgan Stanley 2002 Director-General, Public Security Yokohama Branch Corporate Business Office, Sumitomo
1990 Executive Director, Morgan Stanley |"VSST‘.QGT|0" Agency 2013 General Manager, Administration Mitsui Banking Corporation
2000 President, JBond Co., Ltd. (currently JBond 2004 lgggﬁ)élrg?ol(igglg:gsg%?égn Sendai High Department, Yokoham? Branch 2013 President an‘d CEQ SMBC Trust Bar?k Ltd.
Totan Securities Co., Ltd.) (to the present) 2015 General Manager, Audit Department 2015 Representative Director & Deputy Chief

2015 Director (to the present) Deputy Prosecutqr-Genera\. Supreme 2017 Audit & Supervisory Board Member Executive, SMBC Trust Bank Ltd.

Public Prosecutor’s Office (to the present) 2018 Audit & Supervisory Board Member

2005 Retired from Public Prosecutors’ Office, (to the present)

registered as attorney
2015 Audit & Supervisory Board Member
2019 Director (to the present)

Takashi Kumano Kazumine Terawaki Yukiko Fujikawa
Audit & Supervisory Board Member Audit & Supervisory Board Member** Audit & Supervisory Board Member**
1983 Joined the Company 1980 Public Prosecutor, Tokyo District Public 1988 Joined Chuo Shinko Audit Corporation
2011 General Manager, Nagano District Office, Prosecutor’s Office 1992 Registered as Certified Public Accountant
Kanto Branch 2014 Director-General, Public Security 1998 Financial Securities Inspector, Inspection
2015 General Manager, Administration Investigation Agency Department, Financial Supervisory Agency
Department, Kanto Branch 2015 Superintending Prosecutor, Sendai High (currently Financial Services Agency)
2017 General Manager, Audit Department Public Prosecutors Office 2000 President, Yukiko Fujikawa CPA Office
2020 Audit & Supervisory Board Member 2016 Superintending Prosecutor, Osaka High (to the present)
(to the present) Public Prosecutors Office 2004 Registered as Certified Public Tax Accountant
2017 Retired from Public Prosecutors’ Office, 2012 Representative Member, Kaikei Jissen
registered as attorney Kenkyujyo (tax accountancy corporation)
2019 Audit & Supervisory Board Member (to the present)
(to the present) 2020 Audit & Supervisory Board Member

(to the present)

* Outside Director as defined in Article 2, ltem 15, of the Companies Act.
** Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Member as defined in Article 2, ltem 16, of the Companies Act.
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Dialogue with Stakeholders

Kajima maintains dialogue with its stakeholders to earn their appreciation and trust, as well as to contribute to the
Company’s sustainable growth and the medium-to-long-term improvement of corporate value.

Customers

The duty of the construction business is to work together with
customers to build structures that address their needs. Therefore,
we strive to understand their true needs through dialogue.

We build relationships of trust through long-term communication
with customers from planning, development, design, engineering
and construction, to post-construction operation, management,
maintenance and repair. We strive to offer the best construction
services based on ongoing dialogue.

Furthermore, we recognize the importance of using our
wide-ranging network to connect customers in order to help
solve their issues.

Based on relationships of trust built through fair transactions,
we share our awareness of issues such as the decline in skilled
workers, securing of human resources, and health and safety
with partner companies working at our construction sites, and
cooperate with them to solve these issues.

Centered on the Kajima Business Partners’ Association, we
have established forums in which top management and general
managers of local branches in each region periodically exchange
opinions with partner companies and discuss effective policies
for solving shared issues.

Employees

We consider reflecting the opinions of the Group’s diverse

employees in Japan and overseas in management and sharing
the medium-to-long-term direction of the Company with
employees to be crucial factors for achieving sustainable growth.

Accordingly, we hold panel discussions between management
and employee associations twice a year. Also, the President
visits construction sites in Japan and overseas to exchange
opinions with employees. In these and other ways, we ensure
thorough communication with Group employees.

Main IR Activities in FY2019

Local Communities

The construction and real estate development businesses are
directly connected to local communities. Therefore, we work to
establish roots in each country and region where we operate,
and to contribute to the sustainable development of society and
the economy.

In addition to contributing through regular business, we believe
that it is the mission of the construction industry to respond to
disasters in such ways as providing support when they occur,
based on advance arrangements with governmental agencies,
and conducting emergency restoration through the Japan
Federation of Construction Contractors.

Our initiatives also include educating the next generation, such
as through annual construction site tours for local elementary
and junior high school students.

Stockholders and Investors

We have set forth our Policy on Constructive Dialogue with
Stockholders, and actively disclose information. In addition, we
work to promote constructive dialogue through the Ordinary
Stockholders’ Meeting, earnings briefings, construction site
tours, one-on-one meetings and other means.

The opinions received from stockholders and investors through
dialogue are reported to the Board of Directors and the
Management Committee in a periodic, timely and appropriate
manner, and are reflected in improvements to management and
IR activities.

123rd Ordinary Stockholders’ Meeting

- Times :

Earnings briefings with the President were held at the end of the second quarter
Briefings for analysts and institutional investors 4 and the fiscal year. IR teleconference briefings were held at the end of the first and
third quarters.

Events such as construction site tours for

analysts and institutional investors 1 Tour of construction site for a highway bridge project

One-on-one dialogue with analysts and 173 Led by the IR Department, created opportunities for one-on-one dialogue with
institutional investors analysts and institutional investors

Released earnings briefing documents, Fact Book, quarterly earnings reports, and
Release of documents via IR website Regularly data on contract awards via the Investor Relations section of Kajima’s corporate
website: https://www.kajima.co.jp/english/ir/
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Social Contribution Activities

Guided by its corporate philosophy, the Kajima Group fuffills
its social responsibilities through its business operations,
addresses social and regional issues, and contributes to
sustained social development.

Centered on construction and real estate development,
Kajima’s business operations at offices and construction sites
significantly impact local communities. As a member of the
communities in which we operate, we participate in local

activities as an important means of communication. Beyond
our day-to-day business operations, we conduct social
contribution activities that leverage the technologies,
experience, personnel and networks we have cultivated in our
businesses. This includes contributing to disaster preparedness
and recovery, community support, environmental protection,
education, support for academic, cultural and artistic activities
through foundations, and volunteer work by employees.

Education for the Next Generation

Kajima Summer School

Over about one month starting at the end of July 2019, we held our third
round of construction site tours at 19 locations across Japan. A total of
417 elementary and junior high school students participated, getting
hands-on experience with operating heavy machinery, surveying and more
at public works construction sites such as shield tunnels and railroads, as
well as building construction sites such as skyscrapers, hospitals, schools
and sports venues.

We will continue to educate the next generation as part of our social
contribution activities. In addition, we will cultivate the interest and
understanding of young people by allowing them to not only view but get
a hands-on feel for construction site operations. We hope that this will help

secure human resources in the future.

At |
" .(.r.'

Experiencing surveying at a civil
engineering site (immersed tunnel)

Experiencing a site foreman’s job

Support for Academic, Cultural and Artistic Activities

Kajima Sculpture Competition

The Kajima Sculpture Competition is carried out with support from the
Kajima Foundation for the Arts, and the Kajima Foundation. We held the
16th Kajima Sculpture Competition, an event established in 1989 under
the theme of Sculpture, Architecture & Space as part of the Company’s
150th anniversary commemoration project and held every other year. We
chose one Gold, Silver, Bronze, and Runner-up prize winner from among
the more than 200 works that were submitted. You can access a video of
the winning works via the QR code.

This competition aims to create a space where sculpture and
architecture meet and to produce artists with new sensibilities.

QR code

Sculpture competition

Kajima Foundations Promote Science, Culture and Art

As a good corporate citizen, Kajima actively supports academic,
cultural and artistic activities. In particular, it has promoted academic
and cultural activities for many years through five foundations.

The Kajima Foundation

Since 1976, the Kajima Foundation has been improving living
environments by enhancing urban and residential neighborhoods and
promoting effective use of national land and resources. It also works to
promote academic and cultural development in Japan, offering
research grants and supporting researcher exchanges. In fiscal 2019,
86 projects were funded, with grants and assistance totaling ¥104.1
million. Research results of funded projects are presented each year.

The Kajima Foundation for the Arts

The Kajima Foundation for the Arts, established in 1982, provides
grants for research in the arts, related publications, international
exchange, and projects to foster art dissemination, aiming to foster the
arts and enrich Japanese culture. In fiscal 2019, a total of 84 projects
were funded, with a total value of ¥70.83 million. Every year, the
Kajima Foundation for the Arts Awards are held to recognize those
who have produced outstanding results from their research, and to
give them an opportunity to present their achievements.

Kajima Institute of International Peace

Established in 1966, the Kajima Institute of International Peace
promotes international peace and strives to contribute to Japan’s
security. It studies and provides funding for research on international
peace and security, economic matters, and issues concerning Japan’s
foreign relations, and then publishes the research findings.

Atsumi International Scholarship Foundation

The Atsumi International Scholarship Foundation has been providing
scholarships to foreign exchange students and developing international
exchange programs since 1994. To date, it has granted scholarships
to 306 students from 51 countries and regions. To build long-lasting
networks among scholarship recipients, approximately every two years
the foundation hosts the Asia Future Conference in major cities across
Asia (in the Philippines in fiscal 2019), and sponsors domestic and
international forums, workshops, and study tours led by former
scholarship recipients who now teach and pursue research at
universities worldwide.

Kajima lkueikai Foundation

Established in 1956, the Kajima Ikueikai Foundation provides
scholarships and financial assistance to university students in Japan,
including students from other countries. In fiscal 2019, the foundation
provided scholarships to a total of 112 students, with a total value of
¥78.9 million.
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Principal Subsidiaries and Affiliates

Japan

Company name Business description

llya Corporation Interior design, consulting, interior construction, procurement for furniture and artwork

ARMO Co., Ltd. Architectural design, facility design, and presentation

ARTES Corporation Building structure design, consulting, and construction engineering

Engineering & Risk Services Corporation Asset evaluation, soil environmental assessment, and disaster risk assessment

Property exterior structure design, landscape planning, greening consulting, and town
planning proposals

Design and

- Landscape Design Inc.
Consulting

Survey and diagnosis of civil engineering structures, new construction and repair/reinforcement

Retec Engineering Inc. .
design, and measurement management

Urban planning, town planning support, public real estate utilization (PRE), public-private

Avant A iates, Inc. )
vant Associates, ine partnerships (PPP), and area management

Global BIM Inc. BIM-related information processing, software sales, and operational consulting

Sale and lease of construction equipment and materials, and subcontracting for various

Taiko Trading Co., Ltd. . )
construction projects

Chemical Grouting Co., Ltd. Ground improvement, foundation construction, and soil remediation

Kajima Road Co., Ltd. Paving of roads, bridges, airports, etc., and manufacture and sale of paving materials

Japan Sea Works Co., Ltd. Ocean port and coastal protection work, and geological surveying

Temporary staffing, subcontracting for construction projects, calculation and preparation of

Kajima Kress Corporation ;
construction plans

Procurement and
Construction

Kajima Environment Engineering Corporation  Environmental and consulting work focused on water and waste

Manufacture of construction machinery, management of installation and other construction work,

Kajima Mechatro Engineering Co., Ltd. and operation and maintenance

Kajima Renovate Construction Co., Ltd. Repair and reinforcement work for civil engineering structures, and sales of repair materials

Clima-Teq Co., Ltd. Integrated facility construction, and renovation

Kajima Fit Co., Ltd. Subcontracting for various construction projects by providing directly employed skilled workers

Clima Works Co., Ltd. Subcontracting for various facility construction projects by providing directly employed skilled workers

Kajima Tatemono Sogo Kanri Co., Ltd. Building management

Kajima Tokyo Development Corporation Leasing and operational management of real estate, and hotel management (Hotel East 21 Tokyo)

Real Estate
Development and East Real Estate Co., Ltd.* Leasing, management, brokerage and appraisal of real estate
L T S Kajima Yaesu Kaihatsu Co., Ltd. Real estate leasing and operational management
Niigata Bandaijima Building Co., Ltd. Real estate leasing and operational management
Kajima Services Co., Ltd. Travel agency, product sales, and business services
Act Technical Support, Inc. Temporary staffing and human resources placement, and events planning
Kajima Leasing Corporation Planning of construction projects, building and equipment leasing
Kajima Information Communication Design, operation and management of the Kajima Group’s information communication technology
Sales and Technology Co., Ltd. infrastructure and various computer systems
Services

Toshi Kankyo Engineering Co., Ltd.

Collection, transportation and processing of waste

K-PROVISION Co., Ltd.

Public relations and advertising planning and production, as well as video production

Kajima Real Estate Investment Advisors Inc.

Real estate asset management, consulting, and buying, selling, and brokerage of beneficial

interests of a trust

One Team, Inc.

Various inspection duties at construction sites, support for ICT tool introduction, and training assistance

Book Publishing  Kajima Institute Publishing Co., Ltd.

Editing and publishing of books and publications

Azuma Kanko Kaihatsu Co., Ltd.

Golf course management (Takasaka Country Club)

Hotel Kajima no Mori Co., Ltd.

Hotel management in Karuizawa, Nagano Prefecture

Kajima Resort Corporation
Hotel and

Sale and management of vacation home property in Tateshina, Nagano Prefecture, as well as golf

course management (Kajima Minamitateshina Golf Course)

Leisure Atema Kogen Resort, Inc.

Hotel and golf course management (Atema Kogen Resort Belnatio)

Nasu Resort Corporation

Golf course management (Nasu Chifuriko Country Club)

Shinrinkohen Golf Club Co., Ltd.

Golf course management

Kajima Karuizawa Resort, Inc.

Management of a golf course, hotel, and ski resort (President Resort Karuizawa)

Greening and

Katabami Kogyo Co., Ltd.
Insurance

Greening landscaping, mountain forest management, and agency handling of property, casualty,

and life insurance

* Company name changed to Kajima Property Management Co., Ltd. on October 1, 2020.

82 Kajima Integrated Report 2020



Overseas

[ =9 § ¢

United Kingdom

te. Ltd.

16]18
e2” ® Kajima

B Australia
Oty Ltd

Kajima Europe Ltd.
Kajima Europe Ltd.

Kajima Partnerships Ltd.

Kajima Properties (Europe) Ltd.

Pario Limited

France

Kajima France Development S.A.R.L.

5

Australia

Kajima
U.S.A.
Inc.

22
E

Kajima Australia Pty Ltd

‘ _‘

Kajima Australia Pty Ltd

Kajima Icon Holdings Pty Ltd

New Zealand
Icon Developments Australia Pty Ltd
S Cockram Projects (Shanghai) Construction &

Engineering Co Ltd.

Kajima Europe Lou Roucas S.A.R.L.

Czech Republic

Kajima Czech Design and Construction s.r.o.

Poland

Kajima Poland Sp. z 0.0.

Student Depot Sp. z 0.0.

Kajima Asia Pacific Holdings Pte. Ltd.

Kajima Asia Pacific Holdings Pte. Ltd.

Hong Kong

Scenario Cockram Limited

Kajima Corporation (China) Co., Ltd.

Shanghai

Kajima Corporation (China) Co., Ltd.

Chung-Lu Construction Co., Ltd.

Taiwan

Chung-Lu Construction Co., Ltd.

Kajima Overseas Asia Pte. Ltd.

Kajima Design Asia Pte Ltd

Singapore
Kajima Overseas Asia (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
Kajima Development Pte. Ltd.
International Facility Engineering Pte. Ltd.
PT Kajima Indonesia

ﬂ Indonesia PT Senayan Trikarya Sempana
PT Jimbaran Greenhill
Thai Kajima Co., Ltd.

Thailand Ramaland Development Co., Ltd.
Bang Tao Beach Ltd.

Bl Malaysia Kajima (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.

E - Kajima Vietnam Co., Ltd.

Indochina Kajima Development Ltd.

The Philippines

Kajima Philippines Inc.

Kajima U.S.A. Inc.

Kajima U.S.A. Inc.

Kajima International Inc.

Kajima Building & Design Group, Inc.

Kajima Associates, Inc.

Atlanta
Batson-Cook Company
Kajima Real Estate Development Inc.
Coreb Industrial Partners LLC
Batson-Cook Development Company
Flournoy Construction Company
Columbus

Flournoy Development Company

Los Angeles

KCS West, Inc.

Kajima Development Corporation

Hong Kong Allied Kajima Ltd. Honolulu Hawaiian Dredging Construction Company, Inc.
India Kajima India Pvt. Ltd. New York Development Ventures Group, Inc.
ew Yorl
Kajima Myanmar Co., Ltd. Anglebrook Golf Club
Myanmar Kajima Myanmar Development and Management Cleveland )
Co.. Ltd X i The Austin Company
., Ltd. Mexico City
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ExeCUtive Officers (As of June 25, 2020)

Yoshikazu Oshimi

Executive Vice Presidents

Naoki Atsumi

Hiroyoshi Koizumi
General Manager, Building
Construction Management Division

Masayasu Kayano

General Manager, Civil Engineering
Management Division, Responsible for
International Civil Engineering Operations

Kazuo Kojima

Responsible for Building Structures
and Research and Technology
Development, Overseeing Intellectual
Property and License Department

Hiroshi Ishikawa
General Manager, Sales and
Marketing Division

Hiromasa Amano

General Manager, Tokyo Architectural
Construction Branch

Masaru Ozaki
Responsible for Architectural
Design Division

Keisuke Koshijima
General Manager, Overseas
Operations Division

Masao Oka
Responsible for Mechanical and
Electrical Facilities

Senior Executive Officers

Takao Nomura
General Manager, Yokohama Branch

Koichi Matsuzaki
General Manager, Kansai Branch

Jun Matsushima
Deputy General Manager, Tokyo
Architectural Construction Branch

Yoshihisa Takada

Deputy General Manager, Civil
Engineering Management Division,
Overseeing Machinery and Electrical
Engineering Department

Shigeru Tomoda
Deputy General Manager, Sales and
Marketing Division

Hideya Marugame
General Manager, Engineering Division

Takeshi Katsumi

General Manager, Administration
Division, Overseeing Safety and
Environmental Affairs Department,
Affiliated Business Department,
and IT Solutions Department

Managing Executive Officers

Hitoshi Ito
Deputy General Manager, Building
Construction Management Division

Masaru Kazama
General Manager, Tokyo Civil
Engineering Branch

Yutaka Katayama
General Manager, Chubu Branch

Takeshi Tadokoro

General Manager, Kanto Branch

Hiroshi Shoji

General Manager, Tohoku Branch

Ken Uchida

General Manager, Treasury Division

Takaharu Fukuda
Director, Kajima Technical
Research Institute

Norio Kita
General Manager, Architectural
Design Division

Yasuhiko Yamada
Deputy General Manager, Tokyo
Architectural Construction Branch

Osamu Shimoyasu
Senior Supervisory Engineer, Civil
Engineering Management Division

Koh Kimura
Senior Supervisory Engineer, Civil
Engineering Management Division

Hidenobu Yoshida
General Manager, Shikoku Branch

Takao Shinkawa
General Manager, Environmental
Engineering Division

Kiyomi Aikawa
General Manager, Civil Engineering
Design Division

Masahito Tanaami
Deputy General Manager, Architectural
Design Division

Koji Sugimoto
President, Kajima Overseas Asia Pte. Ltd.

Executive Officers

Yoshihiko Riho
Deputy General Manager, Civil
Engineering Management Division

Katsunori Ichihashi

General Manager, Executive Office,
Overseeing Human Resources
Department and Center for Shared
Administrative Services

Eiichi Tanaka
General Manager, Nuclear
Power Department

Michiya Uchida
President, Kajima U.S.A. Inc.

Shuichi Oishi
President, Kajima Development Pte. Ltd.

Kazuyoshi Yonezawa
Deputy General Manager, Tokyo
Architectural Construction Branch

Koji Ikkatai
Deputy General Manager,
Engineering Division

Mitsuharu Kodoi

General Manager, Project Development
Group, Civil Engineering Management
Division, Responsible for Safety

(Civil Engineering)

Ryuzo Ikegami
General Manager, Chugoku Branch

Shinichiro Shiozawa
Deputy General Manager, Sales and
Marketing Division

Munehisa Yoshimi
Deputy General Manager, Sales and
Marketing Division

Mitsuru Niizuma

Deputy General Manager,
Administration Division, Overseeing
Public Relations Office

Nobuhiro Kobayashi
Deputy General Manager, Tokyo
Architectural Construction Branch

Katsuhisa Takekawa

Deputy General Manager, Building
Construction Management Division,
Responsible for Safety (Construction)

Tadashi Fujimura
Deputy General Manager, Architectural
Design Division

Hidemitsu Yoshihiro
President, Kajima Road Co., Ltd.
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Miki Ito
Deputy General Manager, Tokyo
Architectural Construction Branch

Tetsuya Ashida
General Manager, Hokuriku Branch

Takahiko Tsukaguchi
General Manager, Real Estate
Development Division

Yoshinori Moriyama
Senior Supervisory Engineer

Masatoshi Bando
Deputy General Manager, Civil
Engineering Management Division

Noboru Sakata

General Manager, Civil Engineering
Technology Department, Civil
Engineering Management Division

Takeshi Kayano
Deputy General Manager, Building
Construction Management Division

Kenichi Nakajima
General Manager, International Division

Hiroyuki Komori
General Manager, Kyushu Branch

Yasuo Murakami
Deputy General Manager, Sales and
Marketing Division

Masami Moriguchi
Deputy General Manager, Civil
Engineering Management Division

Yasushi Kurokawa
Deputy General Manager, Architectural
Design Division

Toru Yamamoto
General Manager, Hokkaido Branch

Masaya Hiraoka
Deputy General Manager, Architectural
Design Division

Hirotaka Takabayashi
General Manager, Corporate
Planning Department



Company Information

Corporate Profile

Company Name Kajima Corporation

Head Office 3-1, Motoakasaka 1-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo 107-8388, Japan
Established 1840

Incorporated 1930

Paid-in Capital Over ¥81,400 million

Number of Employees* 7,887 (non-consolidated), 20,504 (Group)

Business Domains Construction, real estate development, architectural design, civil engineering design,
engineering, and other

Offices* Head Office; Real Estate Development Division, Engineering Division, and Overseas
Operations Division; Kajima Technical Research Institute; Mechanical Technology Center; 12
branches; 27 offices in Japan; 44 offices outside Japan (in 18 countries and regions)

Group Companies* 260 companies (including 95 in Japan and 165 outside Japan)
* As of March 31, 2020

Corporate Organization

Audit & Supervisory Board
Audit & Supervisory Board Members

Stockholders’ Meeting

Board of Directors Office of Audit & Supervisory

Board Members

President Hokkaido Branch

— Executive Office Civil Engineering — Tohoku Branch
Management Division

— Public Relations Office — Kanto Branch
—— Civil Engineering Design Division

—— Corporate Planning Department —— Tokyo Civil Engineering Branch
Building Construction

Management Division
— Audit Department Tokyo Architectural

Construction Branch

——— Architectural Design Division
——— Human Resources Department

— Yokohama Branch

—— Sales and Marketing Division
— Administration Division

— Hokuriku Branch

———  Nuclear Power Department
Safety and Environmental

Affairs Department — Chubu Branch
—— Real Estate Development Division

— Treasury Division — Kansai Branch
— Engineering Division

——— Affiliated Business Department — Shikoku Branch
—— Environmental Engineering Division

— IT Solutions Department — Chugoku Branch
Machinery and Electrical

Engineering Department
Center for Shared =] Kyushu Branch

Administrative Services

——— Overseas Operations Division

Intellectual Property and
License Department — International Division

Kajima Technical Research
Institute
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Stockholder Information .o s 20

Number of Shares - Authorized 1,250,000,000
Number of Shares - Issued and Outstanding 528,656,011 (including treasury stock of 15,131,225 shares)
Number of Stockholders 60,622 (up 4,026 from fiscal 2018 end)
Major Stockholders Stock Ownership Breakdown
Number of shares | Shareholding
Individuals, etc., Financial institutions

(TTTESYZSJCGS uT nr;st Bank of Japan, Ltd. 45,347 8.83 in Japan in Japan
J Truston Servioes Bank Lid 27.31% 32.56%

apan lrustee services Bank, .
(Trust Account) 32,834 6.39
Shoichi Kajima 15,792 3.08
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd.
(Trust Account 7) 10,807 210
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. 10,791 510

(Trust Account 9)

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. Corporations —— .
(Trust Account 5) 10,089 1.95 and individuals

outside Japan

Financial instruments
i i i i i O,
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation 9,171 1.79 25.16% business operators
Other corporations in Japan
Kajima Employee Stock Ownership 8,651 1.67 in Japan 2.61%
O,
JP Morgan Chase Bank 385151 (Standing Proxy: Settlement 7967 155 12.36%
& Clearing Services Department, Mizuho Bank, Ltd.) ! '
The Kajima Foundation 7,235 1.41 *The 151,312 units of treasury stock are included under “Individuals and
other.” The 25 units of stock held in the name of the Japan Securities
Notes 1. In addition to the above, Kajima Corporation has 15,131,225 shares of treasury stock. Depository Center, Incorporated, are included under “Other corporations.”

2. Shareholding was computed excluding total treasury stock.

Stock Price

(¥) (Million shares)
3,000 20

UD“‘
2,000 W Hﬂl
I b
sy 0 e hong 07T
h-ﬂ+°‘r¢h+ﬂf“+*u e Iope I"W“‘i 0
tom 4 0 ?
1,000 200t taeal T
loiéh?'g-,eoo
'"=7°+"D.-'ID"-=?D“.D
0 0
4/2011 4/2012 4/2013 4/2014 4/2015 4/2016 4/2017 4/2018 4/2019 4/2020
* On October 1, 2018, a reverse split was made (two shares consolidated into one) and the stock unit was changed (from 1,000 shares to 100 shares).
The above stock price has been calculated with April 1, 2011 as the supposed date of the reverse split.
External Recognition
P
[ 4 3 D020 CONSTITUENT MECI JAPAN . _...-"{ 2020
’ '41:;E:f’
1" e i
S MEREERL
FTSE‘GDM FI'SE BlO’SEﬂl‘I’I 2020 CONSTITUENT MSCI JAPAN mu-m Hinl ok ey m“m Sompo Sustainability Index
Japan [T TR oy
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Summary and Forecast of Business Performance

Overview of Business Performance

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020, the global
economy slowed due to prolonged trade problems and the
impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19), which spread
rapidly toward the end of the fiscal year.

The Japanese economy remained steady centered on
domestic demand, but it was beset with uncertainties as a
contraction in inbound tourism demand and restrictions on
economic activities due to the spread of COVID-19 had
an unavoidable impact on personal consumption and
corporate earnings.

In the Japanese construction market, demand in both the
public and private sectors remained robust. Restrictions on
production activities due to COVID-19 during the fiscal year
under review were limited and the environment remained
stable in general.

Against this backdrop, the Kajima Group steadily advanced
the measures and investments set forth in the Kajima Group
Medium-Term Business Plan (Fiscal 2018-2020), accelerated
the enhancement of production capacity and improvement of
the competitiveness of its core domestic construction
business, and strengthened the profitability of the entire Group.

As a result, the Kajima Group’s consolidated financial results
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020 were as follows.

Construction contract awards totaled ¥1,752.8 billion, down
12.8% from ¥2,010.1 billion in the previous fiscal year, due to
a decrease in building construction from the previous fiscal
year, when building construction was at a high level. On a non-
consolidated basis, contracts awarded to Kajima Corporation
(hereinafter, the “Company”), including those for real estate
development and other projects, totaled ¥1,182.0 billion, down
18.2% from ¥1,444.4 billion in the previous fiscal year.

Amounts less than ¥0.1 billion have been rounded down.

Consolidated revenues totaled ¥2,010.7 billion, up 1.8%
from ¥1,974.2 billion in the previous fiscal year, mainly due to
increases in building construction and in overseas subsidiaries
and affiliates.

On the profit front, operating income totaled ¥131.9 billion,
down 7.5% from ¥142.6 billion in the previous fiscal year,
mainly due to a decline in the gross profit margin for civil
engineering and an increase in selling, general and
administrative expenses. Net income attributable to owners of
the parent came in at ¥103.2 billion, a decrease of 6.0% from
¥109.8 billion in the previous fiscal year.

Gross profit in the construction business exceeded the
financial forecast due to additional orders and cost reductions
in building construction. Gross profit in real estate development
and other businesses also improved due to such factors as
the effects of investments.

Furthermore, although the results of overseas subsidiaries
and affiliates were affected by temporary factors such as
losses on certain construction projects, the results of
domestic subsidiaries and affiliates were favorable, particularly
in the construction business. As a result, consolidated profits
at all levels exceeded the forecast.

Construction Contract Awards Revenues Operating Income / Operating Margin
Years ended March 31 Years ended March 31 Years ended March 31
(Billions of yen) (Billions of yen) (Billions of yen) 158.3 (%)
2,500 2,500 160 155.3 : 100
2,010.1 1,974.2 2,010.7
2,000 2,000 1,830.6
17958 4 783 1 a5 1,752.8 17407 18218 1. 120
1,500 1,500
80
1,000 1,000
40
500 500
0 0 0
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Japan
Overseas

Operating Income (Left Scale)
-@- Operating Margin (Right Scale)
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Overview of Performance by
Business Segment

Results by business segment were as follows. (Segment
results include intersegment sales and transfers.)

Civil Engineering
(Civil engineering in the construction business operated
by the Company)
Revenues totaled ¥288.0 billion, down 4.3% from ¥301.0
billion in the previous fiscal year, remaining roughly in line with
the previous fiscal year’s figure.

Segment profit totaled ¥17.1 billion, a decrease of 51.2%
from ¥35.2 billion in the previous fiscal year, mainly due to a
decline in the gross profit margin.

(Billions of yen)

(Years ended March 31) 2020 2019  2020/2019 (%)
Revenues 288.0 301.0 4.3)
Segment profit 1741 35.2 (51.2)

Building Construction

(Building construction in the construction business
operated by the Company)

Revenues totaled ¥957.5 billion, up 3.2% from ¥928.0 billion
in the previous fiscal year, due to steady progress in the
completion of large-scale construction projects.

Segment profit was also up, at ¥85.3 billion, an increase of
7.2% from the ¥79.6 billion recorded in the previous fiscal
year, due to an increase in revenues and an improvement in
the gross profit margin.

(Billions of yen)

(Years ended March 31) 2020 2019  2020/2019 (%)
Revenues 957.5 928.0 3.2
Segment profit 85.3 79.6 7.2
Net Income Attributable to Owners of Total Assets
the Parent / Basic Net Income per Share As of March 31
Years ended March 31
(Billions of yen) (Yen) (Billions of yen)
150 250 2,500
120 200 2,000 1,886.7
90 150 1,500
60 100 1,000
30 50 500
0 0
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2016 2017

Net Income Attributable to Owners of the Parent (Left Scale)
—@- Basic Net Income per Share (Right Scale)

Note: The Company consolidated its shares at a rate of one share for every
two shares, effective October 1, 2018. Accordingly, basic net income
per share for the fiscal years ended March 31,2018 and 2019 is
calculated as if the consolidation of shares had been conducted at the
beginning of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2018.

reflect this change.

1,092.8 2

Note: From the beginning of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2019, the
Company has applied “Partial Amendments to Accounting
Standard for Tax Effect Accounting” (Statement No. 28 issued by
the Accounting Standards Board of Japan on February 16, 2018).
Accordingly, total assets as of March 31, 2018 were restated to

Real Estate Development and Other Businesses

(Real estate development business, architectural,
structural and other design business and engineering
business operated by the Company)

Revenues totaled ¥59.4 billion, up 16.0% from ¥51.2 billion in
the previous fiscal year, mainly due to an increase in real
estate sales revenue.

Segment profit increased to ¥8.5 billion, up 57.1% from the
¥5.4 billion recorded in the previous fiscal year, mainly due to
an increase in gross profit in the real estate sales business
and the rental business.

(Billions of yen)

(Years ended March 31) 2020 2019  2020/2019 (%)
Revenues 59.4 51.2 16.0
Segment profit 8.5 5.4 57.1

Domestic Subsidiaries and Affiliates
(Sales of construction materials, special construction and
engineering services, comprehensive leasing business,
building rental business and others mainly in Japan
operated by domestic subsidiaries and affiliates)
Revenues were roughly in line with the previous fiscal year’s
figure at ¥393.1 billion, up 0.9% from ¥389.6 billion.

Segment profit increased to ¥17.7 billion, up 7.4% from
¥16.5 billion in the previous fiscal year, mainly due to an
increase in gross profit in the construction business.

(Billions of yen)

(Years ended March 31) 2019  2020/2019 (%)
Revenues 393.1 389.6 0.9
Segment profit 17.7 16.5 7.4
Total Equity / Owners’ Equity Ratio
As of March 31
(Billions of yen) (%)
900
0510 20011 H1721

600
300

0
2018 2019 2020 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Total Equity (Left Scale)
-@- Owners’ Equity Ratio (Right Scale)
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Overseas Subsidiaries and Affiliates
(Construction business, real estate development business
and others overseas such as in the North America,
Europe, Asia, Oceania and other areas operated by
overseas subsidiaries and affiliates)
Revenues totaled ¥469.0 billion, up 2.9% from ¥455.9 billion
in the previous fiscal year, mainly due to an increase in the
North American region.

Segment profit fell to ¥4.5 billion, a decrease of 27.8% from
¥6.2 billion in the previous fiscal year, primarily due to a
decrease in gross profit in the construction business.

(Billions of yen)

(Years ended March 31) 2020 2019  2020/2019 (%)
Revenues 469.0 455.9 2.9
Segment profit 4.5 6.2 (27.8)

Analysis of Financial Position

Assets, Liabilities and Equity
As of March 31, 2020, total assets were ¥2,172.1 billion, an
increase of ¥80.9 billion compared with ¥2,091.1 billion at the
end of the previous fiscal year. Main factors underlying the
difference included an increase in property and equipment, an
increase in notes and accounts receivable-trade and an
increase in inventories, despite a decrease in cash and deposits.

Total liabilities were ¥1,376.0 billion, an increase of ¥41.8
billion compared with ¥1,334.2 billion at the end of the
previous fiscal year. This was mainly due to an increase in
interest-bearing debt and an increase in advances received
on construction projects in progress.

Total equity was ¥796.0 billion, an increase of ¥39.0 billion
compared with ¥756.9 billion at the end of the previous
fiscal year.

As a result, the owners’ equity ratio improved to 36.5%, up
0.5 points compared with 36.0% at the end of the previous
fiscal year.

Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities resulted in a net cash
inflow of ¥53.0 billion, compared with ¥30.3 billion in the
previous fiscal year. The cash inflow resulted mainly from
income before income taxes with adjustment for depreciation
and amortization, which exceeded the main cash outflows of
the payment of income taxes, a net increase in receivables
and a net increase in inventories.

Investing activities resulted in a net cash outflow of ¥101.8
billion, compared with ¥25.3 billion in the previous fiscal year.
The main contributing factors were outflows of payment for
purchases of property and equipment, disbursements for
loans and payment for investments in unconsolidated
subsidiaries and affiliates.

Financing activities resulted in a net cash outflow of ¥10.8
billion, compared with ¥75.0 billion in the previous fiscal year.
Primary cash outflows were cash dividends paid and payment
for purchases of treasury stock, which exceeded the main
cash inflow from the net of financing and repayment of
short-term borrowings, long-term debt, commercial paper
and bonds.

As a result of the above, cash and cash equivalents totaled
¥255.6 billion, a decrease of ¥59.8 billion, compared with
¥315.4 billion at the end of the previous fiscal year.

Statements of Cash Flows Highlights

(Billions of yen)

(Years ended March 31) 2020 2019 2018
Net cash provided by operating activities 53.0 30.3 1204
Net cash used in investing activities (101.8) (25.3) (47.3)
Net cash used in financing activities (10.8) (75.0) (53.0)
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 255.6 3154 389.3
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Basic Profit Allocation Policy and
Payment of Dividends*

The Company’s basic policy for profit allocation aims to
distribute stable amounts of dividend with a target range of a
20 to 30% payout ratio, while securing adequate consolidated
equity capital, as well as to provide stockholder returns with
consideration of business performance, financial condition
and business environment. The Company will utilize internal
reserves for investments that contribute to sustainable growth
while maintaining financial soundness.

The Company paid an annual dividend of ¥50 per share for
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020, consisting of a year-
end dividend of ¥25 per share and an interim (end of second
quarter) dividend of ¥25 per share. The Company also plans
to pay an annual dividend of ¥50 per share (including an
interim dividend of ¥25 per share) for the fiscal year ending
March 31, 2021.

Cash Dividends per Share

Years ended March 31 (Yen)
50 48.00 50.00 50.00
40
30
20.00

20

12.00
10

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Note: The Company consolidated its shares at a rate of one share for every two
shares, effective October 1, 2018. Accordingly, the above-mentioned
dividends per share are calculated as if the consolidation of shares had been
conducted at the beginning of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2018.

* The forecasts contained herein are based on information available as of the date
of the announcement, May 14, 2020. Actual results may differ materially from the
forecasts due to various factors.

Forecast for the Fiscal Year Ending
March 31, 2021*

COVID-19 has spread on a global level, leading to the
declaration of a state of emergency nationwide in Japan. The
Kajima Group has taken measures to prevent the spread of
COVID-19 and to ensure the safety of its customers, partner
companies and employees of the Group by temporarily
closing its offices and construction sites in Japan and
overseas. Although the situation is expected to remain
uncertain, with concerns about a further spread and
prolonged infection, the Group as a whole will work to

maintain its production capacity and ensure the steady
implementation of its business plans by carefully assessing
the situation, making accurate judgments and promptly
implementing countermeasures.

In terms of the business environment going forward, we
expect investments to remain robust in the Japanese
construction market in response to the need for a sustainable
society, including a plan for national resilience, the transition
to a low-carbon society and technological innovations. We
believe that there will be further needs for the development of
technologies that accurately meet the needs of society, the
establishment of construction systems that take into account
a decrease in the number of skilled workers, and improvements
in productivity. While overseas, the distribution warehouse
market is expanding in line with the growth in e-commerce.

Under such a business environment, the Kajima Group will
respond accurately to the changing conditions and market
trends and continue to actively implement the measures set
forth in the Kajima Group Medium-Term Business Plan (Fiscal
2018-2020). The Group will also work to achieve its
management targets and increase its corporate value by
addressing material issues.

In terms of the consolidated financial forecast for the fiscal
year ending March 31, 2021, the Company expects a decline
in revenues and a corresponding decrease in profits to some
degree due to the impact of COVID-19, in addition to the
fact that we are in a period of low volumes of large-scale
construction work. Domestic subsidiaries and affiliates are
also expected to be impacted by COVID-19 to some extent,
depending on their business activities. Overseas subsidiaries
and affiliates are also experiencing the effects of COVID-19.
The construction business is expected to see construction
site closures for a period of time and a resulting increase in
expenses. The real estate development business is expected
to see a decline in the occupancy rate for managed facilities.

Taking into account the impact of COVID-19 on each of our
business regions and segments, the consolidated financial
forecast for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2021 is as
follows. Consolidated revenues are forecast to decrease by
7.0% to ¥1,870.0 billion, compared with ¥2,010.7 billion in
the fiscal year under review. Operating income is forecast at
¥111.0 billion, down 15.9% from ¥131.9 billion. Net income
attributable to owners of the parent is forecast at ¥80.0 billion,
down 22.5% from ¥103.2 billion.

* The forecasts contained herein are based on information available as of the date
of the announcement, May 14, 2020. Actual results may differ materially from the
forecasts due to various factors.
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Note: In the financial statements and notes, all yen and U.S. dollar

Cn“s o“d uied Bu Iu nce Sheei amounts are rounded to the nearest million yen and thousand

dollars respectively, except where otherwise stated.
Kaliva Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries

As of March 31

Thousands of
Millicns of Yen US. Dollors (Mofe 1)
2020 2019 2020
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash ond cosh eguivalents [Note 17 u.aenmme s 8 255,646 ¥ 315451 5 2,345,376
Marketable securities (Notes 3and 17) m 472 1.018
Crperafional investments in secwities (Motes 3 and 17) 12,356 12,384 113.358
Hotes and accounis receivable—=trade [Notes 8, 15, 17 and 21.0).ceinn 734,159 701,965 &.735.404
Allgwance for doubiful 0ccounts [NO1 17).....c.mmrmsmerm s s (855) (241] (7.844)
Inventories:
Corstruction projects in progress. . R LR REC TN T RTI  UASE HEF A 35 P 43,541 52,050 582 945
Development projects in progress, reol eslole for sale and other [Note §)....... 155,489 136,600 1,428,33%
Other current assets (Mobes 8 ond 17)....... I Y 128,618 104,347 1,179,982
B o T T e s e e e b s M ol 1,349,245 1,322,398 12,378,578
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Land (Moles 4, 5 and 8).... N ——— R e 223,652 178,077 2,051,853
Buildings and structures END1E'S &and EJ .......................................................................... 117.412 122,350 1,077,175
Mochinery. equipmeant and olher [Note Bl......caums i s 23819 19,520 218,523
Construction in progress (Mofe &)......... 26,166 11,753 240,055
Tolal property and equipment, . . i 391,049 331,700 3,587,406
INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS:
Investmeants in securifies (Moles 3, Band 17) 5 ; 244 697 280,321 2,244,927
Inw estments in unconsolidoted subsidiories ond aoffiioles 1Nores 8and I.'-"l ............. 46,256 46,654 407 853
Long-term loans receivable (Notes 7, 8 and 17] 4,585 3,583 50413
Long-term loans fo unconsolidated subsidiories and affifaies [ND1F'.$E and 13’] ----- 44,348 46,319 406,862
Allowance for doubiful accounts (Note 17) s (3.504) {3.704) (32.147)
Deferred tax assefs (Note 14].....eereve 18,636 4,022 170.972
OHhET (MO8 12 s 84,777 59,885 502,542
Total investments and olher 055815, ——————————-—— 431,795 437.078 3941422
TOTAL y P TR A T o ¥ 2,172,109 ¥ 2081176 -3 19,927,404

see notes to consolidated financial statements.
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As of March 31

Thowsands of
Milkons of Yan UL, Dolors (Mote 1]
2020 2019 2020
LIABILITIES AND EGQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Short-term borrowings (Mofes 9 and 17]. s ¥ 99,799 ¥ 85,193 5 915,587
Commercial paper (NOes 10 A 17) i s 45,000 35,000 412844
Currenl porfion of long-term debt [Notas & 7 ond 17)....ccrmmmmmmmsmsmm s 53,408 20,747 489,982
Mates and accounts payable—traode [Mote 17) " 520,453 530,421 4,776,633
Advances received:
Consiruchion projects in progress (Note 11).... R TerIRRT————, 142,088 146,074 1,487 044
Development projects in progress, real estate for sale and othar ..o 13.554 13.833 124 349
Income taxes poyoble (Mote 17)... e e e 30,598 17.664 280,714
Accrued expenses........... i 40,907 38.014 375294
Crher curmant BoblITIES. ..o e - 15%.404 175,374 14462421
ol TNl IO o s it i m s e e e e e 1,125411 1,062,324 10,324,872
LOMNG-TERM LLABILITIES:
Leng-termn dabt [Notes B. #-0nd 17 i 133,598 160,308 1.225470
Deferred tox Babilities (Mote 14)..... i 405 1,943 5550
Deferned tox Bobilities on revaluation surplus of lond [Mofe 4], 19,859 20.695 182,193
Liability for refirement benefits (Mote 12]..... 42,100 40,191 549,725
Equity loss in excess of investments in and loars fo
unconsolidoted subsidianes ond ofiboles. ... ———— 1.208 1,205 11,085
Crthar long-term BOBiTEs (MO8 Bl oo sermrsrsrasssm st sarsssssmsssars 3331 27.566 305,405
Total long-term iobilities . . 250,678 271,928 2299798
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGEMNT LIABILITIES [Motes 16, 18 ond 19]
EGUITY (Mofes 13 and 23);
Commen sfock, authorized, 1,250,000,000 shares;

Tesuacl, S2BASEDY 1 ShUEITNE i iinemsosiaimt i i e e i s B S o s S S s B1.447 81,447 747220
Coapital surplus 43,368 43,2468 397872
REINETE EOITHNETS . c.c1x0mimsseemisrstssminmsnmmsissntstnrssarsstpensinsasmraresss 583,303 507,074 5,351,404
Treasury stock—at cost,

18,077,858 shares in 2020 and 7.748.800 shares in 2019, et mmrerenes (14.421) [6.542) (150,651)
Accumulated other comprehensive income:

Unradlized gain on av glable-for-sale securifias (Mote 3]s 84,212 111,417 772587

Deferred koss on deriv afives under hedge accounting (MNate 18]......cccveeimme (240) [371) (2,202)

Revaluation surpius of land (Note 4) il ey L S Ly b pasa i 19,434 18418 178,312

Foreign cumency ranslabion OoUSIMENTS. ... nmse——— (1,400) 250 (12.844)

Defined retirement benefit plans (Note 12)..... B (1.919) [ 1.803) (17.608)

Tolol..... 791,784 753,278 7,264,092

(Lo a Tt L T N LA =y N 4,234 3,644 38,844
Total equity " 794,020 756,924 73029346
TOTAL ¥ 2,172,109 ¥ 2091174 5 19,927,404

See notes to consolidated finoncial statements.,
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Consolidated Statement of Income

Kaliva Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Yeors Ended March 31

Thousands of
Millior of Yan U5, Dolars [Made 1)
2020 2me 2020
REVEMUES:
Comtruction projects (Note 15} i e e e ¥ 1,791,118 ¥ 1,776,346 5 146432275
Reol estale and other (Moles & and 15w im0 219,634 197,923 2,014,971
Tl T L e e L e e 2,010,752 1,974,249 18,447 246
COST OF REVEMUES:
Comsiruction projects 1.584 538 15599213 14,537,044
Reol estate and other (Note &).... 178,092 163,185 1,433,871
B el Tl O T TN o i S i o i S 1,762,630 1723098 14,170,917
Gross profit 248122 251171 2,274,349
SELLING, GEMERAL AND ADMIMISTRATIVE EXPEMSES. ... s 116,135 108,548 1,045 459
T WD I i g i o s e b 131,987 142,623 1,210,890
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES):
Inferast ond dividends. ... e R 11,435 9956 104,708
1 O B I L o o s i a Lo b T e A T e B B T T A BB e (3.523) 13.432) (32.321)
Foreign curency exchonge gain.... e B4d #1 7.927
Equity in earmings of unconsolidated subsidianies and affiBales. ..., 1,490 3180 13,670
Equily In earmings Of POMNEISNID........mmmm s ——————————————————; 5039 4921 44,229
Less on investments in sbent parnership......c . (#11) [7&7] (8.358)
[Loss]) gain on sales or disposak of property ond equipment—net (Note &) (438) 3,824 (4,000}
Gain on sales of marketable and inv estment secunfies—neat (Mote 3)... s 1 20 9
Woluation loss on morketoble ond inv esiment securities—net (Mote 3. (1.353) {630) (12.413)
Gain on sales of investments in uncomsoidoted subsidiaries and aoffiliates.... 795 145 7.294
Loss on impdrment of long-ived assels [Notes 5 and dlu.emans (14) [&6) (128)
Lifigafion setflement.......c.o oo (29) {38) (268)
Reversal of pravision for loss on Anfi-Monopoly Act 290 - 26,615
Rewersal of foreign currency frarslafion adjustments 1.136 - 10422
Provision for 1055 on Anfi=MOonopoly ACH... s s - (8,702) -
Other—nel...ene, R S S TR L R Ly PRI L AT A 252 4,329 23N
Other income —nSt e g e 17,4647 14,851 141,899
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES. 14%.634 157.474 1.372.78%
INCOME TAXES (Mote 14]:
Current.. e e iy gl e i S 49,659 37413 455 679
Deferred.... (3.821) 7.883 (35,055)
T IV TN DRI o e s 5 i e e B S 45848 47,296 420,624

see notes to consolidated financial statements.
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‘fears Ended March 31

Thowsands of
Millions af Yen UE. Dollars [Hofe 1)
2020 2009 2020
MET INCOME 103,786 110,178 952,165
MNET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS......ccocssmsaimsnsans - (544) 339) (4.990)
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWMERS OF THE PARENT. ¥ 103,242 ¥ 109,837 5 47,175
Yen U5, Dollars
PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK (Mote Z22):
Boxsic nef income® e W 200.99 ¥ 211,567 g 1.844
Cexsh dividends appiicable 1o 1he yar e s i 50.00 50,00 0.45%9

*The Compony consolidated its shares at a rate of one share for every two shares, effeckive Oclober 1, 2018, Accordingly, the basic netincome per
shore and cash dividends per share are calculated os if the corsolidafion of shares hod been conducied at the beginning of the financial yeor

ended March 31, 2019,

See notes to consolidated finoncial statements.,
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Kaliva Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Years Ended Morch 31

Thousands of
Millicns of Ten LS. Dollars [Hole 1)
2020 2019 2020
NET INCOME. ¥ 103,785 ¥ 1o.a7e 5 B52.145
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE [LOSS) INCOME |Mote 20);
Urrealized [loss) goin on ovollale-for-50l8 SECUNTIES .. ————— (26,766) 10,074 (245.540)
Dafared gain (loss] on darivalives under hedge GoCoumniing. ..o e 124 [70) 1137
Revaluafion surplus of Iand (N1 d).....c. e srm s sesassresssrmss B3 - 7.606
Foreign curreancy frarsiation odustrments......... (1.,484) [7.744) {13.615)
Defined refirement benafit plars (Note 12)...... (i [318) (1,018)
Shore of other comprahentive (o] incoms in uncomnolidabed subsidiones
KON IS o i iy s i s s st s b i et W e A Pt (191) 418 {1,752)
Total other comprehensive [Boss) INCOME ... i . (27 59%) 2,562 (253,202)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ¥ 76,187 ¥ 112,740 $ 498,943
TOTAL COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Orwrnees OF Tl PO i i s e e i s e ¥ 754672 ¥ 112,454 L3 694,238
Homconieling InieomsiE. oot oot i s i SRS 515 284 4,725

see notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Kaditas Corporation and Consalidoted Subsidiornies

ears Ended Morch 31, X020 ond 2019

Thousand Ao of Nar
AgouTeialed St
Carirataraive
noors
Cuhifandng [r—— [-p—
vk : Eareraen Copira el avmd Ty _G::: D;mwm
p: : ok T [ ook L_L* ‘n._" b
Shogk® Sacurie hgamnting
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2018 |au pidrw idnly reporied) SIAR5F W H1A447 W ELEc I ] 4195 W {4567) W Fr.AS 0 1223
Curndative effech dos to 1evhion of accounting
shandords for loreign icorkes and ol - - - - - g -
BALAMCE, AFRIL 1, 2008 jos reddabed]o 518959 1447 45304 474,195 (&.567) 100,338 [Fr=i]
Hal rcamrs atbibdable o ewnon al e poent._._. - - - o9 B9 - = i
Crnh div e nc pald:
Firvol fiow prioe yeor, W28.00 pee shore”. - - - - 114,531) - - -
Irarien for cienenl yeear, W24.00 par shore® ... - - - [ 12 454) - - -
Chistgs in gw fed e inledadl of B poranl dus 1o
Foraas o with ranccrkoling infererh... i - - [2 03] - - - -
Pavenal of revabsation seplks of lond._ o - - - a5 - - -
Purchaons of easary soch. o 15 - - - [y - -
Chargs in Beamry shach ofisng Inem changs in
ity in enBSei oecounhid for uing equlty mathed... - = = = [4a) = ¥
e T R — - - - — - 10089 (1L
BALAMCE, MARCH 31, 7019 joa piaiouily tepaiied) ... S18507 B1A44T 43.248 TR [ &a42) me41? 137y
Curmudalive effech due to teviiicn of occounting
shandornds for lonsign wibsldionss and ool - - - 739 - :-m! -
BALAMCE, APRIL 1. 205 jos resdabend] o 518507 1447 T 55 15.543] o [ERT
Wit incars atfibuiobls to Swnan of e paienl._.... - - - 103342 = - -
Crah dhvidwnch pold:
Firol fioe oo yeor, FR00 par thar @, - - - [13.4%1) - - -
Irarien foe cusment yer, ¥25.00 per share ... - - - (12814 -~ - =
3 ] jcyline suepius of land - - - 1 - - -
[8:548) - - - {10,008 & -
Iy - 100 - E-ig - -
= = = = = [FL YY) 131
512578 x  Evaar w4338 w5300 v (el ¥ ez v ()
ailfore of Tan
P
Comoretsruve
noma
g ]
'::::: —— [ i [ee— Tofai
et Tarisiion Lafr L Tadiy
(e L
BALAMCE, MARCH 31, 2018 [on previcnnky reporied]... ¥ 184663 & TR % [1491] w &44,022 ¥ im W AP T
Curmuiative effech due to1evbion of occounting
shorsdonds foe foneign subsichonkes ond offofes .. - = = 2859 - AB58
BALARCE, APRIL 1, 2008 o reddabed) 0 . TH.643 fi1 | 1.4%1]) T 2774 FRET LY
Hat ncors ofribdable 1o cwnen of e parent....... - - - PR EYD - 1o &9
Conh dbvidenah pokd:
2 Rl R e Tral s — - - - [14,531] = (RE el
Irdatien Tor cuenenl oo, ¥24.00 par ihare" .. - - - [ 1 2.454) - | VA4S
Chixge in twresihip inferaat of Fe porent due 1o
Foraac om with nenconkoling Inlererh... - - - [2034) - | 2038y
Pevesrsal of rervalsotion surphoy of lond_._. . | 45] = - - - -
Purcherie ol Beawry tock - - - 31 - 131
Cherge in Feanry 1hech oiing fnam changs In
ity In eniles occounted for wing eaquly methad. .. - - - [&4) - fad)
Wt e hange in ey ke - |6575) (k] La54 [128) 2528
BALAMCE, MARCH 31, 019 jon prae iy reporied) ... 18A18 250 (1803 153278 Lndp TEAR0
Curntathie aflech dus o mvbion of ocoounfing
shardonds o doregn subsichornes and ofBofes = = = [1,178] 6] {114y
BALAMCE, AFRIL L, 200 (o resdabed]— 18.418 250 [k TE2100 T Th] TERE &0
Hat incoms offibuiable 1o cwnen of the porent,. - - - 1033243 - 103,242
Conh di idendh pakd:
Firval T godicsd i, WIE00 potd ahad oo - - - [13.4%0) - [LEE L]
Irtatien e cunesl year, F25.00 per thar i - - = [ze4) = (LI
Paveiual of revalsation prpha of land (41 - - a7 - a2
Purchare of eanry Hock .. - - - (10008 - {10.008)
Ciwposiion of reosury shook
5 rkivie bl 18aek rar 1 - - = Ere ) - ErL]
T e T R — " - {1.650) {118) [2B.401) 554 {27.807)
[TIET = NUTTL L [J-  ——— | 19434 W (1.400) ® 1919 w THLTE W A3 W 00

"I Comnpany comabioted M tkared o1 a rale of ane 1hate fa avery teo thahed, alfectve Oclaber 1, 2018, Accerdingly, humber of shares and pee thare liguel one coleulkaled as i The

consokiafon of tharet kod bean conducied of B and of he fnancial yeor anded Manch 31, D018,

See notes to consolidated financial statements,
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‘Fesors Ershed Marchi 31, 2000 and 2019

Thousoras of LY, Diolan [Hole 1]

Rty il e Ot var
o
¥
Urredioed [
Cwrerer Copral (R ey ‘{I-cnm :‘"_::,W
Shack Sunpha Earings Stock e i m__::
Setutie ALdtrding
BALAMCE. MARTH ¥, 207 [as prevvicualy ieporied]. ... FAT 0 ¥ TR § LAS200 5 (80538 § 10T ] |3.404)
Curruiaiive affech dul ho rev e of acoouniing
L T BT T TS B - - (L% - !tD?}! —
BALAHCE. APFIL 1, 2019 jos restaied] 47,50 RS EreLE (80,538 1.0ONE. 147 [EXTT)
Ml incorme attrbutabls 1o ow e of he paent. - - F4TATS - - =
Coash oty ohenaly paokct
Final lor peiee yoor, 30.24 pie tharm - - (123.771) - - -
BT BTl TR0 b - T L — - - V7580 - - -
s ersal of rey oluation saplus of lond - - m - - -
Puichani of Faaiury §lock - - - (F1818) - -
Dlipaution of Fecay 13ack
o e Ticied stock ofk - "nr = 2m i -
Not chorge n he yeu - - = = (245,50) 1202
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 300 TTIW % IWTETI 5 5351804 _ 3 (WS0ME1) _ 5 ITISRT _ 5 (3303)
Trapissarali of AL Coobews [l 11
AL ] ol
[ ]
i oms
[ Oefrad
T"w Cungncy A—— s hicr crdrealing Tokal
E“ frorea iah Bpratt e Erity
Ackatmaniy L=
BALANCE, MARCH 31, X0 o prviouly tedertaed]. e - 170807 3 22 3 (14543 3 AFIOBOP 3 A4y 3 ARLISE
Cumuative elfech due o reviion of accouniing
stanckords for fonsign subakokores ondoffloies. .. — = - 10807 i ]
BALANCE, AFFIL |, 2019 jos rostated) OB T (1T aﬁﬁ‘ﬁl _'ﬁ'iﬁi (X [
Ml Income ofrbulobls o ownss ol eporend_ - - —_ TS - TS
Coomi v it ok
Fincl for price poar, $0.24 pa thaee, - - - {123.77) = (V23.771)
inberim o cument peor, $0.23 per thar e - - - {117.560) - (117.550)
Fire it o by csbulion sk of kane 7.505 - - 7404 - 7404
Purchaose of Feamry shock . - - - (FLELE) - {FLATE)
Dispotificn of racniay 18ock
R ] 1A PTIAMIGAON. e roms o rems s e s s - — - ama = 1018
Ml changss in e year - (15,138} {1.064) (30.560) SA5 {355.110)
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2020 S WBM2 3 (128ss) 5 (17404) 3 TIA062 % R4 3 7300934

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Kadlitas Corporation and Consafidated Subsidiaries

weors Ended March 31

Tresoneh of
Ml of Yon LS. Doiars [Mate 1)
2020 008 2020
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
INCOITIE B OIS IBCOITIE BOD0BS ... ccicxs i rmssimsisssimas s 58 5 4884 £ 8 A S A 147 434 ¥ 157 474 5 1.372.78%
Acustrmenis for
(36,688) {50.878) (334.587)
Depreciation ond amortization 19,962 19,166 183,138
Increae (decrea) in provishon 1or SouBIIUl BECOUNTE. .o —i———— 112 2956 1,028
Forelgn cumency exchange jgoin) loss..... (247) pary (2.450)
Ecyuity in earnings of unconsolidabed subsidiones and offifates (1.490) (3180 (13.670)
(Decrease) increase in provision for koss on Anfl-Monopoly Act {2.201) B.702 [24.615)
Paymeants related fo Antl-Monopoly Act (5.802) v [53.22%)
Reversal of forelgn currency ranskaBion adustmenls - (1,134) - (10.422)
Woluaticn loss on morkeiable and inw estment secwities—net.... 1.353 &30 12413
Loss (pain) on sakes of dsposal of property and equipment—nel 434 [3.824] 4,000
Gain on soles of markeloble and investment securlies—nl....com i ——————— {1 [0) (%)
Gain on soles of investments in unconsclidated subsidiories and offfates.. ... (795) [1435) (7.2%4)
Lods on impairment of kng-bved ool 14 ] 128
Changes in operaling assets and lablities:
Increme in receivables (33.298) (79251} (305.486)
T I N OIS i s s st e e (31,045) [13.495) (284.817)
(Decrecse] increase in payables (8.491) 25,374 (79.734)
Increme (deciecma) in odvances received 15244 139,992 140,037
Increcse [decredse) i OCCIUET B0IEMIEE. wiwimie i i —————————————— 292 [256) 24,798
Increme in kability lor retrement bamnelits 1,770 2025 14.23%
TS Y O ITMIT (IEBE. o s omee s et v v s e e vt e e (13.29%) [ 14,1:24] (122.009)
[Decrese] increase In other Boblities {7.2%2) 22,146 [64.8%7)
Oher—nl,..... 4,300 _ﬂ.ﬁ?l 37.44%
Net cash provided by operafing activilles.......ws e £3.041 30,390 484,798
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Payment for purchases of marketable and investment securities (2.764) (8.121) (25.358)
Peryresnt fof inv estments in unconsoldated subsiciaries and affiates (11.831) (7502} (108.541)
Proceads from sokes and redemption of marketalble and Investrment securfbes ..., 133 71 1230
Proceads from sobed and redemplion of invesiments in unconsobdaled subsiciaries
CIHEE CITIIIED. .. vvvms e svmascer s s s msss s s e A P 798 192 7.4
Payment for purchoses of property and equipment (81,1460) 123.407) {744.587)
Proceeds from saies of property and equipment 5523 22.545 50,670
Payment for purchoses of intongibhe ossets.....ciwiwe. s {2.699) 12.771) [24.761)
Purchoses of shares of subsidiories resulfing in change in scope of comoldalion [Nole 21.b)....... (377) 2.434) (3.45%)
T T O T I e i i e e b M b by e o b e i (16,418) 1 12.003) (152.459)
Proceeds from colection of keons 4,124 13,248 37853
Other—nel 3056 (5.384) 28,087
Net cash used in inv esting Ochiviles....cocmem e ————————————— {101,813) {25344 [734,064)
FINAMCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase in short-lemm bormowings —mBl... o —————— 14,950 18,679 137,156
lssuance [repayment] of commercial paper—net 10,000 | 26.000) 91,743
Proceeds from Bsuance of long-termdebl.....c.cumimimimiemismsimsmmimi s ————————— —— 24,760 15363 227,154
Repayment af long-term daebl (30,833) 152,719} (282.872)
Proceeds from Bsuance of boncs 10,000 - 71,743
Repayment of lease obigofions (2.349) [#72) (30.908)
Peryrnent los purchaies of Memury slock {10,008) [31) {91.818)
Cash dividends pold, e {26,305) | 24,985 {241,331)
Other—net (42) {2363} [56%)
Ne't cash uied in INGNCng SCIVIIES s —————————————-————— — —— (10,847) | 75.008) (99.698)
FOREIGH CURREMCY TRAMSLATION ADJUSTMENTS ON
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS [184) |3.534) [1.706)
MET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (5%.805) {73.8%8] (548.670)
CASH AND CASH EGUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 315451 369349 2.894.04%
CASH AND CASH EGUIVALENTS, EMD OF YEAR 255, 644 ¥ 315451 3 2345376

see notes to consolidated finoncial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

EAJIMA Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Year Ended March 31, 2020

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying consclidated financial statements of Kajima Corporation (the “"Company”) and its consclidated subsidiaries
(together, the "Companies”) have been prepared in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Jopanase Finoncial instruments
and Exchange Act and its related cccounting regulations and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan
{“Joponese GAAP"), which are different in certain respecis as 1o the application and disclosure requirements of International Fnancial
Reporting Standards [“IFRSs").

In preparing these consolidated finoncial statements, cerlain reclassifications and rearangements have been made to the
consolidated financial statements issued domestically in order to presant them in a formm which is mare familior to readers oulside Japan.
In addition, certain reclassifications have been made to the consolidated financial statements for the yeor ended March 31, 2019, to
conform fo the classifications used in the consolidated finoncial statements for the year ended Maorch 31, 2020,

The consalidated financial statements are sicled in Japanese yen, the curency of the country inwhich the Company is incorporated
and operates. The fransiations of Japanese yen amounts into U.5. dollor amounts are included solely for the convenience of readers
gutside Japan and have been made at the rate of ¥109 to 31, the approximate rale of exchange at March 31, 2020, Such franskations
should not be construed as representations that the Jopanese yen amounts could be converted into U5, dollars at that or any other
rate,

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Consoiidation — The consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2020, inclede the accounts of the Company and its 144
[137 in 2019) significant subsidiaries,

Under the confrol and influence concepts, those companies in which the Company, directly or indirectly, is oble to exercise coniral
over operations are fully consclidated, and those companies over which the Companies have the ability fo exercie significant
influence are accounted for by the equity meihod,

Another 34 (33 in 2019} subsidiaries were not consolidaled os they would not have o material effect on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

All unconsobdated subsidiaries and 82 (72 in 2019) affiiales were accounted for using the equity method.,

{The Company, its subsidiaries and affiliates are collectively refered o as the "Group.”)

Goodwil, the excess of the cost of acquisition over the foir value of the net assets of on acquired subsidiary or affiiate af the date
of acquisifion, is amortized using the straight-line method over its useful lite that goodwill is expected fo have an effect,

Al significant intercompany balaonces and fransactions hove been eliminated in consolidation. All material unrealized profit
included in assets resulting from infercompany transactions is also eliminated.

As of March 31, 2020, the Company hod 2 special purpose entities (2 in 2019) which were established and are being operated for
the purpose of lquidation of real estate, and as such are not consclidated in cccordance with Jopanese GAAP. The total assets and
iabiities of such special purpose enfiies were ¥42.440 milion (3391193 thousand] and ¥42.431 milkon (3391110 thousand),
respectively, as of March 31, 2020, and ¥42.782 milion and ¥42.773 milion, respectively, as of March 31, 2019. The Company
recognized lease payments of ¥3,492 milion ($32,037 thousand) and ¥3,327 milion based on leqse agreemenis of real estate for the
years ended March 31, 2020 and 2017, respectively. Certain domestic subsidianies recognized revenues of ¥198 milon ($1.817
thousand)] and ¥252 milion from repair works for the yvears ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The investrment in silent
parinership was ¥4, 109 million (354,044 thousand] and ¥5,933 milkon as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, respeciively, and its related
distributed profit was ¥1,63% milion ($15.037 thousand) and ¥1.527 milion for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively,

The breakdown ond changes of fully consolidoted companies and companies occounted for using the equity method are
summarized below:

(1] Breokdown as of March 31, 2020

1] Number of consolidated subsiciaries to 144

Taiko Treding Co. Lid. Kgjima Rood Co. Ud; Kgimo Leasing
Corporation; Chemical Grouting Co., Lid.; Kgjimao Tatemono Sogo
Kanr Co., Lid.: Kajima US.A. Inc. (KUSA) and its 31 subsidiaries; Kajima
Asia Pacific Holdings Pte. Ltd.* (KAP) and its 45 subsidiaries; Kajima
Europe Lid. [KE) and its 25 subsidiaries; Kajima Ausiralia Pty. Lid. (KA)
and its 26 subsidiories; Chung-lu Construction Co., Ud. and 7
subsidiaries of the Company

2] HNumber of unconsolidated subsidiaries P34

accounted for using the equity method ARTES Corporation, Jopan Sea Works Co., Lid. and 32 other companies
3] HNumber of affiiates accounted for using ;82

the equity method Katabami Kogyo Co., Lid, and 81 other companies

*Kejma Oveneas Asa Ple, Lid, changed ils name 1o Eafima Asia Pacilic Holdings Ple,
Lid. on July 19, 3019,
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[2) Changes for the year ended March 31, 2020

1) Hewly consolidoted companies i 1 subsichary of the Company, & subsidiaries of KE, 1 subsidiary of KAP
and 2 subsidiaries of KA due o establishment and ccquisition

2] Companiges excluded from consolidation i Kajimo Europe BV, 1 subsidiory of KE and 1 subsidiary of KA
due fo kquidation and fransfer to affiiotes resulting from sales of
interests

3) Companies newly accounted for using 1 subsidiory and 12 affiictes due to establishment, acquisition

the equity method and transfer from consolidated companies resulting from sales of

interasts

4) Companies excluded from the equity method ;2 affiiotes due to sales of shores and inferasts

- o - o o . o - o R Jﬂ‘pﬂnﬂgg
accounting slandurds prssc'.riha that Tha ucc:c:untlng poh::las u:md procadures apphed h::n a parent company and its subsidiaries for
similar transactions and events under similar circumstances should in principle be unified for the preparation of the consolidated
firancial stotements. However, financial statemenis prepared by foreign subsidiaries in cccordance with either IFRSs or accounfing
principles generally accepted in the United Stales of america ["U.5. GAAP"] tentalivaly may be used for the consclidation process,
except for the following items that should be adjusted in the consolidation process so that net income 5 accounted for in
accordance with Jopanese GAAFP, unless they are not materiak: (1) amortization of goodwill; |2} scheduled amortization of actuarial
gain or loss of pensions that has been recorded in equity through other comprehensive income; (3} expensing capitalized costs of
research and development; (4) cancellation of the for value model of accounting for property, plont and equipment and
investment properties and incorporation of the cost model of accounting: and |5) recording o gain or loss through profit or loss on
the sale of an investment in an equity instrurnent for the difference between the acguisition cost and seling price, and recording
impairment loss through profit or loss for other-than-temporary declines in the fair value of an investment in an equity instfrument,
where a foreign subsidiary elects 1o present in ofher comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of an investment
in an equity instrument,
nification of A nting Palicies Applied t i Affilict th ity heih — Japanese accounting standards require
adjustments to be made to conform the affiiote’'s accounting policies for similar fransactions and events under similar circumstances
to those of the parent company when the offiliote’s financial statements are used in opplying the equity method, unless it is
impracticable to determine such adjustments. In addition, financial statements prepared by foreign affiiates in accordance with
either IFRSs or 1.5, GAAP tentatively may be used in applying the equity method if the following items are adjusted so that net income
is occounted for in cccordance with Japanese GAAP, unless they are not material: (1] amordization of goodwill; [2) scheduled
ameortization of actuarial gain or loss of pensions that has been recorded in equity through other comprehensive income; (3]
expensing capilalized costs of research and development; (4) cancellation of the fair value model of accounting for property, plant
and equipment and investment properties and incorporation of the cost model of accounting; and (5) recording a gain or loss
through profit of loss on the sale of an investment in an equity instrument for the difference between the acquisition cost and selling
price, and recording impairment loss through profit or loss for other-than-temporary declines in the fair value of an investment in an
equity insirument, where a foreign affiiote elects fo present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of
an investment in an equity instrument.

d. Business Combinations — Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method. Acquisitionrelated costs, such as
advisory fees or professional fees, are accounted for as expensas in the periods in which the costs are incured.

e. Cosh Equivalents — Cash equivalents are short-term investments that are readily convertible into cash and exposed to insignificant
risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents include lime deposits and certificates of depaosit, all of which mature or become due within
three months of the date of ocquisition,

f. Inventores — Construction projects in progress are staled at cost as determined on a specific project basis. Reloted general and
administrative expenses and financial charges are principally excluded from such costs,

Jopanese accounfing standards require that inventories held for sale in the ordinary course of business be measured af the lower
of cost or net seling value, which is defined as the seling price less additional estimated manufacturing costs and esfimated direct
seling expenses. The replocement cost may be used in place of the net seling value, if appropriate,

As aresult, gross profit for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, decreased by ¥240 million ($2,202 thousand) and ¥5%5 million,
raspactively.

However, in the case of certain overseas subsidiaries, construction projects in progress, development projects in progress and real
estate for sale are stated ab cost, when not in excess of net realizable value.

g. Copitolizotion of Interest — Interest costs incurred for real estate development projects conducted by certain overseas subsidiaries
have been copitalized as port of the development costs of such projects. Interest expenses copitalized were ¥408 million ($5.578
thousand) and ¥352 milion for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively,

h. Morketoble Secuities, Operationgl Investrments in Securities and Investments in Securities — Marketable securities, operational

investments in sacurities and investmeants in securities are classified and accounted for, depending on management’s intent, s

follows:

{1} Trading securities, which are held for the purpose of earning capital gains in the near term, are reported of fair value, and the

related unrealized gains and losses are included in @amings:

{2} Held-to-moturity debt securities, for which there is a positive infent and obility to hold o moturity, ore reported ot omortized cost;

and
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(3] Availoble-for-sale securities, which are not classified as either of the aforementioned securities, are reported at fair value, with

unreglized gains and losses, net of applicable taxes, reported in g seporate component of equity.

All securities held by the Companies are chassified as available-for-sale secwrities. The cost of securities sold is determined based on
the moving-average method. Nonmarketable avallable-for-sale securities are mainly staled af amortized cost or at cost determinad
by the moving-avercge method cccording fo ther nature. For other-than-temporary declines in fair value, ovailable-for-sale
securifies are reduced to net realizable value by a charge 1o income.

i. Property and Equipment — Property and equipment are principally staoted at cost, nel of aoccumulated degpreciation.
Depreciation has been principally computed using the declining-balaonce method while the sirgight-ine method & applied to
bwildings acquired on or after April 1, 1998, and building improvements and structures acquired on or after April 1, 2016,

The esfimated useful lives for buildings ond structures range from 2 to 50 years, and for machinery, equipment and other, range
from 2 to 25 years.

Howewver, in the accounts of certain overseas subsidiares, depreciation is principally colculated using the straight-iine method over
the estimated useful lives of the respective assets.

Accumulated depreciafion totaled ¥322,274 milion [$2,956.442 thousand) and ¥314,352 milion as of March 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively,

j-  Long-lived Assets — The Companies review their long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carying amount of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable, An impairment Ioss is recognized if the carrying
amount of an asset or osset group exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the confinued use
and eventual disposition of ihe asset or asset group. The impairment loss would be measured as the amount by which the camying
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of the discounted cash flows from the continued vse and
eventual disposifion of the asset or the net seling price at disposition.

k. Alpwonce for Doubtiyl Acgounts — Allowance for doubtful accounts provided by the Company and its domestic consolidated

subsidiaries is stated in omounts considered to be appropriote based on each company's past credit loss experience and an

evaluation of potential losses in the receivables and others outstanding. However, the overseas consolidated subsidiaries provide for
such possible losses using management's estimate.

Eetirement Banefits — The Company, its domestic consolidated subsidianias, and certain overseas consolidated subsidianes have
funded and/for unfunded refiremeant bensfit plans covering ther employees, In addition, the Company, certain domestic and
overseqs consolidated subsidiaries have defined confribution plans.

Thie Company accounts for the Bability for refirerment benefils based on the projected benefit obligations and plan assets at the
balance sheet date, The projected benefit obligations are attibuted to perods on a benefit formula basis, Actuarial gains and losses
that are yet to be recognized in profit or loss are recognized within equity [occumulated other comprehensive income], affer
adjusting for tax effects and are recognized in profit or loss on a straight-ine basis over 10 years no longer than the expacted average
remaining service perod of the employees. The discount rate is determined using a single weighted-average discount rate reflecting
the estimated timing and amount of benefit payment.

m. Asset Retirement Obligations — An asset retirement obligation is recorded for a legal obligation imposed either by law or confract
that results from the acquisition, construction, development and normaol operation of a tangible fixed asset and is associated with
the retirement of such tangible fixed asset, The asset retirement obligation is recognized as Ihe sum of the discounted cash flows
required for the future asset refrement and is recorded in the period in which the obligation i incured if o reasonable estimate can
be made. If a reasonable estimale of the asset refirement obligaiion connot be made in the pericd the asset refirement obligation
i incumed, the Bability should be recognized when a reasonable estimate of the asset retirement obligafion can be made, Upon
initicl recognition of a liobility for an asset refirement obbligafion, an asset retirement cost is caopitalized by increasing the comying
amount of the reloted fixed asset by the amount of the liability. The asset retirement cost is subsequently allocated o expense through
depreciation over the remaining wseful life of the amset. Over fime, the kability & accreted fo its present value each period. Any
subsequent revisions to the timing or the amount of the original estimate of undiscounted cash fiows are reflected as an adjustment
to the camying amount of the liability and the capitalized amount of the relaled asset refirement cost.

n. Construction Contracts — Construction revenue and construction costs are recognized by the percentage-of-completion method
if the cutcome of a construction confract can be estimated reliably, When total construction revenue, total construction costs and
the stage of completion of the contract at the balance sheet date can be reliably measuwed, the outcome of a construction
contract is deemed fo be estimated refiably. If the cutcome of a construction contract cannot be reliably estimated, the completed-
contract method should be applied. When it is probable thal the total construction costs will exceed total construction revenue, an
estimated loss on the contract should be immediately recognized by providing for a loss on such construction confracts,

In the overseas consolidoted subsidiaries, construction projects are mainly recorded uwsing the percentage-cf-compistion method.

The revenues posted by way of the percentoge-of-completion method for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, were
¥1,660.126 milion ($15,230.514 thousand) and ¥1,438,837 milion, respectively.

The Companies provided for foreseeable losses on a contract bocklog, which was recorded in other current Babilities. The accrual
for foreseeable losses on the confract backlog was ¥12.515 milion [$114.817 thousand] and ¥12,852 millicn as of March 31, 2020 and
2019, respectively.

o. Costs of Research and Development and Debenture lssyance — All research and development costs ond debenture issuance
costs are charged to income as incurred. Costs of research and development for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, totaled
¥16,443 million [$150.853 thousaond) and ¥13,96% milion, respectively.

p. Legses — Finance lease tfransactions are copitalized by recognizing lease assets and lease obligations in the balance sheet.

All other leases are mainly accounted for as operating leases.
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. Bonyses fo Directors — Bonuses to directors are accrued at the end of the year to which such bonuses are atfributable,

r. Income Taxets — The provision for ncome taxes is computed based on the pretox income included in the consolidated statement
of income, The asset and liobility approach is used to recognize defered tax assels and liobiities for the expected future tax
consequences of temporary differences between the comying amounts and the tox bases of assets and liobilities. Deferred income
toxes are measured by applying currently enacted income tax rates 1o the temporary differences.

The Company files @ tax refurn under the Consolidated Corporate-Tax Systemn, which allows companies to base fox payments on
the combined profits or losses of the parent company and its wholly owned domestic subsidiaries.

The curent Consolidated Corporate-Tax System provided by Corporate Tax Act of Japan will be replaced by Group Tax Sharing
Systern established by virtue of “Act on Partial Revision of the Income Tax Act” [Act Mo. 8 of 2020) from the financial year beginning
on or after April 1, 2022, Conceming the fransifion to the new Group Tax Sharing Systemn and reloted revisions made fo Non-
consolidated Corporate-Tax System, the Company ond cerfain domestic subsidiones did nol odopt Poarograph 44 of
“implementation Guidance on Tax Effect Accounting™ (Guidaonce Mo. 28 issued by the Accounting Stondords Boord of Jopan
{“A3B)") on February 14, 2018) pursuant to Poragraph 3 of “Practical Sclution on the Treatment of Tax Effect Accounting for the
Transition from the Consolidated Corporate-Tax System to the Group Tax Sharing System” (Practical Issues Task Force No. 37 issued by
ASBJ on March 31, 2020). Accordingly, deferred tax assets and defermed tax iobilities on the consolidaoted balance sheet as of March
31, 2020, were computed based on the previous Corporate Tax Act.

5. Foreign Curency Tronsoctions — Al short-term and long-term monelary receivables and payaobles denominated in foreign
curencies are fransiated into Japanese yen at the exchange rates as of the balance sheet date. The foreign exchange gains and
losses from translation are recognized in the consolidated statement of income to the exient that they are not hedged by forward
exchange contracts or curency swaps.

t. F N ni Financial Stat nts — The balance sheet accounts and revenue and expense accounts of the overseas
consolidated subsidiaries are franslated into Japanese yen at the curent exchonge rates as of eoch balonce sheet date except for
equity. which is franslated at the historical exchange rate.

Differences arising from such franslation are shown as “Forgign curency franstation adjustments” under accumulated olher
comprehensive income in a separate component of equity.

v, Dervatives and Hedaging Activities — The Companies use derivative financial instruments to manage their exposures to fluctuations
in foreign exchange and intersst rates. Foreign exchange forward contracts, cumency swaps and interest rate swops are principally
utilized by the Companies to reduce the risks arising from the faciors menfioned above. The Companies do not enter into derivatives
for rading o speculative purposes,

Derivative finonciol instruments are clossified ond accounted for as follows:

(1) All derivatives are recognized s either assels or liabilities and measured at fair value, and gains or losses on derivalive transactions
are recognized in the consolidated statement of income; and

{2} For derivatives used for hedging purposes. if such derivatives qualify for hedge cccounting because of high comrelation and
effectivenass between the hedging instrumenis and the hedged items, gains or losses on derivalives are defemrmed until maturity
of the hedged transoctions.

The derivative instruments applied for forecasted or committed tronsactions are measured at fair volue, but the unrealized
aains/losses are defemed until the underlying fransactions are completed,

The monetary debts and credils denominated in foreign currencies, for which foreign exchange forward contracts or curency
swaps are used to hedge the foreign curency fluctuations, are transioted at the contracted rate if the forward contracts or cumency
swaps qualify for hedge accounting.

Interest rate swaps which qualify for hedge cccounting and meet specific matching criteria are not remeasured at market value,
but the differential poid or received under the swap agreements is charged to income.

v. Per Share Information — Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income affributable to common stockholders by
the weighted-averaoge number of common shares oulstanding for the period.

Dilvted net income per share is not disclosed because the Companies did not have dilutive shares for the years ended Morch 31,
2020 and 2019.

Cash dividends per share presented in the occompanying consolidated statement of income are dividends applicable to the
respactive financial years including dividends to be paid after the end of the year,

Based on the resolution at the Ordinary Stockholders’ Meeting held on June 24, 2018, the Company consolidated ifs shares ot o
rate of one share for every two shares, and changed the number of its shares constitufing one unit from 1,000 shares to 100 shares,
effective October 1, 2018, Accordingly, all share and per share figures are calculated s if the consolidation of shares hod been
conducted at the beginning of the year ended March 31, 2019 to provide data on a basis comparable to the year ended March
31, 2020. Such restatements include calculations regarding the Company's weighted-average number of common shares, basic net
income per share. ond cash dividends per share.

103 Kajima Integrated Report 2020



w. Blenw A nting Pr i i}

(1] On March 31, 2020, the ASB) ssued ASB) Statement Mo, 29, “Revised Accounting Standard for Revenue Recognition,” and ASBJ
Guidance No. 30, "Revised Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Revenue Recogniticon.” The core principle of
the standard and guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or senices fo
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitied in exchoange for those goods or
services. An entity should recognize revenue in accordance with that core principle by applying the following steps:

Step 1: ldentify the contract|s) with a customer

Step 2: identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determing the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performonce obligations in the contract
Step 3. Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance cbligation

The Company and its domeshic subsidiaries will apply the accounting standard and guidance for financial years beginning on or
after Aprl 1, 2021, and are in the process of measuring the effects of applying the accounting standard and guidance in future
applicable years,

(2] The ASB) issued following statements;
ASBJ Statement Mo, 30, "Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement,” July 4, 2019
ASBJ) Guidance No. 31, “Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement,”™ July 4, 2019
ASBJ Statement No. ¥, "Revised Accounting Standard for Measurement of Inventories,” July 4, 2019
ASBJ Statement Mo, 10, “Revised Accounfing Standard for Financial Instruments,” July 4, 2019
ASBJ Guidance Mo, 19. "Revised Implementation Guidance on Disclosures about Foir Value of Finoncial Instruments,” March 31,
2020

The standards and guidances above were developed fo improve the comparability of financial statements in Japan and abroad,
and are applied to fair value of fallowing items:

Financial Instruments in “Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments”
Inventories for froding purposes in “Accounting Standard for Measurement of Inventories”

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries will apply the occounting standards and guidances for financial years beginning on

or after April 1, 2021, and are in the process of measuring the effects of applying the accounting standards and guidance in future
applicable years,
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3. MARKETABLE SECURITIES, OPERATIONAL INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES AND INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

Marketable securities, operational investments in securities and investments in securities as of March 31, 2020 aond 2019, consisted of
the fallowing:

Thowsands of
Milliors of Yen .5, Dollars
2020 2019 2020

Current:

Govemnment and commorate BOnds ... ¥ m ¥ 422 S 1,018

Freferad equity investment........... 10,154 10,156 93,174

OMNES 1o 2,200 2,228 20,184

YoMtk ;o2 s e e ¥ 12467 ¥ 12806 5 114378
MNan-Current:

Equity securities ., S 233,449 ¥ 270670 5 21417

Govemment and corp-:mte eI i i i 905 205 8,303

I s i i e e e T e o e 10,323 8,746 94,707

T B B L e i ¥ 244 697 ¥ 280321 5 2,244 927

The costs and aggregate fair values related to the category of the securities classified as available-for-sale as of March 31, 2020 and
2019, were as follows:

As of March 31, 2020 Millions of Yen
Unrealized Unreglized Fair Value
Cost Gain Loss [Carrying Amount)
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities ... PRTRTEP S | 107,528 ¥ 130,798 ¥ (10,845) ¥ 237.480
Government and -::c:rpcrule bonds . 795 21 [{1)] 1.016
Ofther ... 1,372 (3] 1.847
As of March 31, 2019 Milliors of Yen
Unrealized Unreqlized Fair Value
Cost Gain Loss [Carmrying Amaount)
Available-for-sale:
EQUITY SBCUMTIS ..cvusisasiscmstis i s tsmsismsiamissntasnsssmiss iasssastssbrnsi ¥ 10699 ¥ 160,046 ¥ (2519) ¥ 264,523
Government and corporate bonds ... 1.321 15 (#) 1,327
L= 1,338 451 (?) 1,780
5] o] B el A T e e e T ¥ 109655 _¥ 160512 _¥ [2.537) ¥ 267,630
As of March 31, 2020 Thousands of U5, Doliars
Unrealized Unrealized Fair Value
Cost Gain Loss [Carrying Amount)
Availoble-for-sale:
Equity securities ... S e e 986495 S5 1199982 S (99.505) 5 2,084,972
Governmeni and cupomre bﬂnds i 9,128 193 (0) 2.3
B i i it pmnsaid 12,588 4413 (55) 16,946
TOMAD e e o b e 5 1008211 _§ 1204588 _5 (99.560) S 2.113.23%

The above figures include marketable equity securities temporarily lent to finoncial institutions based on securities lending ogreements
in the amount of ¥214 milion (31,243 thousand] and ¥274 milion as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively,
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The information for available-for-sale securities which were sold during the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, was as follows:

Year Ended March 31, 2020 Milkons of Yen
Realized Realzed
Proceeds Gain Loss
Availoble-for-sole:
0 E] e L e SR B S P S LA ¥ 477 ¥ 59 ¥ (58)
Government and corporate bonds ... 34 1 (0}
27 = (1)
Total ¥ 538 ¥ 50 ¥ (59)
Yeor Ended March 31, 2019 Milkons of Yen
Reqlized Realzed
Froceads Gain Loss
Available-for-sobe;
Ecyuity securifies ¥ 47 ¥ 22 % 2]
Government ond corporate bonds 2 0 {0}
| " R TR T U S SIS P 55 4 4]
TEhE] e i 104 _¥ 25 ¥ &l
Year Ended March 31, 2020 Thousands of U5, Dollors
Fealized Realzed
Proceeds Gain Loss
Availoble-for-sobe:
Equily securities . aded 4376 S 541 5§ (532)
Govemmen! and coporate Bonds ... 312 g ()
DHEIEE v rvesves e serssrses s s s 248 - (%)

The impairment losses on available-for-sale securities were ¥1,674 milion ($15,358 thousand)] and ¥430 milion for the years ended
March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

4. REVALUATION OF LAND

Under the “Law of Land Revaluation,” the Company and a domestic consolidated subsidiary adopted a one-time revaluation of
their cwn-use kand in Japan to a value based on real estate appraisal information as of March 31, 2002,

The resulting land revaluation excess represents unrealized appreciation of land and is stated, net of income taxes, as o component
of equity. Confinuous readjustment is not permitted unless the land value subsequently declines significantly such that the amount of
the declineg in value should be removed from the lkand revaluation excess account and related deferred tax liabilities,

5. LONG-LIVED ASSETS

For the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, information about impairment losses of assels is not disclosed since the effects were
imrmaterial,
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&, INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The Companies own certain rental properties such as office buildings and commercial facilities in Tokyo, other areos in Jopan and
averseas (Indonesio, United Kingdom and athers). The net of rental income and operafing expenses for those rental properties was
¥9,%82 milion (391,578 thousond), gain on sales or disposals of property ond equipment—net was ¥444 milion (34,073 thousond), ond
loss on impairment of long-lived assets was ¥14 milion [$128 thousand) for the year ended March 31, 2020. The net of rental income
and operating expenses for those rental properties was ¥8,455 million, and gain on sales or disposals of property and equipment—net
ws ¥4,027 million for the yeor ended March 31, 2019,

In addition, the camying amounts. changes in such balances and fair values of such properties were as follows;

Milicns of Yen
Carmying omount Fair valueg
As of April 1, 2019 Increase/Decrease  As of March 31, 2020  As of March 31, 2020
¥ 148,337 ¥ 50174 ¥ 198,513 ¥ 381,310
Miliors of Yen
Carmying omount Fair value
Asof Apdl 1, 2018 Increasa/Decrease  As of March 31, 2019 As of March 31, 2017
¥ 156,997 ¥ (B.658) ¥ 148,339 ¥ 314,383
Thousands of U5, Dallors
Corying omount Fair value
As of Aprl 1, 201% Increase/Decrease  As of Morch 31, 2020  As of March 31, 2020
5 1,360,908 3 450,312 S 1821220 3 3,498,257

Motes:

(1) Carrying amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheet is net of cccumulated depreciation, if any.

[2) Increcse during the financial year ended March 31, 2020, primarily consists of the purchase of real estate of ¥49,9484 million
($458,404 thousand).

[3) Fair value of properties os of March 31, 2020 and 2019, was measured as follows:
1} Fair value of domestic properties is principally measured by the Companies in accordance with its Real Estate Appraisal

Standard, including adjustments using indexes,

2} Fair value of overseas properties is principally measwed by third-porty appraisal reports.

7. LONG-TERM LOANS RECEIVABLE

Long-term loans receivable primarily consist of loans fo business partners and customers of the Companies.

B. PLEDGED ASSETS

As of March 31, 2020, the following assets of the Companies were pledged to secure the repayment of cument partion of long-term
debt of ¥12,4%4 milion [$114,45% thousand], long-term debt of ¥14.350 milion ($131,451 thousand) ond other long-term liabilifies of ¥4
milion (337 thousand) and to assure the performance by the Companias under certain agreements,

Thousands of
Milkons of Yen U5, DoBars
Motes and accounls receivable—rade ......cumnmmsmmmnnnmssssa—————————. 736 5§ 4,752
Inventories:

Development projects in progress, real eslate for sale and other .., 44,542 408,642
Other cument assets ... 115 1,055
¥ 4T — 70 442
Buildings and struciures i 487 6,303
Meachinery, equipment and other.....oee. e 5 4é
Investments in secwities and Investments in unconscldated subsidianes

Gl GO & s e e o e e M S e B s £,402 58,734
Long-term lgans receivable and long-ferm loans 1o unconsolidated wubsiciaries

a8y 8,156

¥ 53445 5 490,330
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¥. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Short-term bomowings as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, mainly consisted of bank overdrafts. The weighted-average interest rates of

short-term bomowings as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were 1.11% and 1.40%, respectively.

Long-ferm debt as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Milions of Yen U5, Dollors
2020 2009 2020

Long-term loans, due 2020 - 2077 ¥ 132,087 ¥ 138509 § 1211808
Corporale bonds, due 2021 - 20246 50,000 40,000 458,714
Lease obligations 4.,91% 2,546 45,128

Total . i 187,006 181,055 1,715,652
Currant portion included in curent iobilifias ... (53.408) [20,747) (48%.982)
Total ....... ¥ 133,598 ¥ 160,308 & 1225470

Long-term loans as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were primarily from banks and insurance companies, The weighted-average interest
rates of long-term loans as of March 31, 2020 ond 2017, were 1.42% and 1.41%, respectively. The Company Bsues corporate bonds to
meet its finoncial needs and the weighted-average interest rates for the culstanding balances of such corporate bonds as of March
31, 2020 and 2017, wera 0.23% and 0.26%, respectively, Certain short-term and long-term bank loans of the Company and its domestic
consolidated subsidiaries are made under agreements which, as is customary in Jopan, provide that the bank may, under certain
conditions, require the borower to provide collateral (or additional collateral] or guarantors with respect fo the loans, and that the
bank may freat any collateral, whether furnished as security for short-term or long-term loans or otherwise, as collateral for all
indebtedness to such bank. However, the Company and its domestic consolidaoted subsidianas have never received such a request.

The aggregate annual maturities of long-term dakt (including curent portion) as of March 31,

Years Ending Thousands of
March 31 Milions of Yen 5. Dolars
MDY s S e T R 53408 3 489,782
TR e o e S e i 16,614 152,422
BTN v S B s A S SR AL O S 18.938 173,743
BTN e it st e mens s st e b B S s 4,250 57.33%
L 31,058 284,937
2026 and thereafter 40,738 557.22%

2020, were qs follows:

A loan agreement includes financial covenant primarily an net assets and interest-bearing detbt,
The cutstanding balances of such loan as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were included in the consolidated bolance sheet as follows:

Thouwsands of
Millions of Yan U5, Doliors
2020 e 2020
Cument portion of long-term debt ... S 15000 ¥ =. 8 137,615
TR s s i e i 15000 ¥ 15000 8§ 137,615

In addition, the Company entered into committed loan focility ogreements aggregoting ¥1.50,000 million (31,374,147 thousand) with
several Japanese banks, There were no outstanding balances under the committed loan feciity agreements as of March 31, 2020,

10. COMMERCIAL PAPER

Commercial paper was represented by 92- fo 184- day paper issued by the Company with the weighted-average interast rate of
0.04% and F4- fo 10%- day paper with the weighted-average interest rate of (0.00)% as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, respeciively.

11. ADVANCES RECEIVED ON CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS IN PROGRESS

The Companies normally receive payments from customers on a progress basis in accordance with the terms of the respective

construction confracts.
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12. RETIREMENT BEMEFITS

The Company, its domestic consolidated subsidiaries, and certain overseas consalidated subsidiaries have funded and/or unfunded
defined benefit plans covering their employees, In addition, the Company, certain domestic and overseas consolidated subsidiaries
hove defined confribution plans,

Under the defined benefit pension plans, which are all funded, employees terminating fheir employment are entitied to either a
lump-sum payment or an annuity, determined based on the rate of pay at the time of ferminaticn and years of service.

The severance lump-sum payment plans, which are mostly unfunded, except for a cerfain plan that is deemed to be funded where
a consolidated subsidiony confributes qualified plan assefs to an employvee refrement benefit frust, provide for g lump-sum payment
to terminated employees, determined based on occumulated points allocated each month according to an employee's job
classification and performance, or on the rale of pay at the time of termination and vears of service,

Certain consolidated subsidiaries account for their refrement benefit plans using the smplified method.

a. Chonges in defined benefit abloation
The changes in defined benefit cbligation for the yeors ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows.

Thousands of
Milkons of Yan .5, Dollars
2020 2019 2020
Balance af beginning of year ¥ 67,530 ¥ 85161 § 419,541
CUMENT SBIVICE COM 1nvumimsvmssnismsssimsmsimsssrsnssstoms s mtsms o s smssa s s 4,78% 4,547 43,934
interest cost 2590 328 2,681
Actuarial [gains] losses (300) 4 (2.752)
Benefits paid (3.954) [3.195) (34.275)
Increase due to change in measwement of refirement benefit
obkgations from the simplified methed to the standord methed....... 490 439 4,495
Other .......... 44 [44] 403
Balance at end of yeaor

¥ 48,889 ¥ 67530 § 432,009

Mote: Refrement benefit plons accounted for using the simplified method are excluded.

b. Changes in plon gssets
The changes in plan assets for the vears ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Thousands of
miBons of Yen U.5. Dolors
2020 2019 2020

Balance of beginning of year ¥ 9577 ¥ 10096 8§ 87,842
Expecied refum on plon asseds ... &0 &4 550
Actuarial losses (550) [479) (5.963)
Contributions from the emMpISYEN ... ——————— 94 138 B&3
Benefits paid (310) [242) (2.844)

BOMINICE OF @100 OF PROT ...oco.cuvmvomiiieiie st o cssossmstns sttt et ¥ 8771 ¥ 9577 & 80,4468

Mote: Refrement benefit plons accounted for using the simplified method are excluded.
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in net defi fit licbilit nted fi ing 1 irnlifi
The changes in net defined benefit liability occounted for using the simplified method for the vears ended March 31, 2020 and
2019, were as follows:

Thesmands ol
ilions of Yen LS, Doliars
2020 019 2020

Balonce at Baginning of YEOr ... .. ¥ 1.571 ¥ 1.6%0  § 14,413

B OO e e 288 274 2,642

Benefits paid (138) [129) (1.285)

Contribulions 10 e TN ..o ——————————— (53) {54} (484)

Decrease due to change in measurement of refirement benefit

ablgations bom he simpified method 10 1he Shandand MetD. ..o e i (337) [209) (3.092)

I o et et i e i ki {1} 83
Balonce of @nd of YR ... ¥ 1340 ¥ 1571 5 12,294

d. Reconcilation with the consolidated balonce sheet
Reconciliation between the liability recorded in the consclidated balonce sheet and the bolances of defined benefit obligation

and plan assets as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, was as follows:

Thcowsands of
dlons of Yen U5, Dofiors
2020 w17 2020
Funded defingd benaht obRAHON ..civmicic s i ¥ 7127 ¥ 9553 § 83,734
T MO oo e S (7.222) 9.983| (84,606)
Toal i {95) (430} (872)
Unfunded defined benefit cbligation ... 41,553 59.954 564,707

Het liability for defined benefit obligation ¥ £1458 ¥ 59.524 § 543,835

Thousands of
lions of Yen U5, Doliors
2020 2019 2020
Licability For refingrmient BENERTS .ot asstisoas ¥ 62,100 ¥ 40191 § 569,725
A58 100 EHEMENE BENEMIS ot ——————————— (642) [667) (5.890)
Net liability for defined benef oblgaBon ... ... ¥ 61458 59.524 5§ 563835

Motes: [1] Retirement benefit plans accounted for using the simpliied method are included.
12} Asset for retirement benefits is included in “other” in investmenis and olher assels in the consolidated baolance sheet.

a. Periodic benefil costs
The compaonents of net perodic benefit costs for the yvears ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:
Thowsands of
Miions al Yan U5, Doliars
2020 2017 2020

LT T s T B 4789 ¥ 4547 § 43,936
Interest cost %0 s 2,661
Expected relum on phan Qsels ... (60) [64] (550)
Recognized aciuaniod loses _....... 206 243 1.8%0
Benefil cost in simplfied methoed ....... 288 275 2,442
Amount expensed due fo change in measwement of refirement

benefil obligations from the simpified method o the stondord Method.........o..... 153 29 1,404
IO o tpmion o it 7 {1] 53
Met periodic benefit costs ... ¥ 5473 ¥ 5558 5§ 52,044
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th nsive in
Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income (before income tax effect) in respect of defined retirement benelit plons for
the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Thousands of
Wilons of Yan U5, Dollars
2020 015 2020
AEBLIEITIER] DS s e s st ¥ (138) ¥ [525) § (1.248)

. A rrgict b lus] lal
Amounfs recognized in occumulated ofher comprehensive income (before income tax effect] in respect of defined retirerment
benafit plans as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Theusaneds el
Milors of Yen 1.5, Dollars
2020 01% 2020
Unrec ognized aeiucaial KiSSB.. .. i s ssssi s i s ¥ (2.474) ¥ (2537 § (24,532)

. Plon gssels
(1) Companents of plan assets
Plan assets as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the following:

2020 2019
Equity investments. 48 % 5 %
Dl B BSITIBINE e oo o imii s s i s 23 20
Cenh and cosh equivalents 13 10
General accounts with life iNSuronce COMPONIES ..mmsmmmm——— 10 9
Oithar & b
Tetal 100 % 100 ‘.i_

[2) Method of determining the expected rate of retum on plan assets
The expacted rate of refum on plan assets i determined considering the long-term rates of retum which are expected curently
and in the future from the various components of the plan assets,

Azsurnplions
Assumptions used for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, were set forth as follows:
2020 201
Discount rale ... 0.0% to 0.5% 0.1% o 0.6%
Expecied rate of relum on plan G558 ... msmimmsssm———— 1.0% to 2.5% 1.0% to 2.5%

Eefined confribution pension plans
The costs of defined contribufion plans were ¥2,850 milion ($24,147 thousand) and ¥2,774 million for the years ended March 31,
2020 and 2017, respectively,
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13. EQUITY

Japanese companies are subject to the Companies Act of Japan (the “Companies Act”). The significant provisions in the Companies
Act that affect financial and accounting matters are summarized below:
a. Dividends
Under the Companies Act. companies can pay dividends al any fime during the financial year in addition to the year-end
dividend upon resolution at the stockholders’ meefing. Additicnally, for companies that meet certain criteria including: (1) having
a Board of Directors; (2] having independent auditors; (3] hoving an Audit & Supervisory Board; and (4] the term of service of the
directors being prescribed as one year rather than the normal two-year term by its articles of incornporation, the Board of Direclors
may declare dividends |except for dividends-in-kind) at any time during the financial year it the company has prescribed so in its
articles of incorporation. However, the Company does not meet oll the above criteria.
Semiannual interim dividends can be paid once a year upon resolution by the Board of Directors as stipulated in the arficles of
incarporation of the Company.

The Companies Act requires that an amount equal to 10% of dividends must be oppropriated as a legal reserve (o compaonent
of refained earnings) or as additional paid-in capital (o component of capital surplus). depending on the equity account charged
upon the payment of such dividends until the aggregate amount of legal reserve and additional paid-in capital equals 25% of the
common stock, Under the Companies Act, the total omount of additional paid-in copital and legal reserve may be reversed
without imitation. The Companies Act also provides that commeon stock, legal reserve, additicnal paid-in capital, other capital
surplus and retained eamings can be transferred among the accounts within equity under cenain condifions upon resolution of
the stockholders.

c I tock and tr ke isiticn richt

The Companies Act ako provides for companies to purchase freasury stock and dispose of such freasury stock by resolution of
the Boord of Directors. The amount of freasury stock purchased cannct exceed the amount availoble for distribution to the
stockholders, which is determined by a specific formula,

Under the Companies Act, stock acquisition rights are presented os a separate component of equity.

At the Boord of Directors’ Meefing held on May 15, 2019, the Company resolved matters related to coquisition of its own shares
in occordance with Article 154 of the Companies Act, opplicable pursuant to Article 145, Poragraph 3 of the soid Act, The number
of shares ccquired for the yvear ended March 31, 2020, based on the resolution was 4,542 thousand shares.

At the Boord of Diectors’ Meeting held on July 2, 2019, the Company resolved to dispose of its own shares as resiricted stock
remuneration. The number of shares disposed of for the year ended March 31, 2020, based on the resclution was 219 thousand
shares.

14. INCOME TAXES

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to Japonese nafional and local income taxes which, in the aggregate,
resulted in a normal effective stalulory tox rate of opproximately 30.5% for the veaors ended March 31, 2020 ond 2017,

The tax effects of significant temporary differences which resulted in deferred fax assets and liobilities as of March 31, 2020 and 2019,
ware as follows:

Thousands of
Milkans of Yen LS. Dollars
2020 2019 2020

Deferad fax assets:

Liabifty for retiwement benefils ........cccoemmmme. ¥ 19527 % 12010 5§ 179147

Valuation loss on propery and equipment ... 14,798 14,529 135,761

Ofher 54,420 51.048 499,267

Subtotal ... 88,745 B4, 587 B14,175

Vaoluation alowance ......... i (24.948) [27.564] (228.881)

Mol s e o S B g e e £3.797 57.023 585,294
Deferred tax liokilifies:

Unreglized gain on available-for-sale securities .., (38.545) [47.570] (353.807)

I . virtisen e e e e A B (7.201) [6.994] [66,065)

Total (45,744) [54,764] (41%.872)
Net defermed hax assels ... B 18,031 ¥ QiEIS‘? § 165,422

As of March 31, 2020, certain consolidated subsidiaries of the Company have fax loss camyforwards available to offsel fulure taxable
income, which will start expiring in 2020. As for the domestic consolidated subsidiaries, their tox loss camyforwards will gradually expire
by 2030, Due to the uncertainty in the realization of such tax kss camyforwards, ihe Companies have establishad a valuation allowance
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to offset part of the related defemad fax assats in the amount of ¥1,545 milion ($14,358 thousand) and ¥1,707 milion as of March 31,
2020 and 2019 raspectively,

Reconciliation between the normal effective stalutory fax rate and the actual effective tax rate reflected in the occompanying
consolidated statement of income for the yeors ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 is not disclosed, because the differences were not
more than 5% of the normal effective statutory tax rate.

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

a.
Transactions for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

Thousands of
Millicors of Yan U3, Dollars
2020 209 2020
Comtruction and olher revenues......ccssmsssarae § 41,544 ¥ =t ey 381,138
50185 PrCE OF DIODEATIES. ... eceeriresererssssmsrsssasmsssems e sssmrssssmses semems - 17,260 -
Met profit from sales of properties,, - 2704 -

For the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company recognized construction and other revenues under several contracts with an
affiiate. The contracts are entered into an arm’'s-length basis and in the normal course of business. The cutstanding balance of notes
and accounts receivable—irade from the affiicle as of March 31, 2020 was ¥45,.535 millicn {$417.752 thousand).

For the yeor ended March 31, 2019, the Company sold properties to an affiicle, The sales price was determined by negofiations
based on the appraisal reports ssued by the thind party,

b. Iransactions of the consolidoled subsidiaries with affiliates
Transactions for the yeor ended March 31, 2019 was as follows:

Mlllions of Yen
2me
S0bes price Of O PrOPEIMY. ... eirririsnrrissnersreneessrssamsprssasrrianssrrens . B 3,350
Met profit from a sale of O Property ... 1.218

For the year ended March 31, 2019, o consclidated subsidiary soid a property to an affiicle. The sales price was determined by
negotiations bosed on the oppraisal reports ssued by the third party.

16. LEASES

The Companigs have a number of operating lease agreements, primarily for office spoce and computer eguipment, which are
renewable upon expiration and mainly concelable.

a.
The minimum rental commitments under noncancelabie operating leases as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:
Theusancds of
Millions of Yen .5 Dollars
2020 2009 2020
Dug WAThIN 0N YEOT ... s s 7181 ¥ 8016 % 45,881
Due ofter one year " TR 43,006 46,520 394,550
Total S R ¥ 50,187 « 54536 % 450,431

b. Cperating legses s a leswsor
The minimum rental receivables under noncancelable operating leases as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen LS. Doliars
2020 20019 2020
Due WD OO0 YO .. . i s s 13,948 ¥ 11,182 § 127,963
DU CHP D O WU v i o i b sss asa s s sansssbensa ey s ars s saabg et tn 59.739 48,377 548,045
Total e ¥ 73,487 ¥ 59559 § 676028
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17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

a. Policy for financial instruments
The Companies use financial instruments, mainly loans from banks, commerciol poper and bonds, based on their capital financing
plons for construction and development businesses, Cash surpluses, if any, are invested in low-risk financial assets such as deposits, It
is the Companies’ policy to use derivatives only for actual operating requirements, not for speculation,

Rec&nmblas such -:Js notes and acccunls racmbia—rrc:de ore e:msed h: cuslomar cradit nsks The Companias thoroughly
enforce credit risk manogement, which principally includes credit research at the fime of obtaining work and timely monitoring of
credit standings.

Poyment terms of payables, such as notes ond accounts payable—irade, are within one year,

Although marketable securities and investments in securities are exposed to the risk of market price fluctuations, the Companies
use the infermol management system o recognize their fair values pericdically.

Loans from banks, commercial paper and bonds are used to raise funds for construction and development business,

Derivatives mainly include foreign exchange forward contracts, curency swaps and interest rate swaps, which are used to
manage exposure o market risks from changes in foreign curency exchange rates of future demaond and collection of foreign-
curency-denaminaled funds, and from changes in interest rates of loans from banks and bonds. Please see Note 18 for more details
regarding dervatives.

In additicn, the Company entered into committed loan facility agreements aggregating ¥1.50,000 milion (§1,374.147 thousand)
with several Jopanese banks to manage exposure to liquidity risks on raising funds,

finoncial i
Fair values of financial instruments are based on quoted prices in octive markets, If a quoted price is not available, other rational
valuation techniques are used instecd. Also, please see Note 18 for the details of the fair volues of derivatives.
{1} Fair volue of finoncial instfruments

The camying amcunt, far value and unrealized gain (loss) of financial instruments as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows.,
However, financial instruments whose fair value cannot be raliably determined are not included.

Milbons of Yen
Carrying Fair Unwealized
As of March 31, 2020 Amount Value Gain (Loss)
ASSETS
Cosh and cash equivalents ., . e ¥ 255,646 ¥ 255,646 ¥ i
Markelable securifies and :nvss!m&nls in sec.urihas
Availoble-for-sale securifies .. 230,343 230,343 -
Notes and accounts recewublahfmde 734,15%
Allowance for doubtul GECouUnts ..o {497}
733,642 733,740 78
Other curent assels
Time deposits due after three months
of the date of GCQUISIHON ....cecev e seres 7.317 7.317 =
Long-term loans receivable ..., 4,585
Long-term loons to unconsolidated subsidiories
and affiiates .. 44,348
Allowance for :Inubrrul accaunis (1,833)
49,100 49,075 (25)
Tobal ., i 1276068 _¥ 1276121 ¥ 53
LIABILITIES
SHOr-1erm DOMOWANDS ..o e sssssriamiamssssssscscis ¥ 99799 ¥ 97? ¥ -
Commercial paper 45,000 45,000 ==
Current porfion of long-term debt ... 53.408 53.408 =
Motes and accounts poyoble—irade ... 520,653 520,653 -
Income taxes payable ................. ek 30,598 30,598 =
Long-term debt .......... 133,598 133.3%4 (204)
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Miliors of Yen

Canmying Fair Unrealized
As of Morch 31, 2019 Amount Value Gain [loss]
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ... pepiniinis; | MR 315451 ¥ 315451 ¥ =
Maorketoble securities ond -nve'stmenis in secunihes
Available-for-sole securities .. 267,630 2467 630 =
Motes and occounts reoewub‘ns.—rrcde 701,965
Alowance for douksul QCeouUnts ..o [3835]
701,580 J01.787 207

Oiher current assels
Time deposits due after three months
of the date of QEQUBTHION ... v s 7207 7.207 =

Long-term loans receivabile .. 3,583
Long-term loans to uncormlldn:lled subsadu:mes
O OIS i b s s vl S s 46,319
Alowance for doubiiul QCeounts ..., {1,992
47 9210 47974 &b
N Iﬁ Hﬁ X iﬂﬂﬁl ¥ Zﬁ
LIABILITIES
SRO-1ET EOMOWANIGE o-ooeimianianionie st e ratronainissesmsan arsarassns ¥ 85193 ¥ B5.193 ¥ -
Commercial paper .. i 35,000 35.000 -
Current portion of h:ng reu'm ﬂetﬂ 20,747 20,747 -
Motes and occounts pambk.hfrcde i 530,421 530,421 e
Income toxes payable ... 17,666 17,666 -
Long-term delbt .. 140,308 140,492 184

T'DT{JI ¥ 849335 ¥ 849519 ¥ 84

Thousands of U.5. Dollars

Carying Fair Unreaized
As of March 31, 2020 Amount Value Gain [Loss)
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ., § 2345376 5 2345376 5§ -

Marketable securities and m-.rersrrnems |n sra:un |es
Availoble-for-sole securifies .. 2.113,23% 2,113,239 o

Motes and accounts racewn::ma--rruda 4,735,404
Alowance for doubiful gccounts ... (4.550)
6,730,844 6,731,560 Al
Other curent assets
Time deposits due after three months
of the date of acquisition ... ™ &7.128 47,128 .
Long-term loans receivable 60,413
Long-term loans o unconsolidoted subs«dumues
and affiiates ... s 404,862
Abowance for daubliur uccn-u nts ....................................... (168146)
450,459 450,229 (230}
LIABILITIES
SHOr-TE0m DOMOWANDS i 9 915587 5 #15.587 5 =
Commercial paper ., 412,844 412,844 -
Current porfion of Icmg rerrn debi 489 982 489,982 -
Motes and accounts pumble—frcde 4,776,633 4,776,633 i
Income taxes payable .. 280,716 280,716

Long-term debt ... ;
T i i e iy i i semi o Lt e

1,225,670 1,223,798 [1,3?2]
58101432 5 8099560 5 (1.872)

The camying amounts of cash and cash equivalents and ofher curent assels (time deposits due after three months of the date
of acquisifion) approximate fair value because of their short maturities.
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M f rifies and Invest i) i

The far volues of markelable securties and investments in securities, consisting of available-for-sale securities whose fair value
can be reliobly determined, are mainly meoasured at the quoted market price of the stock exchange for the equity instruments,
and at the quoted price obtained from the financial institution for certain debt instruments, The information on the fair values of
marketable secwrities and investments in securities by classification is included in Mole 3.

Mo rifs ri fri

The carrying amounts of notes and accounts receivable—trade with short maoturities opprodmate fair value,

The fair values of notes and accounts receivable—trade with maturities of over one year are measured at the amount fo be
received at maturity discounted at the Companies' assumed corporate discount rate with consideraticn for the remaining terms
and credif risks,

The fair values of hng term loans receivable and long-term loans to unconsolidated subsidianies and offiiates are principally
meaasured by discounting the cash flows at the Companies’ assumed corporate discount rate by adding the credit spread o the
appropriate indexes such as the yield of government bonds. In oddition, the far values of cerfain doubtful long-term loans
receivable are equivalent to the camying amount after deduction of aliowance for doubtful accounts quoted by the estimated
amaunt to be received subject to collateral and guarantee,

LIABILITIES

The camying amaounts of shor-term borowings, commercial poper, notes and accounts pwabl&lroﬂa and income taxes
poyable approximate fair value because of ther short maturities,

nit portion of 1 t
The camying amaounts of the curent portion of long-term loans approximate far value becouse of their short maturities, The fair
values of the current portion of long-term bonds are principally measured ot market price.
Long-term debt

The carrying amaounts of long-term loans with fluciuafing interast rales approsimate fair value because the varable inferest rates
reflect market rates in a short pericd of time and the credit stonding of the Company is not substantially changed. The fair values
of long-term loans with fixed interest rales are measwred by discounting the cash flows related io the debt at the Companies’
assumed corporate borowing rate, In addition, the fair values of long-term bonds are principally measured ot market price.

DERIVATIVES
Infarmation an the fair values of derivatives is included in Nole 18,

{2) Camrying amount of financial instrumenis whose fair value cannol be reliably determined

Thousands of
Milicns of Yen U5, Dollars
2020 2019 2020
Investrments in securities
Available-for-sobe:
Equity securifies ¥ 5990 ¥ &147 8§ 54,954
Pratemad equity iInvEsiMEN! ... 10,154 10,156 93,174
Other ... 10,675 7,194 97,934
mvasrmanrs in mcmsnﬁmlad smmiﬁes and offiiates ...... 46,256 46,654 407,853
OB i S A S S ¥ 93077 ¥ 72151 § 853917

The camying amounts mentioned above include the camying amounis of cperaticnal investments in securities, whose fair value
cannot be refiably determined, because there are no quoted prices in active markets.

116 Kajima Integrated Report 2020



d. Moturity analysis for finonciol assets and securitias with contractual moturities

Millions of Yen

Due ofter Due offer
one year five yeors
Due within through through Due affer
As of March 31, 2020 Qe yeor five years ten years ten years
Cash and cosh equivalents ... M | 255,646 ¥ - ¥ - ¥ -
Marketoble securifies and |n'-fe'5h'nenls in srecmhe;
Availabie-for-sole secuifies with contractual maturities
Govemment and coporate bonds m 460 225 1
Motes and accounts receivable—frade ... 710,383 22,988 T4 712
Other cument assels
Time deposits due after three months
of the date of acquisition . 7.217 - - -
Long-term loans receivoble 1,959 4,769 842 974
Long-term loans fo unconsolidated subﬂdmnm
CI] ETICTIRES . o s om it b iyt i msn i i i 10,474 31,852 343 12,153
L | TSSO ¥ 935.592_ ¥ &0& ¥ 1486 ¥ 13,840
Thausands of U.S, Dobars
Due after Due after
one yeor five years
Due within theough through Due affer
As of March 31, 2020 one year five years ten years ten years
Caosh and cash equivalents ... e 3 2,305,376 § = 5 = % -
Marketoble securifies and ln'-'esh'nenrs in i:ECUI'IIIEi
Available-for-sale secwities with confractual maturities
Government and corporate BORdS ... 1.018 6,056 2,044 ¥
Maotes and accounts receivable —raoe ... 6,517,276 210,899 497 4,532
Other cument assets
Time depaosits due affer three months
of the date of acquisition ... &7.128 = — -
Long-term loans receivable ., 17,972 43,752 7.725 8,734
Long-term loans to um:onsulldured subrﬂdlunes
ond Qfiiates ... 6,110 2%2,220 3147 111,495
TOHE . o ot s im i i m i - § 9iu«iuau 5 Hiiﬁ? 5 13,633 5§ 125i9?2

Please see Note 7 for annual maturities of long-ferm debt,
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18. DERIVATIVES

The Companies enter into derivative financial instruments [“derivatives”), including principally foreign exchange forward contracts,
cumancy swap agreements and inferest rate swop agreements,

The Companies do not hold or issue derivatives for frading or speculative purposes and it is the Companies’ policy to use derivatives
only for the purpose of reducing market risks and financing costs in accordance with intermal regulations.

All derivative fransactions are entered into to hedge inferest and forgign curency exposures incorporated within the Companies”
business. Accordingly, market risk in these derivatives is basically offset by opposite movements in the value of hedged assets or liabilities.

Bacause the counterpartias to these derdvatives are limited to major domestic or overseas financial institutions, the Companies do
not antficipate any losses arising from credit risk,

a. Dervative transoctions o which hedoe accounting is not opplied

Milions af Yen
Coniract
Armouni
Contract duea affer Fair Urwealizad
As of March 31, 2020 Amnount One Year Volue Gain (Loss)
Foreign exchonge forword controcis
Seliing:
U5 DOl POrwiand ....com o missisismsarassmissarsssrons 300 - {m {11}
Currancy swaps
Buy—Jopanese Yen /
Sell—Ausiraian Dollar 1.44% 1.44% 104 104
[ | PN ey s S ¥ 1,884 ¥ 1449 ¥ 97 ¥ 97
Miliors of Yen
Coniract
Amount
Contract dua affer Fair Urwealizad
As of March 31, 2009 Amaount One Year Wolue Gain (Loss)
Forgign exchange forword contracts
Selling:
B Tomwreiid i S e S e S ¥ 1053 ¥ - ¥ 12y % 12
LS DVOIEN OO o it imimimirirmsisimsimisisin i o 748 267 {21} [21]
L[=L L+ | 2001 ¥ 267 [33) ¥ {33)
Thowsands of U5, Dollars
Coniract
Amouni
Contract due affer Fair Urreglized
As of March 31, 2020 Amount One Year Volue Gain (Loss)
Foreign exchange forword contracis
Selling:
BUrD ot i e e i 1238 5 = % 18 5§ 18
LS. Diclor TOMmMONT o i iom i s s sas st msnes 2,752 - {101} {101}
Currency swaps
Buy—Jopanese Yen /
Sell-AusirgBan DOl ... 13.294 13,294 973 973
[, | FE A R b 17284 § 13,294 5§ 8% 5 890
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b. Derivotive fransactions to which hedge aoccounting is appliad

MBS Of Yan

Confract
Armoant
Hedged Coniract due after Fair
As of March 31, 2020 iterm Amount One Year YValue
Foreign exchange forward contracts
Buying:
LS. DolOF BONWAOING ..o e cmsmcmso s s s e s s Accounts ¥ &9 ¥ - ¥ m
payoble—irade
Thial BOl AoV . e mioimim s e saimss s e e Accounis 9 - m
payable—irode
Selling:
Euro forward ... Accounts 4,618 1] 72
recevable—trade G
WO i i et i ¥ 4695 ¥ BB _¥ 70
Interest rate swaps
Poy—fix f Receive—RAoa! ..., CUTENE porfion of ¥ 22494 ¥ 324 ¥ {153)
long-term delpt
Takal e i o I ﬂ ﬂ’ ! aH i “ﬁ]
Milicrs of Yen
Contract
Armount
Hedged Confract due after Fair
As of March 31, 2019 it@rm Armount One Yeor Wolue
Foreign exchange forward controcts
Buying:
LS IO POWIEIET . i o Accounts ¥ 243 ¥ - ¥ [2)
payoble—Iirode
Norwegian Erone forward........c e Accounts 36 - [
payable—irade
BUro oWl i e i e R R Accounts 18 - [
payoble—trode
Seling:
Euro foresard i i Accounts 12.854 Thé [&2Z)
raceivable-—trade
T e e i S e e S ¥ 13153 ¥ Joh ¥ [&4]
Interest rale swaps
POy —FiX f ROCEOIVE—FIOOT oooorooseceeseroeses s rsrsrassescens Long-tenmn ¥ 1 P 72532 ¥ (340)
debd
T o R e ¥ 31797 ¥ 22032 ¥ 13401
Thousands af L5, Dollars
Contract
Armaount
Hedged Coniract due affer Fair
As of March 31, 2020 iterm Amount One Year Wolue
Foreign exchaonge forward controcis
Buying:
5. Dolar Forwand ..o % Accounts 5 633 5§ - 5 "
payable—irade
Thai Bahl fonwaig......cmiismmes s ————————— Accounts 83 = (%
payoble—irode
salling:
LI OACUNCE ot e i i Accounts 42 3467 BO7 &40
receivable—tode s
Tl S L i e M i ﬁ mﬁ E ﬂz i Hz
Intarast rale swaps
Pary—fix § RECEOIVE—ROOT oo sesnems Current portion of  § 206,367 5§ 2972 5 {1,404)
long-term debt M T
Talal ........... L A LR PO § mﬁz E i!z: i |] m]

The fair value of dervative fransactions is mainly measured af the quoted price obtained from the financial institution.
The coniract amounts of derivatives which are shown in the above table do not represent the amounts exchanged by the parties
and do not measure the exposure to credit or market risk,
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19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of March 31, 2020, contingent liabilities for loons guaranteed, including related itermns of a similar nature, amounted to ¥11,791
million [$108.174 thousand),
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20. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME

The components of other comprehensive (loss) income for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Thousands of
Milbors of Yen U.5. Dodars
2020 2019 2020
Unrealized (loss) gain on available-forsala securifies:
[Losses) gains ansing duing The YBOr. ... ¥ (40,192) ¥ 13936 3§ (368,734)
Reclassification adustments o profit or loss.... 1,679 585 15,404
Amount before income tax effect... i mnn. (38,513) 14,521 (353,330)
ICOME PX BIFETT, .vvrrerssressssmisrsssersres s s e essssmssssarssses 11,747 (4,427 107,770
TOMAL.o oo o ¥ (26.768) ¥ 10094 S (245.560)
Defered gain (loss) on denvatives under hedge accounting:
Gains (losses) aising during the YEaAr......e s ¥ 199 ¥ (278) $ 1,826
Reclossification adjustments to profit or 108s. ... (52) 199 (477)
Amount before income tox effect 147 (79 1,349
COME P00 BIFECE (i sinmas i st (23) (11} (212)
WO s i M A b AP i ¥ 124 ¥ (%0) § 1,137
Revaluation suplus of lond:
Adjustments arising during thé VBT ... ¥ = ¥ - % =
Reclossification adjustments 10 profit of 1085, ... - - =
Amount before income fax effect..... i - = =
Income tax effect 829 — 7,606
O i i e B i S e B ¥ B& ¥ = 7,606
Foreign curency ransation adjustments:
Adjustments arising during the YBar.......cmmmmsmsmsmmnne - # (348) ¥ (7.744) 5 (3.193)
Reclossificafion adjustments fo profit or loss.... (1,138) = (10,422)
Amount before income 1ax 8fect.. ... (1.484) (7.744) (13.615)
Income X effecl......c v ———— - - -
TOMAL.-o e ¥ (1.484) ¥ (7.744) § (13.615)
Defined refirement benefit plans:
Adjustments aising duing the YEAr. ... § (342) ¥ (T&6B) 5 (3.138)
Reclossification adjustrments 10 profit of 088 e 206 243 1.890
Amount before income 1o effect. ... (138) [525) (1.248)
Incemie dencaeth . S 25 209 230
T S S S ¥ (111} ¥ [316] $ (1,018)
share of other comprehensve (koss) Income
in uncorsolidated subsidiories ond offiiates:
(Losses) gains ansing during the Yeor........oeemmermmrem (249) ¥ &62 5 (2.284)
Reclossificafion adjustments 1o profit of 1085........evoeeceeeeeroee 51 (44) 458
Adjustment for acquisition cost of Qssets.... i 7 = &4
TObEL it s ik e e ¥ (191) ¥ 418 5 {I,?SEL
Tatal other comprehensive (1055) INCOME.......ooocvrrcricmicnicmsicsians ¥ [(27.599) ¥ 2562 § 253,202
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27. SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

o. Consofidoied Bolonce sheet
The Company sold accounts receivable—irade to financial institufions. As of March 31, 2020, accounts receivable—trade amounting
fo ¥48,923 million [$448,835 thousond) were excluded from the consolidated balonce sheet.

b. Consglidated Statement of Cash Flows
The components of assets ocquired and liabilities assumed of consclidated subsidiaries which were acquired through the interests

and share acquisiions during the years ended March 31, 2020 aond 2019, as well as reconciliation between the acquisition cost and
the poyment for the acguisition were as follows:

Thouscnds of
Milions of Yen Milkons of Yen LS. Dodiars
2020 2019 2020
CUITENE GESBES oo e reres e mem s sarer e prsas s e et s et trmnis ¥ 3Bs ¥ 87¢ 5 3541
Mon-cument assals . 324 2,069 2,972
Gooowil..... s iy ; 118 &19 1,083
Cument babilities.... (120) [35) {1.101)
Mon-cument Babilifies. ... ... . - {502) -
Moncaontroling interasts (83) - (761)
Acquisition cost 625 3,030 5734
Accounts payable.., i — {505) —
Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiaries (248) {3%) (2,275)
Net payment for acquisition ¥ 77 ¥ 2485 S 3,459
22, MET INCOME PER SHARE
Basic net income per share [“EF3") for the yeors ended March 31, 2020 and 201%, was as follows;
Millions of Thousand of
Yen Shores Yen U5, Dollars
Met Income
Attibutable
to Owiniers
of the Weighted—
Parent Averoge Shares EP3*
For fhe year ended March 31, 2020;
Basic EPS
Net income atfribulable 1o common stockholders ... ¥ 103,242 513,648 ¥ 20099 5 1.844
For th March 31 19:
Bagc EPS
Met income attibutoble fo common SToCKkROMETS ... ¥ 10%.83% 518925 ¥ 21.67

*Shares and per share figures are calculated as if the consclidation of shares hod been conducted at the beginning of the
financial year ended March 31, 2019,

23. SUBSEGUENT EVENTS
A iation of Betal frir
On June 25, 2020, the stockholders of the Company approved the appropriation of retained earnings to pay o dividend of ¥25.00
{$0.229) per share (final for the year ended March 31, 2020] for o total amount of ¥12,838 milion ($1 17,780 thousand).
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24, SEGMENT INFORMATION

a. segment Information
An entity & required to report finoncial and descriptive information about its reportable segments, Reportable segments are
operating segments or aggregations of operating segments that meet specified criteria. Operafing segments are components of an
entity about which separate financial information s availoble and such information is evaluated regularly by the chief operating
decision maker in deciding how fo allocate resources and in assessing performance, Generally, segment information is required to
be reported on the same basis as is used intemally for evaluating operating segment performance ond deciding how to allocate
resources to operating segments.

[1] Description of reportable segments

The Group's reportable segments are those for which separate financial information s available and regular evaluation by the
Board of Directors of the Company is being performed in order 1o decide how resources are allocated among the Group and to
assess performance of each reportable segment,

The Group operates in o wide and mulfiloteral business. The Company organizes management divisions for each operafing
segment, such as civil engineering, bwilding construction, real estate development and other, which strategize and develop their
business. Also, the Company’s domestic and overseas subsidiaries and affiiates cooperate with the Company to expand the range
of the Group's business.

Therafore, the Group consists of five reportable segments as follows:

Civil Engineering: Civil engineering in the construction business operated by the Company

Building Construction: Building construction in the construction business operated by the Company

Real Estate Development and Other: Real estate development business, architectural, structural and other design business
and engineering business operated by the Company

Domestic Subsidiaries and Affiliates: Sales of construction maoterials, special construction and engineering  services,

comprehensive leasing business, building rental business and others mainly in Jopan
operaled by domestic subsidiaries and affiiotes

Owverseas Subsidiaries and Affiliates: Construction business, real estate development business aond others overseas such os in
Morth America, Europe. Asio, Oceanic and ofher oreos operaled by owverseas
subsidiories and offiiates

[2) Methods of meosuwrement for the amounts of sales, profit [loss], assets, liabilities and other items for each reportable segment

The accounting policies of each reportable segment are consistent with those disclosed in Mote 2, “Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies,” The profit (loss) of each reportable segment is measured by its operating income (loss). The contracts betweean
fhe reporfable segments are entered into on an am's-length basis and in the normal course of business,

(3] Information about revenues, profit (Ioss), assets, iabiities and other items is as follows;

Year Ended March 31, 2020 Milicns of Yen
Civil Building Redl Esiate Domestic Overnseos
Development  Subsidiories  Subsicharies Total Reconciliations Consolidoted

Enginesing  Comsiruclion ~_ 1 iner  ancl Affliates  and Affilales

Revenuas:
Sales to external customers ..., ¥ 288099 ¥ 955280 ¥ E5713 ¥ 243204 ¥ 448454 ¥ 2010752 ¥ - ¥ 2,010,752
Intersegment sales or fronsfers - 2,277 3,689 149,945 4§25 156.556 (156.556) -
Tolal s 28B0FF ¥ ’!‘5?"55?' ¥ 5’!‘iﬂl2 ¥ 3?‘5171 ¥ di?iﬂ?? ¥ ziu?im ¥ i'l!u'r 556' ¥ EID'IDI?52
Segment profit ... ¥ 17,195 ¥ B5321 ¥ 8530 ¥ 17.750 ¥ 4539 ¥ 133335 ¥ (1.348) ¥ 131,987
Oiher:
Depreciohon ... B75 ¥ 2307 ¥ 3,338 ¥ 6294 ¥ 4,644 ¥ 20,058 ¥ (76) ¥ 19.9562
Amortization of goodwill, - - - - 742 7562 e F82
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Yeor Ended March 31, 2019 Milkons of Yen

ek Buiding DEEGES1GIE1 SDSE'W?C 50;;;’?5 Total R iiations  Consolidated
. : ; evelopmen ubsidiones Ul ries o econciliotions  Consolidal
Engineering  Construction “CC N andl Affitesond Afflotes
Revenues,

Soles fo external customers ... ¥ 301064 ¥ 925847 ¥ 48417 ¥ M334F ¥ 45552 ¥ 1974247 ¥ — ¥ 1974247

Intersegment sales or fransfers , - 2,248 2791 |44, 288 387 151,714 [151,714] —

=] TSR ———— . ¢ ] 4.7 S S 10, L 51,008 ¥ 3BRA3T ¥ A5597% ¥ 2125983 ¥ iISI.?H ¥ 1.774.265
segment profit .. $ 39,2386 ¥ Te626 ¥ 5430 ¥ 16,523 ¥ 6,283 ¥ 143098 ¥ [475) ¥ 142,623
Other:

Dapracialion .....cueooeusmese ¥ 844 ¥ 2665 ¥ 3505 % 5970 ¥ 6272 ¥ 19,274 % (110} ¥ 19,146

Amortization of goodwill............ = = = - 975 975 = 975
Year Ended March 31, 2020 Thousands of LS. Dollars

Civil Building Recl Estate Unmesr?c Dversec_:s -
Engineer Conshuction Development Subsidgnes Subsidicries Total Reconciliations Conscidated
9 hd and Other  and Alfilales  and Alfilales
Revenues:

Sales fo extemal customers ..... $ 24643110 58764037 5 511129 $ 2231247 54297743 5 18447266 § — 518447, 266

Intersegment sales or transfers = 20,8%0 33,844 1,375,824 5734 1,436,294 (1,436,294)

I o cm e s e i § iu_alnn § aimivzr § 544 973 § .'!iirﬂ? 073 § dimld?? § 1?,aaaisau § |li¢3& 2?-1] § Iﬁid-d?liu
Segment profit .. 3 157,752 5 782741 TB258 5 142844 5 41,642 5 1223257 § (12.347) 5 1.210.8%0
Olher:

Dapraciation . ... 5 BO28 5 26470 5 30,623 5 57,743 5 40,954 5 184018 % (880) 5 183,138

Amarlization of goodwill............. — - - - 8,824 8,826 - 8,824

Notes:

[1) The amount of reconciiotions in segment profit, which wias loss of ¥1,348 million (312,367 thousand) and loss of ¥475 millicn for the
years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. mainly consists of the elimination of intersegment fransactions.

[2) Consolidated segment profit is equal to operating income in the consolidated statement of income.

[3) Assets are not allocated to operating segments.

b. Reloted Information
[1] Information about products and services

Year Ended March 31, 2020 Milians of Yen

Consiruction Reql Estale Other Total
Soles to extemnal customens ... ¥ 1,791,118 ¥ 87387 ¥ 132,245 ¥ 2010752
Year Ended March 31, 2019 Milkons of Yen

Caonstruction Reql Estate Other Total
Sales to extemnal customens ... ¥ 1,776,346 ¥ 48,244 ¥ 129,679 ¥ 1,974,269
Year Ended March 31, 2020 Thousands of U5, Dabars

Canstruction Real Estate Other Total
Sales to extemnal customens ... 5 164322758 § 801,734 5 1,213,257 5 18,447,266
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12} Information aboul geographical areas

1) Revenues
Milkons of Yen
2020
Jopan Morth America Ewope Asig Oceania Other Areas Total
¥ 1540022 ¥ 234295 ¥ 29,554 ¥ 107,976 ¥ 98,770 ¥ 135 ¥ 2,010,752
Milkors of Yen
2019
Jopan Maorth Amenca Ewope Agio Cceanio Other Areos Tolal
¥ 1,517,029 % 210,147 % 35556 ¥ 119,130 ¥ 92,192 ¥ 1¥5 ¥ 1,974,269
Thiougands of U5, Dobars
2020
Japan Marth Amenca Euwrope Atia Oceania Other Areos Tolal
$ 14128442 5 2149495 3 271138 § 90,606 5 906,147 5 1,238 5 18447244

Mote: Revenues are classified by country or region based on the location of customers.

2} Property ond equipment

Milkons of Yen
2020
Japan MNorth Amerca Europe Asic Qceania Other Areas Tolal
¥ %941 ¥ 10898 ¥ 2477 ¥ 66,298 ¥ 1.426 ¥ § ¥ 391,049
Milkans of Yen
2019
Japan Morth Amenca Ewrope Asia Qceanio Other Areas Total
¥ 233,867 ¥ 10,630 ¥ 10,257 ¥ 56,357 ¥ S80 ¥ ¥ ¥ 331,700
Thousands of U5, Dolars
2020
Jopan Morth Amenca Ewope AsiQ Oceanig Other Areas Tolal
§ 2843495 5§ 99.982 & 22725 5 408.23% S5 13.083 5§ 8z 5 3,587 4046

c. Informaotion about impairment losses of assets
For the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, information about impairment losses of assets is not disclosed since the effects were
immaterial.

d. Information about goodwil
{1} Amorfization of goodwill for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019
Thousands of
Milkons of Yen UE. Dollars
2020 2019 2020

¥ 62 ¥ 975 % 8,826

12} Camrying amounts of goocdwill as of March 31, 2020 aond 2019

Thousands of
Milions of Yen 1U.5. Drolkars
2020 019 2020

¥ 1448 ¥ 2335 0§ 13284

Hote: Goodwil is not allocated fo operating segments,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Kajima Corporation:
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kajima Corporation and its consolidated
subsidiaries (the "Group"”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2020, and the
consolidated statement of income, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, all
expressed in Japanese yen.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of March 31, 2020, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Convenience Translation

Our audit also comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, in
our opinion, such translation has been made in accordance with the basis stated in Note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements. Such U.S. dollar amounts are presented solely for the convenience of
readers outside Japan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the provisions of the Code of Professional Ethics in Japan, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities as auditors. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Audit & Supervisory Board Members and the Audit &
Supervisory Board for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan and using the going concemn basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited

126 Kajima Integrated Report 2020



Audit & Supervisory Board members and the Audit & Supervisory Board are responsible for overseeing
the Directors' execution of duties relating to the design and operating effectiveness of the controls over
the Group’'s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement. In addition, we obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain, when performing risk assessment procedures, an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

« Evaluate whether the overall presentation and disclosures of the consolidated financial statements are,
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, as well as the overall
presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consclidated financial statements,
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit & Supervisory Board members and the Audit & Supervisory Board
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit & Supervisory Board members and the Audit & Supervisory Board with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Interest Required to Be Disclosed by the Certified Public Accountants Act of Japan

Our firm and its designated engagement partners do not have any interest in the Group which is required
to be disclosed pursuant to the provisions of the Certified Public Accountants Act of Japan.

DalottiTowdle =74 hoidan LLC.

June 25, 2020
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